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“Convenience Translation of the Independent Audit&eport Originally Issued in Turkish”

To the Board of Directors of
Turkland Bank Anoningirketi
Istanbul

Turkland Bank Anonim  Sirketi

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’'S REPORT
FOR THE YEAR JANUARY 1- DECEMBER 31,2014

We have audited the accompanying balance sheetirifahd Bank AS. (“Bank™) as at December 31, 2014,
and the related statement of income, statementaafnie and expense items accounted under shagesiold
equity, statement of cash flows and changes ineslodders’ equity for the year ended, and a sumnoéry
significant accounting policies and other explanatwtes.

Responsibility of the Bank’s Board of Directors fo the Financial Statements

The Board of Directors of the Bank is responsilie the preparation and fair presentation of therfgial
statements in accordance with the “Regulation @nRhinciples and Procedures Regarding Banks’ Adbagin
Applications and Safeguarding of Documents” puldislin the Official Gazette dated November 1, 2066 a
numbered 26333 and Turkish Accounting Standard8$"), Turkish Financial Reporting Standards (“TFRS”
and other regulations, circulars, communiqués arahquncements in respect of accounting and financia
reporting made by the Banking Regulation and Supierv Agency (“BRSA”). This responsibility includes
designing, implementing and maintaining internattcol relevant to the preparation and fair pressneof the
financial statements that are free from materiadstatement, whether due to fraud or error and thedeand
applying appropriate accounting policies.

Auditor’'s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on ¢hfisancial statements based on our audit. We adaduwour
audit in accordance with the regulation on “Regatabn Authorization and Activities of Institutions Conduct
Independent Audit in Banks” published in the OfficGazette dated November 1, 2006 and numbered32633
and with the Independent Auditing Standards which part of the Turkish Auditing Standards promiddaby
the Public Oversight Accounting and Auditing StamidaAuthority (“POA”). We planned and performed our
audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether tlamdial statements are free from material misstattrmAn
audit involves performing procedures to obtain tididence about the amounts and disclosures ifirthecial
statements. The procedures selected depend onuthitors judgment, including the consideration diet
effectiveness of internal control and appropriassnef accounting policies applied relevant to tiitgs
preparation and fair presentation of the finanatdtements in order to design audit procedures dhat
appropriate in the circumstances. We believe that dudit evidence we have obtained is sufficierd an
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinio

Independent Auditor’s Opinion

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statetegpresent fairly, in all material respects, theaficial
position of Turkland Bank 4. as at December 31, 2014 and the results of gsabipns and its cash flows for
the year then ended in accordance with the pregagiccounting principles and standards set outeaghe
Article No: 37 of the Banking Act No: 5411, and ethregulations, communiqués, circulars and proneonants
made by the BRSA in respect of accounting and irdmeporting.



Reports on independent auditor’s responsibilities asing from other regulatory requirements

1) In accordance with Article 402 paragraph 4t Turkish Commercial Code (“TCC”) no 6102; no
significant matter has come to our attention thatises us to believe that the Bank’s bookkeeping
activities for the period January 1 — December 2114 are not in compliance with the code and
provisions of the Bank’s articles of associatiomeatation to financial reporting.

2) In accordance with Article 402 paragraph 4tted TCC; the Board of Directors submitted to us the
necessary explanations and provided required doctsmeéthin the context of audit

Additional Paragraph for convenience translation toEnglish

The effect of the differences between the accognpirinciples summarized in Section 3 and the aciogn
principles generally accepted in countries in whicé accompanying financial statements are to beilolited
and International Financial Reporting StandardsR8F have not been quantified and reflected in the
accompanying financial statements. The accountimgciples used in the preparation of the accompanyi
financial statements differ materially from IFRScobrdingly, the accompanying financial statememés rat
intended to present the Bank’s financial position aesults of its operations in accordance withoanting
principles generally accepted in such countriessefrs of the financial statements and IFRS.

Glney Bgimsiz Denetim ve Serbest Muhasebeci Malisiirlik Anonim Sirketi
A member firm of Ernst&Young Global Limited

Yasar Bivas
Partner, SMMM

February 12, 2015
Istanbul, Turkey
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THE UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL AUDIT REPORT OF TURKLA NDBANK A.S.
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2014

Address : 19 Mayis Mah. 19 Mayed . Sisli Plaza A Blok No: 7
Sisli- Istanbul

Telephone :(0212) 368 34 34

Fax :(0212) 368 35 35

Web Site . http//www.turklandbank.com

E-mail Address : t-bank@turklandbank.com

The unconsolidated financial report for the yead evhich is prepared in accordance with “Communiqué
Related to Publicly Announced Financial Statemeift8anks and Explanations and Notes Related teethe
Financial Statements” as regulated by the BankiaguRation and Supervision Agency includes the foilg
sections:

« GENERAL INFORMATION ABOUT THE BANK

*  UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF THE BANK

« EXPLANATIONS ON THE ACCOUNTING POLICIES APPLIED INHE RELEVANT
PERIOD

* INFORMATION ON FINANCIAL STRUCTURE OF THE BANK

« EXPLANATORY DISCLOSURES AND FOOTNOTES ON UNCONSOLHMYED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

« OTHER EXPLANATIONS AND FOOTNOTES

« INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

The unconsolidated financial statements and thdaegpory footnotes and disclosures, unless otherwis
indicated, are prepared in thousands of Turkish,liir accordance with the Communiqué on Banks’ Aotiog
Practice and Maintaining Documents, Turkish AccgntStandards, Turkish Financial Reporting Stanslard
related communiqués and the Bank’s records, haemr imelependently audited and presented as attached.

January 30, 2015

Nehme SABBAGH A. Dinger ALPMAN Mehmet OZGUNER GiilgSuU
Chairman of the Board of General Manager Executive Vice President Manager
Directors Financial Affairs
Mehmet Behcet PER Mohamed Ali BEYHUM Nadya Nabil Tawfik TALHOUN
Member of Audit Committee Member of Audit Committee Member of Audit Committee

Information related to responsible personnel ferghestions that can be raised about financiad rsints:
Name-Surname / Title: Sevgi Ustiin / Assistant Manag

Telephone Number: (0212) 368 37 24
Fax Number: (0212) 368 35 35
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TURKLAND BANK ANON iM SIRKET1
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2014
(Amounts expressed in thousands of Turkish LifaYYunless otherwise stated.)

SECTION ONE
GENERAL INFORMATION
l. Bank’s Incorporation Date, Beginning Statue, Changgin the Existing Statue

Turkland Bank Anoningirketi (“the Bank”), was established in 1991istanbul under the name of “Bahreyn ve
Kuveyt Bankasl AnoninSirketi” (BB&K). Its name was changed as “Tasarrié Kredi Bankasi Anonim
Sirketi” with its acquisition by Dgus Group in 1992. After the change in the name oflibek as “Garanti
Yatirrm ve Ticaret Bankasi Anonigirketi” in 1994, Mehmet Nazif Ginal (the main shaoler of MNG
Group Companies) has acquired the Bank in 199 &lemdiame of the Bank has been changed as “MNG Bank
Anonim Sirketi”.

An agreement has been made with Arab Bank and BadKigr the sale of 91% of MNG Bank’s shares in mid
of 2006 and this agreement was approved by Bankegulation and Supervision Agency (BRSA) on
December 29, 2006. In this regard, while Arab Banki BankMed purchasing 50% and 41% of MNG bank
shares respectively, Mehmet Nazif Glinal retainedo®%e shares. Transfer of the Bank was made pnalg
29, 2007. The title of the Bank was changed asKiamd Bank AnonimSirketi” with the amendment to the
Articles of Association by the decision of the Exrdinary General Assembly at the meeting on M&z2h
2007.

On April 3, 2007, “MNG BANK AnonimSirketi” title of the bank was registered as “TURKN® BANK
Anonim Sirketi”.

According to the Share Sale and Purchase AgreeamehBoard of Directors’ Decision dated FebruaryZBL0
and July 15, 2010 respectively, Mehmet Nazif GisaB3 million shares with TRY 15,300 nominal valuere
purchased by BankMed SAL. As of July 22, 2010 thers transfer was realized.

According to the Extraordinary General Assemblgisien dated May 30, 2011, it was decided to ineecthe
Bank’s capital from TRY 170,000 to TRY 300,000, and/as registered in the Turkish Trade Registrz &t
dated June 20, 2011 numbered 7840. According tdBfRBA approval dated September 15, 2011 numbered
4381 the unused preemptive right of Arab Bank Phoanting to TRY 65,000 have been used by Arab Bank
(Switzerland) Ltd (ABS). Capital commitments haweeb paid by shareholders and according to the BRSA
decision dated October 20, 2011 numbered 2224aksiblken transferred to the capital accounts.

According to the Ordinary General Assembly decrated April 18, 2013, it has been decided to inedas
Bank’s paid in capital from TRY 300 million to TRY00 million. The capital increase is committed gdaid
in two equal installments, each one amounting t& RO million, respectively by April 30, 2013 andtOber
30, 2013. BankMed SAL, shareholder of the Bank ®%5has paid in cash TRY 50.0 million correspondimg
its share for the capital increase; Arab Bank Pél@reholder of the Bank by 28.3%, has paid in d&¥ 28.3
million corresponding to its share for the capitarease; Arab Bank (Switzerland), shareholdehef@Gompany
by 21.7%, has paid in cash TRY 21.7 million cormsging to its share for the capital increase. Tagital
commitments paid by the shareholders were trarsfeimto the share capital accounts with the approfa
Banking Regulation and Supervision Agency dated Bfy2013 and numbered 13388.

For the second installment of the capital incre8sekMed SAL, shareholder of the Bank by 50%, haisl [n
cash TRY 50 million corresponding to its share tlee capital increase in October 4, 2013, Arab BROK,
shareholder of the Bank by 28.3%, has paid in @@®¥ 28.3 million corresponding to its share for tapital
increase and Arab Bank (Switzerland), shareholfi¢he Bank by 21.7%, has paid in cash TRY 21.7iamill
corresponding to its share for the capital incraas®ctober 21, 2013. The capital commitments gaicdhe
shareholders were transferred into the share tagiteounts with the approval of Banking Regulatemd
Supervision Agency dated November 11, 2013 and eoeab28000.

According to the Ordinary General Assembly decrated April 15, 2014, it has been decided to inedas
Bank’s paid in capital from TRY 500 million to TR&50 million. In April, 2014, TRY 150 million has be
paid in cash. The capital commitments paid by thereholders were transferred into the share cagitdunts
with the approval of Banking Regulation and Supgor Agency dated August 28, 2013 and numbered 2063

3)
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TURKLAND BANK ANON iM SIRKET1
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2014
(Amounts expressed in thousands of Turkish LifaYYunless otherwise stated.)

Il.  Explanations Regarding Bank's Shareholding Stricture, Shareholders Holding Directly or
Indirectly, Collectively or Individually, the Managing and Controlling Power and Changes in
Current Year, if any and Explanations on the Contrdling Group of the Bank

As of December 31, 2014, the shareholders’ straciad their ownerships are summarized as follows:

Name of shareholders Share| Share Ratios Paid up Unpaid
Amount % Shares Shares

IARAB BANK PLC 216,666.67 %33,3 216,666.67

IARAB BANK (Switzerland) 108,333.33 %16,7 108,333.33 -

BANKMED, SAL 324,999.99 %50,0 324,999.94

Others <1 %0,0 <1

[Total 650,000.00 %100,0 650,000.0d

As of December 31, 2014 the nominal value of thal@acapital is amounting to TRY 650,000 and catssid
6,500 million shares.

(4)
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TURKLAND BANK ANON iM SIRKET1
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2014

(Amounts expressed in thousands of Turkish LifaYYunless otherwise stated.)

lll.  Explanations Regarding the Chairman and the Members of Board of Directors, Audit Comittee,
General Manager and Assistants and Their Shares anfireas of Responsibility in the Bank

Title Name and Surname(*)

Chairman of the Board of DirectorBIEHME SABBAGH

Members of the Board of Directors
MOHAMED ALI BEYHUM

MEHMET BEHCET PERM

NADYA NABIL TAWFIK TALHOUNI
HENRI MARIE RENE JACQUAND
MUSTAFA SELCUK TAMER

RIAD BURHAN TAHER KAMAL

HAITHAM HELMI
MOHAMMAD FOUDEH(**)

FATEN MATAR

General Manager and Member of

Board of Directors A.INCER ALPMAN

Assistant General Mangers DORUK PARMAN

HAKKI YILDIRMAZ

ILHAN ZEKi KOROGLU

MEHMET OZGUNER

MUNEVVER EROZ

YURDAKUL OZDOGAN

(*) The above stated persons do not have Banlesha

Responsibility Education
Chairman Master Degree

Vice Chairman and
Member of Audit ComitteéMaster Degree

Member of Audit ComitteéMaster Degree

Member of Audit Comittedachelor's Degree

Member Master Degree
Member Bachelor’s Degree
Member Master Degree
Member Master Degree
Member Master Degree

Chief Executive Officer  Bachelor's Degree

MarketingeSa PHD Degree

Human Resources PHD Degree
Operation and Information
Technologies Bachelor’s Degree

Finance Bachelor's Degree
Treasury and Financial
Institutions Master Degree

Credit & Follow up Bachelor’s Degree

(**» HAITHAM HELMI MOHAMMAD FOUDEH has been appaited as a member of Board of Directors

decision numbered 521, dated 1 March, 2014.

IV. Information About The Persons and Institutions That Have Qualified Shares:

Information about the persons and institutions kaate qualified shares asld&cember 31, 2014

with the

Share Share Paid up Unpaid
Name of Shareholders Amount Ratios Shares Shares
ARAB BANK PLC 216,666.67 %33,3 216,666.67
ARAB BANK (Switzerland) 108,333.33 %16,7 108,333.33
BANKMED, SAL 324,999.99 %50,0 324,999.99

(%)
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TURKLAND BANK ANON iM SIRKET1
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2014
(Amounts expressed in thousands of Turkish LifaYYunless otherwise stated.)

V. Summary on the Bank’s Functions and Areas of Adtity

The Bank has 33 branches and 641 personnel. Th& Bas no any subsidiaries in the financial sector
(December 31, 2013: 27 branches, 535 personnel).

The Bank was established with private capital, thasauthority to accept deposits and its operatawasmostly
based on retail and corporate banking transactidssit is indicated in Articles of Association, thigank is
mainly dealing in the transactions below:

Acceptance of Deposit
Corporate and Retail Banking
Foreign Trade

Capital Market Transactions
Bank Assurance

PooTO

VI.  Differences between the communiqué on preparatn of consolidated financial statements of Banks
and Turkish Accounting Standards and short explanabn about the institutions subject to full
consolidation method or proportional consolidationand institutions which are deducted from
equity or not included in these three methods:

The Bank has no consolidated subisidiaries.

VII. The existing or potential, actual or legal obsacles on the transfer of shareholder’'s equity beteen

the Bank and its subsidiaries or reimbursement ofi&bilities:

The Bank has no consolidated subisidiaries.

(6)
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SECTION TWO

UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Il. Statement of Off Balance Sheet Contingencies@ammitments
lll. Statement of Income
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V. Statement of Changes in Shareholders’ Equity
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VII.  Profit Distribution Table
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TURKLAND BANK ANON iM SIRKET1

BALANCE SHEETS AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2014 AND DECEMBER31, 2013

(Amounts expressed in thousands of Turkish LifaYYunless otherwise stated.)

I BALANCE SHEET — ASSETS (STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL P OSITION)

Audited Audited
Current Period Prior Period
31.12.2014 31.12.2013
Note Ref
(Section
Five) TRY FC Total TRY FC Total

l. CASH AND BALANCES WITH THE CENTRAL BANK -1 52,568 424,576 477,144 43,247 347,163 390,410
Il FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT AND

LOSS (Net) -2 934 19 953 116 149 265
2.1 Financial assets held for trading 934 19 953 116 149 265
211 Public sector debt securities 27 - 27 116 - 116
2.1.2  Share certificates - - - - - -
2.1.3  Derivative financial assets held for trading 907 19 926 - 149 149
2.1.4  Other marketable securities - - - - - -
2.2 Financial assets at fair value through profit aves| - - - - - -
2.2.1  Public sector debt securities - - -
2.2.2  Share certificates - - - - - -
2.2.3  Loans - - - - - -
2.2.4  Other marketable securities - - - - - -
1. BANKS -3 64,037 209,055 273,092 80,045 206,352 286,397
V. MONEY MARKET PLACEMENTS - - - 70,015 - 70,015
4.1 Interbank money market placements - - -
4.2 Istanbul Stock Exchange money market placements - - -
4.3 Receivables from reverse repurchase agreements - - - 70,015 - 70,015
V. FINANCIAL ASSETS AVAILABLE FOR SALE (Net) -4 775,537 3 775,540 505,811 2 505,813
5.1 Share certificates 137 - 137 75 - 75
5.2 Public sector debt securities 775,400 3 775,403 505,736 2 505,738
5.3 Other marketable securities - - -
VI LOANS AND RECEIVABLES -5 2,842,700 522,442 3,365,142 2,205,853 462,435 2,668,288
6.1 Loans and receivables 2,791,783 522,442 3,314,225 2,172,355 462,435 2,634,790
6.1.1  Loans to risk group of the Bank - - - 23 - 23
6.1.2  Public sector debt securities - - - - - -
6.1.3  Other 2,791,783 522,442 3,314,225 2,172,332 462,435 2,634,767
6.2 Non-performing loans 95,570 - 95,570 69,874 - 69,874
6.3 Specific provisions (-) (44,653) - (44,653) (36,376) - (36,376)
VII. FACTORING RECEIVABLES - - - - - -
VIIL. HELD TO MATURITY INVESTMENTS (Net) 1-6 100,420 - 100,420 98,895 - 98,895
8.1 Public sector debt securities 100,420 - 100,420 98,895 - 98,895
8.2 Other marketable securities - - - - - -
IX. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (Net) -7 - - - - - -
9.1 Accounted for under equity method - - - - - -
9.2 Unconsolidated associates - - - - - -
9.2.1  Financial investments - - - - - -
9.2.2  Non-financial investments - - - - - -
X. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Net) 1-8 - - - - - -
10.1 Unconsolidated financial subsidiaries - - - - - -
10.2 Unconsolidated non-financial subsidiaries - - - - - -
XI. JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITIES (JOINT VENTURES) (Net) 1-9 - - - - - -
111 Accounted for under equity method - - - - - -
11.2 Unconsolidated - - - - - -
11.2.1 Financial subsidiaries - - - - - -
11.2.2  Non-financial subsidiaries - - - - - -
XII. LEASE RECEIVABLES (Net) 1-10 - - - - - -
12.1 Finance lease receivables - - - - - -
12.2 Operating lease receivables - - - - - -
12.3 Other - - - - - -
12.4 Unearned income ( -) - - - - - -
XI. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL ASSETS FOR HEDGING PURPOSES 1-11 - - - - - -
13.1 Fair value hedge - - - - - -
13.2 Cash flow hedge - - - - - -
13.3 Hedge of net investment in foreign operations - - - - - -
XIV. TANGIBLE ASSETS (Net) 1-12 48,020 - 48,020 36,013 - 36,013
XV. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Net) 1-13 18,231 - 18,231 20,674 - 20,674
15.1 Goodwill - - - - - -
15.2 Other 18,231 - 18,231 20,674 - 20,674
XVI. INVESTMENT PROPERTY (Net) 1-14 - - - - - -
XVIl.  TAX ASSET 1-15 3,972 - 3,972 9,708 - 9,708
17.1 Current tax asset - - - 2,234 - 2,234
17.2 Deferred tax asset 3,972 - 3,972 7,474 - 7,474
XVIIl. ASSETS HELD FOR SALE AND DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

(Net) I-16 - - - - - -
18.1 Held for sale - - - - - -
18.2 Discontinued operations - - - - - -
XIX. OTHER ASSETS 1-17 25,510 536 26,046 24,750 35 24,785

TOTAL ASSETS 3,931,929 1,156,631 5,088,560 3,095,127 1,016,136 4,111,263

The accompanying notes are an integral part ottfirancial statements.

(7)
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TURKLAND BANK ANON iM SIRKET1

BALANCE SHEETS AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2014 AND DECEMBER31, 2013

I BALANCE SHEET — LIABILITIES AND EQUITY (STATEMENT O F FINANCIAL

POSITION)
Audited Current Audited
Period Prior Period
31.12.2014 31.12.2013
Note
Ref.
(Section
Five) TRY FC Total TRY FC Total
l. DEPOSITS II-1 2,157,865 1,430,6603,588,5251,649,4821,187,655 2,837,137
11 Deposits from risk group of tlBank 86,815 3,608 90,423 33,772 742 34,514
1.2 Other 2,071,050 1,427,0523,498,1021,615,7101,186,913 2,802,623
1. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL LIABILITIESHELD FOR T  RADING 1I-2 9 59 68 727 - 727
1. FUNDS BORROWED 11-3 13,812 124,440 138,252 27,199 189,796 216,995
\A MONEY MARKET BALANCES 430,464 - 430,464 395,085 - 395,085
4.1 Interbank money market takings - - - 24,505 - 24,505
4.2 Istanbul Stock Exchange money market takings - - - - - -
4.3 Funds provided under repurchase agreements 1I-4 430,464 - 430,464 370,580 - 370,580
V. MARKETABLE SECURITIES ISSUED (Net) - - - - - -
5.1 Bills - - - - - -
5.2 Asset backed securities - - - - - -
5.3 Bonds - - - - - -
VI FUNDS - - - - - -
6.1 Borrower funds - - - - - -
6.2 Other - - - - - -
VII. SUNDRY CREDITORS 52,464 9,282 61,746 19,168 6,383 25,551
VIIIL OTHER LIABILITIES 1I-5 38,957 1,491 40,448 36,544 1,483 38,027
IX. FACTORING PAYABLES - - - - - -
X. LEASE PAYABLES (Net) 11-6 - - - - - -
10.1 Finance lease payables - - - - - -
10.2 Operating lease payables - - - - - -
10.3 Other - - - - - -
10.4 Deferred finance lease expenses ( - ) - - - - - -
XI. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL LIABILITIES FOR HEDGING
PURPOSES -7 - - - - - -
11.1 Fair value hedge - - - - - -
11.2 Cash flow hedge - - - - - -
11.3 Hedge of net investment in foreign operation - - - - - -
Xil. PROVISIONS 1I-8 60,731 730 61,461 48,625 674 49,299
12.1 General loan loss provisions 32,370 - 32,370 30,368 - 30,368
12.2 Restructuring reserves - - - - - -
12.3 Reserve for employee benefits 10,529 - 10,529 7,743 - 7,743
12.4 Insurance technical reserves (Net) - - - - - -
125 Other provisions 17,832 730 18,562 10,514 674 11,188
Xill.  TAX LIABILITY 11-9 13,859 - 13,859 8,637 - 8,637
13.1 Current tax liability 13,859 - 13,859 8,637 - 8,637
13.2 Deferred tax liability - - - - - -
XIV. PAYABLES RELATED TO ASSETS HELD FOR SALE AND
DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS 1-10 - - - - - -
14.1 Held for sale - - - - - -
14.2 Discontinued operations - - - - - -
XV. SUBORDINATED LOANS I-11 - - - - - -
XVI. SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY 11-12 753,737 - 753,737 539,805 - 539,805
16.1 Paid-in capital 650,000 - 650,000 500,000 - 500,000
16.2 Supplementary capital 25,056 - 25,056 (6,945) - (6,945)
16.2.1 Share premium - - - - - -
16.2.2  Share cancellation profits - - - - - -
16.2.3 Marketable securities value increase fund (265) - (265) (32,944) - (32,944)
16.2.4 Tangible assets revaluation differences - - - - - -
16.2.5 Intangible assets revaluation differences - - - - - -
16.2.6  Investment property revaluation differesc - - - - - -
16.2.7 Bonus shares obtained from associatesidsabies and jointly controlled
entities (joint vent.) 45 - 45 - - -
16.2.8 Hedging funds (Effective portion) - - - - - -
16.2.9 Accumulated valuation differences fromets$ield for sale and from
discontinued operations - - - - - -
16.2.10 Other capital reserves 25,276 - 25,276 25,999 - 25,999
16.3 Profit reserves 46,750 - 46,750 32,349 - 32,349
16.3.1 Legal reserves 2,322 - 2,322 1,602 - 1,602
16.3.2  Statutory reserves - - - - - -
16.3.3  Extraordinary reserves 37,377 - 37,377 23,696 - 23,696
16.3.4  Other profit reserves 7,051 - 7,051 7,051 - 7,051
16.4 Profit or loss 31,931 - 31,931 14,401 - 14,401
16.4.1  Prior years’ income/ (losses) - - - - - -
16.4.2  Current year income/ (loss) 31,931 - 31,931 14,401 - 14,401
16.5 Minority shares 11-13 - - - - - -

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

3,521,898 1,566,6625,088,5602,725,2721,385,991 4,111,263

The accompanying notes are an integral part oetfirancial statements.
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Translated into English from the original Turkish r eport and financial statements

TURKLAND BANK ANON iM SIRKET1
BALANCE SHEETS AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2014 AND DECEMBER31, 2013

STATEMENT OF OFF-BALANCE SHEET CONTINGENCIES AN D COMMITMENTS

Audited Audited
Current Period Prior Period
31.12.2014 31.12.2013
Note Ref.
(Section
Five) TRY FC Total TRY FC Total
A. OFF BALANCE SHEET CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS (I+lI+111) 1,609,294 834,550 2,443,844 7,613,981 729,283 8,343,264
I GUARANTEES -1 1,361,040 682,283 2,043,323 1,064,803 616,579 1,681,382
11 Letters of guarantee 1,360,112 397,604 1,757,716 1,064,644 302,261 1,366,905
1.1.1  Guarantees subject to State Tender Law 14,141 9,108 23,249 11,430 7,993 19,423
1.1.2  Guarantees given for foreign trade operations 81,279 54,894 136,173 67,012 20,040 87,052
1.1.3  Other letters of guarantee 1,264,692 333,602 1,598,294 986,202 274,228 1,260,430
1.2 Bank loans - 2,532 2,532 - 7,824 7,824
1.2.1 Import letter of acceptance - 2,532 2,532 - 7,824 7,824
1.2.2  Other bank acceptances - - - - - -
13 Letters of credit 78 164,633 164,711 84 160,613 160,697
1.3.1 Documentary letters of credit 78 164,633 164,711 84 160,613 160,697
1.3.2  Other letters of credit - - - - - -
1.4 Prefinancing given as guarantee - - - - - -
15 Endorsements - - - - - -
1.5.1 Endorsements to the Central Bank of Turkey - - - - - -
1.5.2  Other endorsements - - - - - -
1.6 Securities issue purchase guarantees - - - - - -
1.7 Factoring guarantees - - - - - -
1.8 Other guarantees 850 117,514 118,364 75 145,881 145,956
1.9 Other collaterals - - - - - -
1I. COMMITMENTS -1 159,176 15,928 175,104 6,520,876 26,580 6,547,456
2.1 Irrevocable commitments 159,176 15,928 175,104 254,054 26,580 280,634
211 Forward asset purchase and sales commitments 3,260 6,374 9,634 3,087 12,597 15,684
212 Forward deposit purchase and sales commitments - - - - - -
2.13 Share capital commitment to associates and subisislia - - - - - -
2.1.4  Loan granting commitments 48,896 - 48,896 157,758 - 157,758
2.1.5  Securities underwriting commitments - - - - - -
2.16 Commitments for reserve deposit requirements - - - - - -
217 Payment commitment for checks 105,800 - 105,800 85,587 - 85,587
2.1.8  Taxand fund liabilities from export commitments - - - - - -
2.1.9  Commitments for credit card expenditure limits - - - - - -
2.1.10 commitments for promotions related with credit caadd banking activities - - - - - -
2.1.11 Receivables from short sale commitments - - - - - -
2.1.12 Payables for short sale commitments - - - - - -
2.1.13 Other irrevocable commitments 1,220 9,554 10,774 7,622 13,983 21,605
2.2 Revocable commitments - - - 6,266,822 - 6,266,822
2.2.1  Revocable loan granting commitments - - - 6,266,822 - 6,266,822
2.2.2  Other revocable commitments - - - - - -
1. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS -2 89,078 136,339 225,417 28,302 86,124 114,426
3.1 Derivative financial instruments for hedging purges - - - - - -
3.1.1 Fair value hedge - - - - - -
3.1.2  cash flow hedge - - - - - -
3.1.3 Hedge of net investment in foreign operations - - - - - -
3.2 Held for trading transactions 89,078 136,339 225,417 28,302 86,124 114,426
3.2.1 Forward foreign currency buy/sell transactions 5,024 5,022 10,046 1,324 1,382 2,706
3.2.1.1 Forward foreign currency transactions-buy 2,513 2,511 5,024 658 696 1,354
3.2.1.2 Forward foreign currency transactions-sell 2,511 2,511 5,022 666 686 1,352
3.2.2  Swap transactions related to foreign currency.iafedest rates - 48,075 48,075 - 56,996 56,996
3.2.2.1 Foreign currency swaps-buy - 24,011 24,011 - 28,552 28,552
3.2.2.2 Foreign currency swaps-sell - 24,064 24,064 - 28,444 28,444
3.2.2.3 Interest rate swaps-buy - - - - - -
3.2.2.4 Interest rate swaps-sell - - - - - -
3.2.3  Foreign currency, interest rate and securitiesoopti 538 546 1,084 1,772 1,850 3,622
3.2.3.1 Foreign currency options-buy 269 273 542 886 925 1,811
3.2.3.2 Foreign currency options-sell 269 273 542 886 925 1,811
3.2.3.3 Interest rate options-buy - - - - - -
3.2.3.4 Interest rate options-sell - - - - - -
3.2.3.5 Securities options-buy - - - - - -
3.2.3.6 Securities options-sell - - - - - -
3.24 Foreign currency futures - - - - - -
3.2.4.1 Foreign currency futures-buy - - - - - -
3.2.4.2 Foreign currency futures-sell - - - - - -
3.25 Interest rate futures - - - - - -
3.2.5.1 |Interest rate futures-buy - - - - - -
3.2.5.2 Interest rate futures-sell - - - - - -
3.2.6  oOther 83,516 82,696 166,212 25,206 25,896 51,102
B. CUSTODY AND PLEDGED ITEMS (IV+V+VI) 73,622,569 6,565,254 80,187,823 29,792,397 2,928,497 32,720,894
\"A ITEMS HELD IN CUSTODY 597,396 66,013 663,409 470,300 57,737 528,037
4.1. Assets under management - - - - - -
4.2, Investment securities held in custody 11,090 4,744 15,834 12,061 3,454 15,515
4.3. Checks received for collection 571,465 56,503 627,968 455,499 49,517 505,016
4.4, Commercial notes received for collection 14,841 2,910 17,751 2,740 4,112 6,852
4.5. Other assets received for collection - 1,838 1,838 - 637 637
4.6. Assets received for public offering - - - - - -
4.7. Other items under custody - 18 18 - 17 17
4.8. Custodians - - - - - -
V. PLEDGED ITEMS 73,025,173 6,499,241 79,524,414 29,322,097 2,870,760 32,192,857
5.1. Marketable securities 661 - 661 661 - 661
5.2 Guarantee notes 35,506 15,943 51,449 8,812 21,787 30,599
5.3. Commodities 1,646 - 1,646 1,646 - 1,646
5.4. Warrants - - - - - -
5.5. Properties 2,738,012 153,175 2,891,187 2,778,501 283,654 3,062,155
5.6. Other pledged items 70,249,348 6,330,123 76,579,471 26,532,477 2,565,319 29,097,796
5.7. Pledged items-depository - - - - - -
VLI ACCEPTED INDEPENDENT GUARANTEES AND WARRANTIES - - - - - -
TOTAL OFF BALANCE SHEET ACCOUNTS (A+B) 75,231,863 7,399,804 82,631,667 37,406,378 3,657,780 41,064,158

The accompanying notes are an integral part oetfirancial statements.
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Translated into English from the original Turkish r eport and financial statements

TURKLAND BANK ANON iM SIRKET1
STATEMENTS OF INCOME FOR THE PERIODS
ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2014 AND 2012

(Amounts expressed in thousands of Turkish LifaYTunless otherwise stated.)

.  STATEMENT OF INCOME

Note Audited Audited
(Section Current Period Prior Period
Five) 01.01-31.12.2014 01.01-31.12.2013

I INTEREST INCOME V-1 441,218 280,614
11 Interest on loans 368,099 236,396
1.2 Interest received from reserve deposits 195 -
1.3 Interest received from banks 494 532
14 Interest received from money market placements 62 205
1.5 Interest received from marketable securitietfq@iam 71,096 41,737
151 Held-for-trading financial assets 5 4
15.2 Financial assets at fair value through piofd loss - -
153 Available-for-sale financial assets 62,831 36,614
154 Investments held-to-maturity 8,260 5,119
1.6 Finance lease income - -
1.7 Other interest income 1,272 1,744
1. INTEREST EXPENSE V-2 (259,911) (160,159)
2.1 Interest on deposits (218,618) (136,593)
2.2 Interest on funds borrowed (4,631) (6,790)
2.3 Interest on money market borrowings (34,784) (16,305)
2.4 Interest on securities issued - -
25 Other interest expense (1,878) (471)
. NET INTEREST INCOME (I - Il) 181,307 120,455
V. NET FEES AND COMMISSIONS INCOME 28,080 22,280
4.1 Fees and commissions received 29,710 23,648
411 Non-cash loans 16,123 11,970
4.1.2 Other IV-12 13,587 11,678
4.2 Fees and commissions paid (1,630) (1,368)
421 Non-cash loans (83) (53)
422 Other IV-12 (1,547) (1,315)
V. DIVIDEND INCOME V-3 17 -
VI. NET TRADING INCOME V-4 1,126 6,862
6.1 Securities trading gains/ (losses) 12 7,411
6.2 Gain/(losses) from derivative financial instents (19,817) 854
6.3 Foreign exchange gains/ (losses) 20,931 (1,403)
VII. OTHER OPERATING INCOME IV-5 37,882 24,003
VIII. NET OPERATING INCOME (IlI+IV+V+VI+VII) 248,412 173,600
IX. PROVISION FOR LOAN LOSSES AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (-) IV-6 (44,826) (27,277)
X. OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES (-) V-7 (163,344) (126,196)
XI. NET OPERATING INCOME/(LOSS) (VIII-IX-X) 40,242 20,127
XII. AMOUNT IN EXCESS RECORDED AS GAIN AFTER MERGER - -
Xil. PROFIT / (LOSS) ON INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR UNDER THE

EQUITY METHOD - -
XIV. GAIN / (LOSS) ON NET MONETARY POSITION - -
XV. PROFIT/(LOSS) FROM CONTINUED OPERATIONS BEFORE TAXES

XI+...+XIV) V-8 40,242 20,127
XVI. TAX PROVISION FOR CONTINUED OPERATIONS () V-9 (8,311) (5,726)
16.1 Provision for current income taxes (12,979) -
16.2 Provision for deferred taxes 4,668 (5,726)
XVII. NET PROFIT/(LOSS) FROM CONTINUED OPERATIONS ( XV+XVI) IV-10 31,931 14,401
XVIIL. INCOME ON DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS - -
18.1 Income on assets held for sale - -
18.2 Income on sale of associates, subsidiariegoamttl controlled entities (Joint

ventures) - -
18.3 Income on other discontinued operations - -
XIX. LOSS FROM DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (-) - -
19.1 Loss from assets held for sale - -
19.2 Loss on sale of associates, subsidiariesaamidljcontrolled entities (Joint ventures) - -
19.3 Loss from other discontinued operations - -
XX. PROFIT / (LOSS) ON DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS BEFORE TAXES

(XVII-XIX) - -
XXI. TAX PROVISION FOR DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS () - -
21.1 Provision for current income taxes - -
21.2 Provision for deferred taxes - -
XXII. NET PROFIT/LOSS FROM DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (XX+XXI) - -
XXIII. NET PROFIT/LOSS (XVII+XXIl) IvV-11 31,931 14,401

The accompanying notes are an integral part oetfirancial statements.
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Translated into English from the original Turkish r eport and financial statements

TURKLAND BANK ANON iM SIRKET1

STATEMENTS OF PROFIT LOSS ACCOUNTED FOR UNDER EQUITY

FOR THE PERIODS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2014 AND 2013
(Amounts expressed in thousands of Turkish LifaYYunless otherwise stated.)

Iv. STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNTED FOR UNDER EQUITY
Audited Audited
Current Period Prior Period
01.01-31.12.2014 01.01-31.12.2013
I.  Additions to marketable securities revaluation dfferences for available for sale financial assets 40,849 (44,804)
Il.  Tangible assets revaluation differences - -
lll.  Intangible assets revaluation differences - -
IV.  Foreign currency translation differences for fareign currency transactions - -
V.  Profit/Loss from derivative financial instruments for cash flow hedge purposes (Effective portion
of fair value differences) - -
VI.  Profit/Loss from derivative financial instruments for hedge of net investment in foreign operatias
(Effective portion of fair value differences) - -
VII.  The effect of corrections of errors and changs in accounting policies R R
VIII.  Other profit loss items accounted for under equity due to TAS (678) 568
IX.  Deferred tax of valuation differences (8,170) 10,442
X.  Total Net Profit/Loss accounted under equity (I+l+...+IX) 32,001 (33,794)
XI.  Profit/Loss 31,931 6,996
1.1  Change in fair value of marketable securitleaifsfer to Profit/Loss) - (7,405)
1.2 Reclassification and transfer of derivativesoamted for cash flow hedge purposes to Income Siext - -
1.3  Transfer of hedge of net investments in far@igerations to Income Statement - -
1.4  Other 31,931 14,401
Xll.  Total Profit/Loss accounted for in the period (X+XI) 63,932 (26,798)

The accompanying notes are an integral part oetfirancial statements.
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Translated into English from the original Turkish r eport and financial statements

TURKLAND BANK ANON iM SIRKET 1
STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY

FOR THE PERIODS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2014 AND 2013
(Amounts expressed in thousands of Turkish LifaYYunless otherwise stated.)

V. STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
Audited Effect Of
Inflation
Accounting
On Acc. Valuation
Prior Period — 01.01-31.12.2013 Capital an Share Prior Marketable Tangible And Diff. from Assets  Total Equity
Note Othel Certificate Extraordina Current Period Period Securities Intangible Assets Bonus Shares Held for Sale Before
(Sectior Paid-in Capita Share Cancellatio Legal  Statutory ry Other Net Income/ Net Value Increase Revaluation Obtained from and Assets from Minority Minority Total
Five) Capital Reserves Premium  n Profits  Reserves Reserves Reserves Reserves (Loss) Income/ (Loss) Fund Differences Associates Hedging Funds Disc. Op. Shares Shares Equity
I Prior opening balance 300,00( 25,43: - - 967 - 15,927 2,74¢ 12,70¢ - 8,82¢ - - - 366,60 - 366,60
1. Changes in accounting policies accordin
TAS 8 - - - - - - -
21 Effects of error - - - - - - - - - - - -
2.z Effects of the changes in accounting poli - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
1. New balance (I+11) 300,00( 25,43: - 967 - 15,927 2,74¢ 12,70¢ - 8,82« - - - 366,60 366,60
Changes in the peri - - - - - - - (12,709 12,70¢ - - - - - -
V. Increase/Decrease related to merg - - - - - - - - - - - -
V. Marketable securities valuation difference - - - - - (41,768 - - - (41,768 (41,768
VI Hedging Funds (Effective Portion - - - - - - - - - - - -
6.1 Casl-flow hedgt - - - - - - - - - - - -
6.2 Hedge of net investment in foreign operat - - - - - - - - - - - -
VIIL Tangible assets revaluatiordifferences - - - - - - - - - - - -
VIl Intangible assets revaluation difference - - - - - - - - - - - -
IX. Bonus shares obtained from associate
subsidiaries and jointly controlled entities
(Joint ventures) - - - - - - - - - - - -
X Foreign exchange difference - - - - - - - - - - - -
XI. The disposal of asse - - - - - - - - - - - -
Xl The reclassification of asse - - - - - - - - - - - -
Xl The effect of chang in associate’s equit - - - - - - - - - - - - -
XIV. Capital increase 200,00( - - - - - - - - - - 200,001 200,001
14.1 Caslt 200,00( - - - - - - - - - - 200,001 200,001
14z Internal source - - - - - - - - - - - B B
XV Share premium - - - - - - - - - - - -
XVI Share cancellation profit: - - - - - - - - - - - -
XVl Inflation adjustment to paid-in capital - - - - - - - - - - - -
XVIIL Other(*) 56¢ - - - - - - - - - 56¢ 56¢
XIX Period net income/(loss - - - - - - 14,40: - - - - - 14,40: 14,40:
XX Profit distribution - - 63t - 7,76¢ 4,30¢ - (12,709 - - - - - -
20.1 Dividends distribute - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
20.z Transfers to reserv - - 63t - 7,76¢ 4,308 - (12,709 - - - - - -
20.2 Othel - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
Closing Balanct
(1. AXVIEXVIHXVIII) 500,000 25,999 - - 1,602 - 23,696 7,051 14,401 - (32,944) - - - 539,805 539,805

*)

Represents acturial gains and losses amoudet danuary 1, 2013 are accounted under equitgdordance with revised Turkish Accounting Standded19 published in the Official
Gazette on 12 March 2013 (Comminugie No:28585)

The accompanying notes are an integral part otfirancial statements.

12)



Translated into English from the original Turkish r eport and financial statements

TURKLAND BANK ANON iM SIRKET 1
STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY

FOR THE PERIODS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2014 AND 2013
(Amounts expressed in thousands of Turkish LifaYYunless otherwise stated.)

1
V. STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Effect O
Inflation
Accounting
On Acc. Valuation
Capital an Share Prior Marketable Tangible And Diff. from Assets  Total Equity
Othel Certificate Extraordina Current Period Period Securities  Intangible Assets Bonus Shares Held for Sale Before
Paid-in Capita Share Cancellatio Legal  Statutory ry Other Net Income/ Net Value Increase Revaluation Obtained from and Assets from Minority Minority Total
Audited (Note) Capital Reserves Premium  n Profits  Reserves Reserves Reserves Reserves (Loss) Income/ (Loss) Fund Differences Associates Hedging Funds Disc. Op. Shares Shares Equity
Current Period - 01.03-31.12.201¢
I Prior period balance- 31.12.203 500,00( 25,99¢ - 1,60z - 23,69t 7,052 14,40 - (32,944 - - - 539,80! 539,80
Changes in the peri - - - - - - - (14,401 14,40 - - - - - -
. Increase/Decrease related to merg - - - - - - - - - - - -
1. Marketable securities valuation difference - - - - - - 32,67¢ - - - 32,67¢ 32,67¢
V. Hedging Funds (Effective Portion - - - - - - - - - - - -
4.1 Casl-flow hedgt - - - - - - - - - - -
4.z Hedge of net investment in foreign operat - - - - - - - - - - -
V. Tangible assets revaluation difference - - - - - - - - - - -
VI Intangible assets revaluatiol differences - - - - - - - - - - -
VI Bonus shares obtained from associate
subsidiaries and jointly controlled entities
(Joint ventures) - - - - - - - - 45 - 45 45
VIl Foreign exchange difference - - - - - - - - - - - -
IX. The disposal of asse - - - - - - - - - - -
X. The reclassification of asse - - - - - - - - - - -
XI. The effect of change in associate’s equ - - - - - - - - - - - - -
XIl. Capital increast 150,00( - - - - - - - - - - 150,00t 150,00(
121 Cast 150,00( - - - - - - - - - - 150,001 150,00(
12z Internal source - - - - - - - - - - - - -
XIlL. Share premium - - - - - - - - - - -
XIV. Share cancellation profit: - - - - - - - - - - -
XV. Inflation adjustment to paid-in capital - - - - - - - - - - - -
XVI. Other(*) (723 - - - - - - - - - (723 (723
XVII. Period net income/(loss - - - - - - 31,93: - - - - - 31,93: 31,93
XVIIL Profit distribution - - 72C - 13,68: - - (14,401 - - - - - -
18.1 Dividends distribute - - - - - - - - - - - - -
18.2 Transfers to reserv - - 72C - 13,68: - - (14,401 - - - - -
182 Othel - - - - - - - - - - - - -
Closing Balanct
(I+1+1+. . +XVIEXVIHX VI 650,000 25,276 - - 2,322 - 37,377 7,051 31,931 - (265) - 45 - 753,737 753,737

*)

Represents acturial gains and losses amouet danuary 1, 2013 are accounted under equitgdnrdance with revised Turkish Accounting Standdod19 published in the Official
Gazette on 12 March 2013 (Comminugie No:28585)

The accompanying notes are an integral part otfirancial statements.
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Translated into English from the original Turkish r eport and financial statements

TURKLAND BANK ANON iM SIRKET i
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE PERIODS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2014 AND 2013
(Amounts expressed in thousands of Turkish LifaYTunless otherwise stated.)

VI.  STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Note Audited Audited
(Section  Current Period Prior Period
Five) 01.01-31.12.2014 01.01-31.12.2013

A CASH FLOWS FROM BANKING OPERATIONS

11 Operating profit before changes in operating aets and liabilities 70,373 (37,923)
1.1.1 Interest received 403,136 207,060
1.1.2 Interest paid (247,550) (157,785)
1.1.3 Dividend received 17 -
1.1.4 Fees and commissions received 31,312 24,873
1.1.5 Other income 5,121 363
1.1.6 Collections from previously written off loans 24,819 22,393
1.1.7 Payments to personnel and service suppliers (76,255) (65,327)
1.1.8 Taxes paid (2,193) (1,403)
1.1.9 Others VI-1 (68,034) (68,097)
1.2 Changes in operating assets and liabilities (109,462) 179,774
1.2.1 Net (increase) decrease in financial assdtsfor trading 90 59
1.2.2 Net (increase) decrease in financial as$étsrasalue through profit or loss - -
1.2.3 Net (increase) decrease in due from banko#m financial institutions (62,913) (149,265)
1.2.4 Net (increase) decrease in loans (774,655) (644,800)
1.2.5 Net (increase) decrease in other assets VI-1 (7,111) 16,924
1.2.6 Netincrease (decrease) in bank deposits 19,118 207,142
1.2.7 Netincrease (decrease) in other deposits 754,290 663,433
1.2.8 Netincrease (decrease) in funds borrowed (77,744) 84,474
1.2.9 Netincrease (decrease) in matured payables - -
1.2.10 Net increase (decrease) in other liabilities VI-1 39,463 1,807
. Net cash provided from banking operations (39,089) 141,851

B. CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Il Net cash provided from investing activities (189,057) (315,453)
2.1 Cash paid for purchase of jointly controlledit&s, associates and subsidiaries - -

2.2 Cash obtained from sale of jointly controlleditées, associates and subsidiaries -
2.3 Fixed assets purchases (10,588) (2,521)

2.4 Fixed assets sales 10,228 1,703
2.5 Cash paid for purchase of financial assetdaaifor sale (242,818) (387,728)
2.6 Cash obtained from sale of financial asset#adbla for sale 58,545 127,216
2.7 Cash paid for purchase of investment securities (20,016) (82,678)
2.8 Cash obtained from sale of investment secaritie 20,443 53,129
2.9  Others (4,851) (24,574)

C. CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
IIl.  Net cash provided from financing activities 150,045 200,000

3.1 Cash obtained from funds borrowed and secsiiggued - -
3.2 Cash used for repayment of funds borrowed aodr#ies issued - -
3.3 Issued capital instruments - -
3.4 Dividends paid - -
35 Payments for finance leases - -

3.6 Other 150,045 200,000
V. Effect of change in foreign exchange rate on sk and cash equivalents VI-1 18,499 31,007
V. Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash ecplents (59,602) 57,405
VI. Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of thegpiod VI-2 416,343 358,938
VII.  Cash and cash equivalents at end of the period VI-2 356,741 416,343

The accompanying notes are an integral part ottfirancial statements.
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Translated into English from the original Turkish r eport and financial statements
TURKLAND BANK ANON iM SIRKET i
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF PROFIT APPROPRIATION

FOR THE PERIODS ENDED 31 ARALIK 2014 AND 2013
(Amounts expressed in thousands of Turkish Lira (TRMess otherwise stated.)

VIl.  PROFIT DISTRIBUTION TABLE

Audited Audited
Current Period Prior Period
31.12.204 (*) 31.12.203
I DISTRIBUTION OF CURRENT YEAR INCOME
1.1 CURRENT YEAR INCOME 40,242 20,127
1.2 TAXES AND DUTIES PAYABLE (-) (8,311) (5,726)
1.2.1 Corporate tax (Income tax) (12,979) -
1.2.2  Income witholding tax - -
1.2.3 Other taxes and duties(**) 4,668 (5,726)
A. NET INCOME FOR THE YEAR (1.1-1.2) 31,931 14,401

13 PRIOR YEARS' LOSSES (-) - -
14 FIRST LEGAL RESERVES (-) - 720
15 OTHER STATUTORY RESERVES (-) - -

B. NET INCOME AVAILABLE FOR DISTRIBUTION [(A-(1.3+1 .4+1.5)]

1.6 FIRST DIVIDEND TO SHAREHOLDERS (-) - -
1.6.1 To owners of ordinary shares - -
1.6.2 To owners of preferred shares - -
1.6.3 To owners of preferred shares (preemptives)g - -
1.6.4 To profit sharing bonds - -
1.6.5 To holders of profit and loss sharing ceggifes - -
1.7 DIVIDENDS TO PERSONNEL (-) - -
1.8 DIVIDENDS TO BOARD OF DIRECTORS (-) - -
1.9 SECOND DIVIDEND TO SHAREHOLDERS (-) - -
1.9.1 To owners of ordinary shares - -
1.9.2 To owners of preferred shares - -
1.9.3 To owners of preferred shares (preemptivets)g - -
1.9.4 To profit sharing bonds - -
1.9.5 To holders of profit and loss sharing ceggifes - -
1.10 SECOND LEGAL RESERVES (-) - -
1.11 STATUTORY RESERVES (-) - -
1.12 EXTRAORDINARY RESERVES - 13,681
1.13 OTHER RESERVES - -
1.14 SPECIAL FUNDS - -

1. DISTRIBUTION OF RESERVES

21 DISTRIBUTED RESERVES - -
2.2 SECOND LEGAL RESERVES (-) - -
2.3 DIVIDENDS TO SHAREHOLDERS (-) - -
2.3.1 To owners of ordinary shares - -
2.3.2 To owners of preferred shares - -
2.3.3 To owners of preferred shares (preemptives)g - -
2.3.4 To profit sharing bonds - -
2.3.5 To holders of profit and loss sharing ceréifes - -
2.4 DIVIDENDS TO PERSONNEL (-) - -
25 DIVIDENDS TO BOARD OF DIRECTORS (-)

M. EARNINGS PER SHARE (***)

3.1 TO OWNERS OF ORDINARY SHARES - -
3.2 TO OWNERS OF ORDINARY SHARES ( % ) - -
3.3 TO OWNERS OF PREFERRED SHARES - -
3.4  TO OWNERS OF PREFERRED SHARES (%)

V. DIVIDEND PER SHARE

4.1 TO OWNERS OF ORDINARY SHARES - -
4.2 TO OWNERS OF ORDINARY SHARES (%) - -
4.3 TO OWNERS OF PREFERRED SHARES - -
4.4 TO OWNERS OF PREFERRED SHARES (% )

(*)  Profit distribution is decided by the Generas®embly. General Assembly is not held as of the dhthis report.
(**) Deferred Tax Income amounts shown in Othekdgand Duties are not subject to profit distributi
(***) As the Bank is not publicly listed the inforation on earnings per shares is not disclosed.

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktfirancial statements.
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TURKLAND BANK ANON iM SIRKET i
NOTES TO THE UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (C ONTINUED)

AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2014
(Amounts expressed in thousands of Turkish Lira (TRMess otherwise stated.)

SECTION THREE
ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES

l. Basis of Presentation

The financial statements are prepared in accordarite the “Regulation on the Principles and Procedu
Regarding Banks’ Accounting Applications and Sateding of Documents” published in the Official Gtee
No. 26333 dated November 1, 2006 by the BankinguRe¢ign and Supervision Agency (“BRSA”) which refer
to “Turkish Accounting Standards” (“TAS”) and “Tusgh Financial Reporting Standards (“TFRS”) issugd b
the Public Oversight Accounting and Auditing StamidaAuthority and other decrees, notes and exptamat
related to the accounting and financial reportimngiples (all “Turkish Accounting Standards” or AB”")
published by the BRSA. The format and the detaflsthe publicly announced unconsolidated financial
statements and related disclosures to these statefm@ve been prepared in accordance with the “Gomgqué
Related to Publicly Announced Financial Statemearit8anks and Explanations and Notes Related toethes
Financial Statements” and changes and notes tadmsnuniqué published in the Official Gazette N8327
dated September 28, 2012. The Bank’s accountingsarce prepared in accordance with Banking LawkiShr
Commercial Code and Turkish Tax Legislations inKiglr Lira.

The preparation of financial statements in confoynaith TAS requires the use of certain criticataenting
estimates by the Bank management to exercisedtgjent on the assets and liabilities on the balaheet and
contingent issues as of the balance sheet dateseThstimates are being reviewed regularly and, when
necessary, suitable corrections are made and fbetebf these corrections are explained in thatedl notes
and reflected to the income statement.

The accounting policies adopted in the preparatibthe Bank’s financial statements are consisteitth the
accounting policies adopted for financial staterseldted December 31, 2013 and changes of TAS/TR&3st
effective from January 1, 2014 have an immaterifdce on the accounting policies, financial positiand
performance of the Bank. These accounting poliares valuation principles are explained in Note®IXXII.
Changes in TAS and TFRS are issued but not yettaféeas the date of the financial statements it
exception of TFRS 9 Financial Instruments Standatdsnot have any effect on the accounting policies,
financial position and performance of the Bank. Thenk is assessing the impact of TFRS 9 Financial
Instruments Standard.

Except for trading and available for sale assetbdmtivatives that are shown at fair values, finanstatements
are prepared based on historical cost.

Additional paragraph for convenience translation:

The effects of differences between accounting jplas and standards set out by regulations in ¢arifg with
Articles 37 of the Banking Act No: 5411 and the@atting principles generally accepted in countiewhich

the accompanying unconsolidated financial statesnexe to be distributed and International Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRS) have not been quantifiethe accompanying financial statements. Accaigin
the accompanying unconsolidated financial statesnare not intended to present the financial positiesults

of operations and changes in financial position aash flows in accordance with the accounting fpirs
generally accepted in such countries and IFRS.

I. Explanations on Usage Strategy of Financial Asts and Foreign Currency Transactions

The Bank focuses its activities in corporate bagkifhe primary objective of the Bank is to sustaigquidity
while fulfilling customer needs. Thus, the Bankqgaa approximately 21.37% of its resources in dgassets,
while the Bank also aims for the highest yield jusswith effective maturity management.

Besides its principle activity, the main finandiatruments of the Bank are money market placeméeissury
bills and government bonds.

Marketable securities comprising 17.21% of tetsdets are assets with low risk and high yieldcdphents in
domestic banks and abroad are 5.37% of the totat@sand these assets provide liquidity with losk @nd
yield.
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Il. Explanations on Usage Strategy of Financial Asts and Foreign Currency Transactions(continued)

The Bank aims at creating an optimum maturity @sld working with a positive margin between cost of
resource and product yield in the process of asstiability management.

As a component of the risk management strategheBiank, the management of risk bearing short ipasitof
currency, interest or price movements is perforroply by the Treasury and using the limits defingdtihe
Board of Directors.

lll.  Explanations on Forward and Option Contracts and Derivative Instruments

The Bank’s derivative instruments consist of foreigurrency swaps,forward foreign currency buy/sell
transactions and options. Derivative instrumengsaacounted for at their fair values as of the remttdate and
subsequently valued at fair value. Certain deneatnstruments, although economical hedges, areuated as
trading transactions since they are not qualifiedoé a hedging instrument as per “Financial Insémutst
Recognition and Measurement” (“TAS 39”). Realizeaing or losses on these instruments are refleatekei
statement of income. Unrealized gains or lossesingrifrom the change in the fair value are recoraed
disallowable expenses or income according to theentitax legislation.

Contract amounts of derivatives are recorded inhafbalance sheet contingencies and commitments.

There are no embedded derivatives separated framhtst contract or that are designated as hedging
instruments as of the balance sheet date.

IV.  Explanations on Interest Income and Expenses

Interest income and expenses are recognized ifntmme statement on an accrual basis using thetieie
interest method. In accordance with the regulatinrfMethods and Principles for the DeterminationLo&ns
and Other Receivables to be Reserved for and Allmteof Reserves” published in the Official Gazette
numbered 26333 dated November 1, 2006, interesualscof the non-performing loans are reversed and
interest income related to these loans is recoadddterest income only when collected.

V. Explanations on Fees and Commission Income andkgenses

All fees and commission income/expenses are rezedmds income at the time of realization and dutirgy
service is provided. Loan related fees and compmsspaid to or received from the other institutiare
considered as transaction costs and accounted tigirgffective interest method.

VI.  Explanations on Financial Assets

Financial instruments comprise financial assetsarfcial liabilities and derivative instruments. dfcial
instruments affect liquidity, market, and crediks on the Bank’s balance sheet in all respectsk Bades
these instruments on behalf of its customers anitsawn behalf.

Basically, financial assets create the majoritytt@f commercial activities and operations of the lBarhese
instruments expose, affect and diminish the ligyidiredit and interest risks in the financial staents.

All regular way purchases and sales of financiabtsare recognized on the settlement date. Ttierseht date
is the date that the asset is delivered to or byBiink. Settlement date accounting requires (ajuting of the

asset when acquired by the institution and (kgpaking of the asset out of the balance sheeteoddte settled
by the institution; and accounting of gain or l@ss disposal. Changes in fair value of assets toebeived

during the period between the trade date and thierment date are accounted for in the same wathas
acquired assets.

Regular way purchases or sales are purchasesegrafdinancial assets that require delivery oétswithin the
time frame generally established by regulationamvention in the market place.
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VI.  Explanations on Financial Assets (continued)

The methods and assumptions used in the recogritidrmeasurement of financial instruments are iowesd
below.

Cash, Banks, and Other Financial Institutions

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on han@ndedeposits, and highly liquid short-term investis
with maturity of 3 months or less following the phase date, not bearing risk of significant valhange, and
that are readily convertible to a known amount a§tcand are carried at amortized cost. The boalesabf
these assets approximate their fair values.

Financial Assets at Fair Value Through Profit anodisks

Trading securities are securities which were eitteguired for generating a profit from short-tedocfuations
in price or dealer’s margin, or are securitiesudeld in a portfolio with a pattern of short-ternofirtaking.

Trading securities are initially recognized at cfshich represents the fair value at the time). Plsitive
difference between the cost and fair value of seeturities in the accounts is accounted for agdsteand
income accrual, and the negative difference is autenl for as “Impairment Provision on Marketable
Securities”.

Held to Maturity Investments

Investments held to maturity include securitieshvwiiked or determinable payments and fixed matuiihere
there is an intention of holding till maturity artle relevant conditions for fulfillment of such émtion,
including the funding ability and excluding loanslareceivables.

Held to maturity investments are initially recordatdcost including transactions costs. After ititecognition
held to maturity investments are measured at apmottcost by using effective interest rate less impent
losses, if any.

Held-to-maturity securities are carried at “amatizost” using the “effective interest method” afteeir initial
recognition. Interest income related with held-tatanity securities is recorded in “Interest incomaid
impairment arising from a decrease in cost or g@lamounts is recorded in “Provision for impairimeh
loans and other receivables” accounts.

Financial Assets Available for Sale

Available for sale financial assets include all s@®s other than loans and receivables, secsritield to
maturity and securities held for trading.

The marketable securities are initially recognizédost including the transaction cotehich represents the
fair value at the time).

After the initial recognition, available for salecsirities are measured at fair value and the umsshl
gains/losses originating from the difference betwdlee amortized cost and the fair value is recorged
“Marketable Securities Value Increase Fund” untieregquity. Fair values of debt securities thattierded in an
active market are determined based on quoted poicesrrent market prices. In the absence of pricased in
an active market, fair values of these securittesdatermined by using other valuation methodedtat TAS.

The Bank has an equity investment with participatiate of 0.0025% in the available for sale finaheissets
portfolio. Since this equity investment does notéhéair value, it is carried at cost.

The Bank classifies its securities as referrecbtuva at the acquisition date of related assets.
Loans and receivables

Loans are non-derivative financial assets whicheHaied or determinable payments and are not traded
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VI.  Explanations on Financial Assets (continued)

The Bank initially records loans and receivablegaatvalue. In subsequent periods, in accordanite WAS,
loans are measured at amortized cost using eféertterest rate method.

Foreign currency indexed loans are converted iRY Trom the foreign currency rate as of the opertdage
and followed in TRY accounts. Repayments are measwith the foreign currency rate at the paymeie,dhe
foreign currency gains and losses are reflectebdegstatement of income.

Foreign exchange gains and losses on the foreigeray indexed loans are presented under foreighange
gains and losses.

VII. Explanations on Impairment of Financial Assets

At each balance sheet date, the Bank evaluatesatiing amounts of its financial asset or a grotifinancial
assets to determine whether there is an objectilieation that those assets have suffered an imgairloss. If
any such indication exists, the Bank determinegeataed impairment.

A financial asset or a financial asset group inéomsairment loss only if there is an objective tator related to
the occurrence of one or more than one event (‘dosnt”) after the first journalization of that agsand such
loss event (or events) causes, an impairment &sut rof the effect on the reliable estimate of ¢éxpected
future cash flows of the related financial assat amset group. Irrespective of high probability thepected
losses for future events are not journalized.

Specific reserves are provided for non performioank in accordance with the regulation on “Methadd
Principles for the Determination of Loans and OtReceivables to be Reserved for and Allocation edeRves”
published in the Official Gazette No. 26333 datemv&mber 1, 2006 which was amended with communiqué
published in the Official Gazette No. 27119 dataduary 23, 2009. In this context, the managemdithates

are determined, on the basis of the Bank credit pslicies, considering the general structure @& tban
portfolio, the financial conditions of the customenon-financial information and the economic coojure.
These provisions are reflected in the income stateérmnder “Provision and Impairment Expenses - @pec
Provision Expense".

The collections made related to loans for whichvi@ion is made in the current period are reversethfthe
“Provision for Loans and Other Receivables” accdarthe income statement. The collections maddeelto
loans written off or provisioned in prior years aeeorded to “Collections Related to the Prior 8&ftxpenses”
under “Other Operating Income” account and relatéerest income is credited to the “Interest Reeéifrom
Non-performing Loans” account.

In addition to specific loan loss provisions, withhe framework of the regulation and principlefemed to
above; Bank records general loan loss provisionsofans and other receivables. Together with thengk in
the same regulation made on February 6, 2008, émk Btarted to book general loan loss provisio2%ffor
cash loans under watch-list and 0.4% for non-cashd under watch-list. On January 23, 2009 theclarfi of
the regulation has been amended such that thefispeites are applied at one fourth for paymemmitments
for checks related to checkbooks extended fivesyago or earlier.

In accordance with the change in the Regulation Rinocedures and Principles for Determination of
Qualifications of Loans and Other Receivables bglaand Provisions to be set aside (publishedarttiicial
Gazette numbered 27947 dated May 28, 2011); gepeyailsion loans which are classified in the fgsbup has

to be set at least 5 folds of the general provisida due to the change in the payment plans sktfiost group
loans. Genaral Provision for loans that are clessiin the second group has to be set at leastoRiS of the
general provision rate due to the change in thengay plans of those second group loans. Informattated to
standard and close monitoring loans which theimpayt plans have changed is disclosed under the 5ot
under the “Explanations and Disclosures RelatdtiécAssets” section.

In accordance with the changes in the RegulationPoocedures and Principles for Determination of
Qualifications of Loans and Other Receivables bglkBaand Provisions to be set aside (publishedarCtiicial
Gazette numbered 27947 dated May 28, 2011 andi®@fiazette numbered 27968 dated June 18, 201dksbha
whose total letters of guarantees, bank acceptafettsrs of credit commitments, endorsements, hasing
guarantee on security issuance, factoring guarsanttleer guarantees and sureties, and unsecurdithigmeing
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VII. Explanations on Impairment of Financial Assets(continued)

loans exceeds 10 folds of equities calculated wittie scope of principles and procedures statethen
Regulation on Equities of Banks implement generalision ratio as 3/1000 for all standard non-casims.

As of December 31, 2014 the provision rates detgthior the non-cash loans do not exceed the rdjuitios
therefore standard rates which are determinedeimethulation have been used for the non-cash loans.

In accordance with the change in “Regulation orncPdores and Principles for Determination of Quadifions

of Loans and Other Receivables by Banks and Pamssto be set aside”’(published in the Official Geze
numbered 27968 dated June 18, 2011), The banksevtbtzd consumer loans to total loans more than afétk

the auto and housing loans, vehicle classed aspadofrming loans consumer loans and consumer loans,
housing loans, other than the banks that over 8#eobverall response rate observed in the fistgrauto and
housing for maturities of loans for consumer loatiser than loans at 4% in the second group followted
vehicle for consumer loans and mortgage loans,poe maturities of 8% applies” rulling is given.

As of December 31,2014 the rates determined abmveohsumer loans do not exceed, consumer loamnsed
for the standard rates specified in the regulations

In accordance with the change in the “Regulation Rnocedures and Principles for Determination of
Qualifications of Loans and Other Receivables byk8aand Provisions to be set aside” (publishedhan t
Official Gazette numbered 28158 dated DecembeR@D]); Banks are not required to set specific miowi for

the amount that has to be paid for each chequeofelie chequebooks of the loan customers of whels¢ed
loans and other receivables are classified undet, thourth or fifth group with 100% specific preion if the
Banks informs the chequebooks owners to returncttezjuebooks back to the Bank within 15 days through
registered and reply-paid letter. This is valid fioe chequebooks owners whose loans and othevatbes are
derecognized by the Banks.

In accordance with the change in the “Regulationl #&rocedures and Principles for Determination of
Qualifications of Loans and Other Receivables byaand Provisions to be set aside”(published & th
Official Gazette numbered 28418 dated September21?), the amount of general loan loss provisions
calculated over the rates disclosed in the firsagiaph of Article 7 of the Comminiqué recorded standard
loans as of the end of the month and for the caahs, letter of guarantees, bills and suretiestl@adon-cash
loans which are closely monitored; at minimum 4086wWd be booked until December 31, 2012, at minimum
60% until December 31, 2013, at minimum 80% ungicBmber 31, 2014 and 100% should be recorded until
December 31, 2015.

As of December 2014, the Bank has been recordgm@llsions which have should been recorded in raicg
with the comminique.

In accordance with the change in the “Regulationl &rocedures and Principles for Determination of
Qualifications of Loans and Other Receivables byaand Provisions to be set aside”(published & th
Official Gazette numbered 28789 dated October 083, banks may apply 0% for standard qualifieshcand
non-cash export credits, 0.5% for SME cash loadsf% for non cash loans. Hence, the Bank apjlied
amendment as of December 31, 2014.

In accordance with the change in the “Regulationl #&rocedures and Principles for Determination of
Qualifications of Loans and Other Receivables bykaand Provisions to be set aside”(published & th
Official Gazette numbered 28789 dated October 8,320Banks shall provide, in the general provision
calculated by the end of the most recent monthrbetioe date of entry into force of this Regulatfon the
standard loans and closely monitored loans exceptgage loans, at least twenty-five percent (2%&)of
December 31, 2013, at least fifty percent (50%9fd3ecember 31, 2014 and at least hundred per&€0€4) as

of December 31, 2015 of the increases arising fthenimplementation of this regulation on the ddtis t

Regulation enters into force

VIIl. Explanations on Offsetting of Financial Asset and Liabilities

Financial assets and liabilities are offset whea Bank has a legally enforceable right to set affd the

intention of collecting or paying the net amountrelfated assets and liabilities or the right teseffthe assets
and liabilities simultaneously. Otherwise, thereni® any offsetting transaction about financialedassand

liabilities.
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IX.  Explanations on Sales and Repurchase Agreemendésid Lending of Securities

The sales and purchase of government securitiesrumgurchase agreements made with the customers ar
being recorded in balance sheet accounts in acooedaith the Uniform Chart of Accounts. Accordingtythe
financial statements, the government bonds andurgaills sold to customers under repurchase aggats are
classified under securities held for trading, aa# for sale and held to maturity depending onpbefolio

they are originally included in and are valued adiow to the valuation principles of the relatedtfmios.
Funds obtained from repurchase agreements arefigldsas a separate sub-account under money markets
borrowings account in the liabilities. These tagi®ns are short-term and consist of domesticipidactor
debt securities.

Funds given against securities purchased underiagmts to resell (“reverse repo”) are accountedeund
“Receivables from reverse repurchase agreementshemalance sheet. The difference between thehpsec
and determined resell price is accrued over teedfifrepurchase agreements using the effectiveesttenethod.

The income and expenses from these transactionsfégeted to the “Interest Income on MarketablelBities”
and “Interest Expense on Money Market Borrowings®aunts in the income statement.

As of December 31, 2014, the Bank has not any seveapo transactions.. (December 31, 2013: TRY15),0

As of December 31, 2014, the Bank does not havararketable securities lending transaction.(Decer8he
2013: None).

X. Explanations on Assets Held for Sale and Discanued Operations

Assets held for sale with high probability of sedee those under a plan prepared by the managesgarding
the sale of the asset to be disposed (or else thepgof assets), together with an active program fo
determination of buyers as well as for the comptenf the plan. Also the asset (or else the grdugseets)
shall be actively marketed in conformity with itairf value. On the other hand, the sale is expeftiebe
journalized as a completed sale within one yeaar dfte classification date; and the necessaryaciiosns and
procedures to complete the plan should demongtratéact that the possibility of making significarftanges or
canceling the plan is low.

The Bank does not have any assets held for sae Becember 31, 2014 (December 31, 2013: None).
A discontinued operation is a division of a ban#ttls either disposed or held for sale. Resultdigfontinued

operations are included in the income statementraggly. The Bank does not have any discontinued
operations.

Xl.  Explanations on Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets

There is no goodwill regarding the investmentsssagiates and subsidiaries.

Other intangible assets are accounted for at @sst dccumulated amortization. Other intangible tassee
amortized with straight-line method based on tlegionomic lives. There is no change in the amoitinat
method in the current period .

Theintangible assets comprising purchased softwaresnathe other intangible fixed assets. As of thiabce

sheet date, all softwares are purchased and themgoacompleted or continuing software developnpeajects
by the Bank.

%
Intangible Asse 7-33
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XIl.  Explanations on Tangible Fixed Assets

Tangible fixed assets are accounted for at acgprs@iost less accumulated depreciation. Tangibledfiassets
are depreciated with straight-line method. Whilesthacquired before January 1, 2004 are deprdaiatie the

rates valid in prior periods, the fixed assets &egluafter January 1, 2004 are depreciated with rites
determined by the Ministry of Finance based onulssfonomic lives.

Depreciation of assets held less than one yeaif #secbalance sheet date is accounted for propatidy.
Depreciation method is not changed in the currenibd. The annual rates used, which approximats taased
on the estimated economic useful lives of the edlassets, are as follows:

%
Financial Leas 2-50
Furniture, fixtures and office equipment and ot 6—35

Gain or loss resulting from disposals of the tatggiiixed assets is reflected to the income statérasrthe
difference between the net proceeds and net bdak va

Normal maintenance and repair cost of the propedie expensed.

There is no pledge, mortgage, or any other lietaagible fixed assets.

XIll. Explanations on Leasing Transactions

Tangible fixed assets acquired by financial leases accounted for in accordance with TAS No:17. In
accordance with this standard, the leasing traiwses;t which consist only foreign currency liabdis, are
translated to Turkish Lira with the exchange rgpesvailing at the transaction dates and they arerded as an
asset or a liability. The foreign currency liakédi are translated to Turkish Lira with the Bang&riod end
exchange rates. The increases/decreases resutimgltfe differences in the foreign exchange ratesecorded
as expense/income in the relevant period. The dimgncost resulting from leasing is distributedotigh the
lease period to form a fixed interest rate.

In addition to the interest expense, the Bank isalepreciation expense for the depreciable leassets in
each period.

Operating lease payments are recognized as exjeitse income statement on a straight line bases the
lease term.

As of the balance sheet date, the Bank does nat hathorization for any financial leasing transatdi as
lessor.

XIV. Explanations on Provisions and Contingent Liaklities

Provisions are recognized when there is a pres#igiadion due to a past event, it is probable #rabutflow of
resources embodying economic benefits will be meguto settle the obligation and a reliable estaran be
made of the amount of the obligation. Provisions determined by using the Bank’s best expectation o
expenses in fulfilling the obligation, and discaeohto present value if material.

According to the legal department of the Bank; tibtal number of ongoing cases against the BanR isThe
total amount of those cases consists of TRY 65M UH04 Thousand and EUR 193 Thousand. There is a
provision of TRY 1,761 in the accompanying finaha@ttements for these cases (December 31, 2018: TR
1,046).
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XV. Explanations on Liabilities Regarding Employee Benfits
Defined Benefit Plans

In accordance with existing social legislation iarRey, the Bank is required to make lump-sum teatiim
indemnities over a 30 day salary to each employke has completed over one year of service, whose
employment is terminated due to retirement or &&sons other than resignation or misconduct. Thk Ba
also required to make a payment for the periodadfca calculated over each service year of the eyes
whose employment is terminated for reasons ottaar thsignation or misconduct. Total benefit is glalted in
accordance with TAS No:19 “Turkish Accounting Stardlon Employee Benefits”.

Such benefit plans are unfunded since there isindifig requirement in Turkey. The cost of providbenefits
to the employees for the services rendered by theaer the defined benefit plan is determined by pahdent
actuaries annuallysing the projected unit credit method. As perGificial Gazette No. 28585 dated 12 March
2013 which came into effect on 1 January 2013 phbli the revised IAS 19 required actuarial gainséle
recognized shareholder equity. As of December 8142the actuarial losses recognized in equity ansoto
TRY (155). (December 31, 2013: TRY 568 actuariahpa

The Bank has no retirement fund or foundation thatemployees are the member of.

Defined Contribution Plans

The Bank pays contributions to the Social Secunisfitution of Turkey on a mandatory basis. The IBaas no
further payment obligations once the contributidrsse been paid. The contributions are recognized as
employee benefit expense when they are due.

Short-term Employee Benefits

In accordance with TAS No:19 “Turkish AccountingaSdard on Employee Benefits”; defined liabilitiésit
arise from unused leave payments are accrued iretlied period and are not discounted.

XVI. Explanations on Taxation

Corporate tax:

According to the Article 32 of the Corporate TaxwLdlo 5520, accepted in the meeting of Grand Nationa
Assembly of Turkey (TBMM) on June 13, 2006 and ame®d in the Official Gazette dated June 21, 2066,
corporate tax rate has been decreased from 30%t @ffective from January 1, 2006 as per the Art87 of

the Corporate Tax Law.

The tax legislation, requires advance tax of 20%daalculated and paid based on earnings gendmatedch
guarter. Such advance taxes calculated and paiaffast against the final tax liability for the yea

Tax returns are required to be filed between thet find twenty-fifth day of the fourth month followg the
balance sheet date and paid in one installmeritthetend of the related month

According to the Corporate Tax Law, tax losses barcarried forward for a maximum period of five ggea

following the year in which the losses are incurr@dx authorities can inspect tax returns and iated
accounting records for a retrospective maximumaugkof five years
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XVI. Explanations on Taxation (continued)

The Bank makes necessary provisions over resultsiwént period operations related with Income aax
Corporate Tax liabilities. The Bank has TRY 12,%&9 provision in current period (December 31, 2048ne).

Deferred Tax Liability / Asset:

The Bank calculates and reflects deferred tax assi@bility on timing differences which will reftin taxable
or deductible amounts in determining taxable puffituture periods.

In accordance with TAS No: 12 “Turkish Accountingadard on Income Taxes” and the circular of BRSA
numbered BDDK.DZM.2/13/1-a-3 dated December 8, 200w Bank calculates deferred tax asset on
carryforward tax losses and all deductible tempodifferences except for general loan reservesyfficient
taxable profit in future periods to recover suchoants is probable; as well as deferred tax liabitih all
taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax asaetk liabilities are reflected in the accompanyimafcial
statements on a net basis.

The deferred tax resulting from differences relatedtems that are debited or credited directlyetpity is
netted with these accounts.

Furthermore, as per the above circular of BRSAewdetl tax benefit balance resulting from nettingleferred
tax assets and liabilities should not be usedvitddnd distribution and capital increase.

The net deferred tax asset is included in defetagdasset and the net deferred tax liability isectéd under
deferred tax liability on the balance sheet. Thiemed tax income recorded under the tax provigigpenses
amounts to TRY 4,668 in the accompanying income&stant (December 31, 2013: TRY 5,726 deferred tax
charge).

XVII. Additional Explanations on Borrowings

The borrowing costs related to purchase, productiorconstruction of qualifying assets that requsignificant
time to be prepared for use and sale are includéaei cost of assets until the relevant assetsnheceady to be
used or to be sold. Financial investment incomeiabtl by temporary placement of undisbursed inveistm
loan in financial investments is offset againstrbating costs qualified for capitalization.

All other borrowing costs are recorded to the inestatement in the period they are incurred.

The Bank has not issued convertible bonds

XVIII. Explanations on Issued Share Certificates

The Bank does not have any issued debt securitgesf the date of approval of these financial steets, there
is no subsequent dividend announcement of the Bank.

XIX. Explanations on Acceptances

Acceptances are realized simultaneously with thgmaat dates of the customers and they are presested
probable commitments in off-balance sheet accounts.
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XX. Explanations on Government Incentives

There are no government incentives utilized byBhak.

XXI. Explanations on Segment Reporting

Since the Bank is not listed, disclosure requireiehlFRS 8 are not applicable for the Bank.

XXII. Explanations on Other Matters

None, other than above explanations.
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SECTION FOUR

INFORMATION ON FINANCIAL STRUCTURE
l. Explanations Related to the Capital Adequacy Standad Ratio

The method used for risk measurement in determinagjtal adequacy standard ratio : The capital aaeg
ratio is calculated in accordance with the “RegalatRegarding the Measurement and Evaluation ofkBan
Capital Adequacy Ratio” (the “Regulation”) publishen the Official Gazette No. 29111 as of Septenther
2014 and “Regulation Credit Risk Mitigation Techmd” and “Regulation on calculation of Risk-Weighte
Amounts of Securitizations” and also “RegulationgReling Banks’ Shareholders’ Equity” published e t
Official Gazette No. 28756 dated September 5, 2003 Bank’s capital adequacy ratio in accordanite the
related communiqué is 18.52% as of December 314 gDécember 31, 2013: 15.85%).

The Bank manages its capital assessment underatéelgand structured style. The Bank under intecapltal
assessments manages its maximum loss exposuraadharise from credit, operation, market and otheks
taking into consideration the market developmeniih stress tests approach. Such stress test anaysi
reviewed independently.

In the computation of capital adequacy standari,rélhe information prepared in accordance withustay
accounting requirements is used. Additionally, tharket risk amount is calculated in accordance it
communiqué on the "Measurement and Assessment pftaCaAdequacy of Banks" and is taken into
consideration in the capital adequacy standard caticulation.

In the computation of credit risk amount, the balassifies its loans in relevant risk weighted &s$aking into
considerations its risk class, ratings and the neimz risk mitigating items. In taking into considgion of risk
mitigation items, comprehensive financial collatengthod is used.

The values deducted from the capital base in tharesiolders’ equity computation are excluded while
calculating credit risk-weighted assets, non-casimg and contingent liabilities. Assets subjeaiépreciation
and impairment among risk-weighted assets are declun the calculations over their net book valaéer
deducting the relative depreciations and provisions

While calculating the basis of non-cash loans aadsactions regarding with foreign curreny andraggerates
subject to credit risk, the net receivable amounmf the counter parties net of provision amount iget
accordance with the “Communiqué on Methods andciiies for the Determination of Loans and Other
Receivables to be Reserved for and Allocation afdRees” is multiplied by the loan conversion rgiessented

in the Article 5, the Clause 3 of the Communiqué"bleasurement and Assessment of Capital Adequacy of
Banks", and calculated by applying the risk weigitesented in the Capital Adequacy Analysis Form.

Counterparty credit risk calculations are calcuateaccordance with Fair Value Valuation Methadinked in
the Article 5 of regulations.

In the calculation of the value at credit risk foe derivative financial instruments and creditid#ives, the
receivables from counterparties are multiplied bg tates stated in the Regulation, reduced as tper t
“Regulation on Credit Risk Mitigation Techniquesidcathen included in the relevant exposure catedefined

in Regulation.
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l. Explanations Related to the Capital Adequacy Stadard Ratio (continued)

Information related to the capital adequacy ratio:

TINUED)

Risk Weig

ht

0% 10% 20% %50 75% 100% 150%

200%  250%

The amount subject to credit risk

Risk Types
Contingent and Non-Contingent Receivables on Sayese 1,320,942 - - 1,457
Contingent and Non-Contingent Receivables on Region - - -
Governments and Local Authorities
Contingent and Non-Contingent Receivables on Adstriative 58
Units and Non-commercial Enterprises
Contingent and Non-Contingent Receivables on Muéiial
Development Banks
Contingent and Non-Contingent Receivables on latigonal
Organizations
Contingent and Non-Contingent Receivables on Bankis 939 - 229,539 275,432
Capital Market Intermediary
Contingent and Non-Contingent Corporate Receivables 84,866
Contingent and Non-Contingent Retail Receivables 20,049
Contingent and Non-Contingent Receivables Secwyed b -
Mortgages
Past Due Receivables 2 - - 13,204
Receivables defined in high risk category by BRSA 975 - - -
Collateralized Mortgage Marketable Securities -
Securitisation positions
Short-Term Receivables from Banks, brokerage hoaisés
Corporate
Invesment similar to collective investment funds -
Other Receivables 2,395,469 -

919,391

169

1,312

2,514,124

262,568 698

343,858

37,656 55
- 10,039

49,897

Weighted amount subject to credit risk - 45,908 604,742

196,926 ,942,714 15,141

Exposures with physical security is stated at 08k weights as its fully collateralized, (excludiogntral banks
and Claims on Central Government) is shown in #hevant risk class; deposit of risk-weighted asset.

Summary information related to the capital adequacyratio:

December 31,

December 31,

2014(*) 2013
Required Capital Liabilities for Credit Risk
(Main related with Credit Risk *0.08) (RCLCR) 307,383 260,323
Required Capital Liabilities for Market Risk (RCLMR) 244 305
Required Capital Liabilities for Operational (RCLOR) 20,012 15,845
Shareholders’ Equity 758,632 547,829
Shareholders’ Equity/(( CRCR+MRCR+ORCR)*12.5*100) 18.52 15.85
Tierl Capital/(( CRCR+MRCR+ORCR) *12.5*100) 17.73 -
Core Capital/((CRCR+MRCR+ORCR) *12.5)*100 18.19 -
*) In accordance with “Communiqué Related to Publiclyndmnced Financial Statements of Banks and Explarstio

and Notes Related to these Financial Statemenstfalsshed by Official Gazette in April 26, 2014.
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l. Explanations Related to the Capital Adequacy Stadard Ratio (continued)

Information related to the components of shareholdes' equity:

December 31,2014

Common Equity Core Capital (CET 1)
Paic-in capita
Share premium
Share repeal
Legal reserve
Accumulated other comprehensive income in accorlariih TAS
Profit
Net current period profit
Prior period profit
Provisions for possible losses up to 25% of copétah
Bonus Shares from Associates, Subsidiaries anttVeimtures not Accounted in Current Period’s Profit

650,000

46,750
25,276
31,931
31,931

Common Equity Core capital before regulatory adjustnents

753,957

Common Equity Core capital: regulatory adjustments

Loss (in excess of Reserves) and other compreteergpenses (-)

Leasehold Improvements on Operational Leases (-)

Goodwill and Intangible assets and related defaardiabilities (-)

Net Deferred tax assets / liabilitie-)

Excess amount expressed in the Law (Article 56 paragraph) (-)

Investments in own common equity (-)

Investments in the capital of banking, financiad @amsurance entities that are outside the scopegoflatory
consolidation, net of eligible short positions, whéhe bank does not own more than 10% of the dsshare
capital (amount above 10% threshold) (-)

Investments in the capital of banking, financiad @amsurance entities that are outside the scopegoflatory
consolidation, net of eligible short positions, whéhe bank own more than 10% of the issued slepitat
(amount above 10% thresholr-)

Mortgage servicing rights (amount above 10% thrie§he)

Deferred tax assets arising from temporary diffeesn(amount above 10% threshold, net of relatetiahikity) (-)

Amount exceeding tt 15% threshold-)

Investments in the capital of banking, financiad @amsurance entities that are outside the scopegoflatory
consolidation, net of eligible short positions, whéhe bank own more than 10% of the issued share
capital (amount above 10% threshold) (-)

Mortgage servicing rights (amount above 10% thrie§He)

Deferred tax assets arising from temporary diffeesn(-)

National specific regulatory adjustmen-)

Regulatory adjustments applied to Common Equity Tidue to insufficient Additional Tier 1 and Tier 2¢over
deductions (-)

(265)
(5,223)
(3,646)

268

Total regulatory adjustments to Common equityCore Capital

Common Equity Core capital (CET1)
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l. Explanations Related to the Capital Adequacy Stadard Ratio (continued)

December 31,

2014

Additional Tier 1 capital: instruments

Previlaged stocks which are not included in commguity and share premiums

Directly issued qualifying Additional Tier 1 insinents (approved by the regulators) plus relateckstarplus (after

1.1.2014)

Directly issued qualifying Additional Tier 1 insments (approved by the regulators) plus relateckstarplus (before

1.1.2014)

Additional Tier 1 capital before regulatory adjustments

Additional Tier 1 capital: regulatory adjustments

Investments in own Additional Tier 1 instruments (-

Investments in the capital of banking, financiad amsurance entities that are outside the scopegofiatory consolidatin
net of eligible short positions, where the banksdoet own more than 10% of the issued common stzqui¢al of the
entity (amount above 10% threshold) (-)

Investments in the capital of banking, financiad amsurance entities that are outside the scopegofiatory consolidatin
net of eligible short positions, where the bank enore than 10% of the issued common share capitakcentity
(amount above 10% threshold) (-)

National specific regulatory adjustmer-)

Regulatory adjustments applied to Additional Tietuk to insufficient Tier 2 to cover deductions (-)

Total regulatory adjustments to Additional Tier 1 capital

Additional Tier 1 capital (AT1)

Regulatory adjustments to Common Equity

Amount of goodwill and Intangible assets and relateferred tax liabilities that are not coveredeagilatory adjustment
in Common Equity in accordance with the temporatigle 2 of the Own Fund Regulation (-)

Amount of net deferred tax assets / liabilities #r@ not covered as regulatory adjustment in ComBwuity in
accordance with the temporary article 2 of the Gwnd Regulation (-)

14,585

4,240

Tier 1 capital (T1 = CET1 + AT1)

726,266

Tier 2 capital: instruments and provisions

Directly issued qualifying Tier 2 instruments (tlaae approved by the regiilator) plus related ssocglus (after 1.1.2014)

Directly issued qualifying Tier 2 instruments (tlaae approved by the regilator) plus related ssocglus (before
1.1.2014)

Pledged sources on behalf of the Bank for the tiseramitted share capital increase by shareholtjers*

Generic Provisions

32,370

Tier 2 capital before regulatory adjustments

32,370

Tier 2 capital: regulatory adjustments

Investments in own Tier 2 instruments (-)

Investments in the capital of banking, financiad amsurance entities that are outside the scopegofiatory consolidatiol
net of eligible short positions, where the banksdoet own more than 10% of the issued common stzqui¢al of the
entity (amount above the 10% threshold) (-)

Investments in the capital of banking, financiad amsurance dities that are outside the scope of regulatorysobdation,
net of eligible short positions, where the bank enore than 10% of the issued common share capitakcentity
(amount above the 10% threshold) (-)

National specific regulatory adjustmer-)

Total regulatory adjustments to Tier 2 capital

Tier 2 capital (T2)

Total capital (TC=T1 + T2)

(29)



Translated into English from the original Turkish r eport and financial statements

TURKLAND BANK ANON iM SIRKET i
NOTES TO THE UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (C ONTINUED)

AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2014
(Amounts expressed in thousands of Turkish Lira (TRMess otherwise stated.)

l. Explanations Related to the Capital Adequacy Stadard Ratio (continued)

December 31,
2014

Deductions from the capital
Loans extended being noncompliant with articlesus@ 51 of the La (-) -
Net book values of properties owned, exceeding 60B&nks’ equity and properties, and trade goodstaken ir

exchange for loans and receivables that shoulddpesed within five years in accordance with aetle¥ of the Law,

but not yet disposed (-) 4)
Loans extended to banks, financial institutionai{dstic and abroad) and qualified shareholders sio®ndan

subordinated loan and debt instruments purchasedtfiese institutions issued, like primary and sdeoy

subordinated loz (-) -
Deductions in accordance with the article numbeof2Be Regulation Regarding the Measurement araduEtion of

Banks’ Capital Adequacy Ratio (-) -
Other (-) -
Un-adjusted total amount from Common Equity, -1 and Tie-2 due to the investments in the capital of bank

financial and insurance entities that are outdigestope of regulatory consolidation, net of elgyghort positions,

where the bank does not own more than 10% of tueéscommon share capital of the entity (amournteati6%

threshold), in accordance with the temporary paaiyil of the article numbered 2 of Own Fund Regrigt) -
Un-adjusted total amount froCommon Equity, Tie-1 and Tie-2 due to the investments in the capital of bank

financial and insurance entities that are outdigestope of regulatory consolidation, net of elgghort positions,

where the bank own more than 10% of the issued aamshare capital of the entity (amount above 108stiold), ir

accordance with the paragraph 1 of the temporaiglenumbered 2 of Own Fund Regulation (-)
Un-adjusted total amount from Common Equity,(in aceaa with the paragraph 1 and 2 of terary article numbered

of the Own Fund Regulation) due to the investmantise capital of banking, financial and insuraeoéties that are

outside the scope of regulatory consolidation afieigible short positions, where the bank own enttran 10%f the

issued common share capital of the entity (amobiov@ 10% threshold), in accordance with the papigiaof the

temporary article numbered 2 of Own Fund Regulat) -
Own Fund 758,632
Amounts below the thresholds for deduction
Investmentin the capital of banking, financial and insuraeaéties that are outside the scope of regulatonsalidation

net of eligible short positions, where the banksdoet own more than 10% of the issued common stzqui¢al of the

entity -
Investmentsn the capital of banking, financial and insuranetties that are outside the scope of regulatonsobdation

net of eligible short positions, where the bank enore than 10% of the issued common share capitakcentity -
Mortgage servicing rights -
Deferred tax assets arising from temporary diffeesn

*) In accordance with “Communiqué Related to PelpliAnnounced Financial Statements of Banks anddegtions and Notes
Related to these Financial Statements” as publibledifficial Gazette in April 26, 2014.
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l. Explanations Related to the Capital Adequacy Stadard Ratio (continued)

December 31,

2013

CORE CAPITAL
Paid up Capital 500,000
Nominal capital 500,000
Capital commitments (-) -
Inflation adjustment to share capital 25,431
Share premium -
Cancellation profits -
Legal reserves, status reserves and extraordieaeyves 32,349
Inflation adjustment of legal reserves, statusmess and extraordinary reserves -
Profit 14,401
Current period net profit 14,401
Prior years’ profits -
Provision for possible losses up to 25% of the (apital -
Profit on disposal of associates, subsidiariesiamiovables -
Primary subordinated debts up to 15% of the Corgit@la -
Losses that cannot be covered by reserves (-) -
Current period loss (net) -
Prior years’ losses -
Leasehold improvements (-) (1,666)
Intangible assets (-) (20,674)
Deferred tax asset exceeding 10% of the Core Gdpita -
Excess amount in the Article 56, Clause 3 of theliiay Law () -
Other 56¢
Total Core Capital 550,409
SUPPLEMENTARY CAPITAL (2,576
General loan loss reserves 30,368

45% of the revaluation reserve for movable fixesets -
45% of the of revaluation reserve for properties -
Bonus shares of investment in associates, subgisliand joint ventures -
Primary subordinated loans excluded in the calmratf the Core Capital -
Secondary subordinated loans -
45% value increase of avaible for sale financiakésand associates and subsidiaries (32,944
Inflation adjustment of capital reserve, profiteege and prior years’ income or loss (except ildlaadjustment of legal reserves,

status reserves and extraordinary reserves) -
Total Supplementary Capital (2,576

CAPITAL 547,833

DEDUCTIONS FROM THE CAPITAL 4)
Investments in Unconsolidated Financial Institusigpomestic, Foreign) and Banks -
The Secondary Subordinated Loans extended to B&imancial Institutions (Domestic or Foreign) og@&ificant Shareholders of the

Bank and Debt Instruments That Have Primary SeagrfBlabordinated Loan Nature Purchased From Them -
Investment in Financial Institutions (Domestic, &gn) and Banks, in which less than 10% equityr@steis exercised and that exdse

10% and more of the total core and supplementariyjad@f the Bank -
Loans extended as contradictory to the articlear&D51 of the law -
The net book value of Bank’s Immovables that ar% %8 shareholders’ equity and immovables or commieslthat are received on

behalf of the receivables from customers and abetdisposed according to banking law article 5thag have been held for more

than five years from the acquisition date (4)
Other -
Total Shareholders’ Equity 547,829

Information related to the management of internal apital

Internal Capital Adequacy Assessment Process (ISEDEAAP) is a process or the processes as a whole
whichallows senior management to;

- to identify, measure, consolidate and monitordberect and adequate levels of risks,

- to calculate and gain the necessary internaltalapihich will be determined according to the Banksk
profile, strategies and operational plan

- to have strong risk management systems to be asddheir continuous development facility

The Bank composes "ISEDES Report" in line with'tBanks' Internal Systems and Internal Capital Adeyu
Assessment Process" published in the Official Gazen 11 July 2014 and started to report to BRSA
(communiqué No: 29057).

Within internal capital management scope, the Blaark established a stress test basadagement by taking
into account the estimated maximum loss amountrtfagt occur in credit, operational, market and otfels as
well as the changes in the mark@&tess test and scenario analysis results are egport a daily, weekly and
quarterly basis by Risk Management Group.
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l. Explanations Related to the Capital Adequacy Stadard Ratio (continued)

Capital adequacy ratio is calculated by Risk Manag@ Group on a monthly basis, when requested bioGe
Management capital requirement according to stiatptpns is explained and studies on internal ehpit
management is conducted. Capital requirement iaterssessment process is designed and conductedshby
Management Group. Risk Management Group informsioBeMlanagement about these issues directly or
through High Level Risk Committee.

Il. Explanations Related to Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk that the Bank is a partyaicontract whereby the counterparty fails to nitsedbligation
and cause to incur a financial loss.

The credit allocation is performed on a debtor andebtor group basis within the limits and updateda
defined frequency based on market developmentshdncredit allocation process, many financial ad-n
financial criteria are taken into account withire tframework of the internal rating procedures @& Bank.
These criteria include geographical and sector eatnations. The sector concentrations for loansramitored
closely. In accordance with the Bank’s loan politye rating of the companies, credit limits andrgugees are
considered together, and credit risks incurrecharitored

Risks and limits related to treasury activities angtomer based commercial activities are monitatady.
Moreover, the limits of the correspondent bankg #re determined by their ratings and the contfothe
maximum acceptable risk level in relation to theuiggof the Bank are monitored daily. Risk limitsea
determined in connection with these daily transesj and risk concentration is monitored systerabic
concerning off-balance sheet operations.

The credit worthiness of the debtors of the loarts @ther receivables is monitored regularly asgiieed in the
Communiqué on “Methods and Principles for the Drateation of Loans and Other Receivables to be Reser
for and Allocation of Reserves”. Most of the stagernof accounts for the loans has been tried tiveldérom
audited financial statements. The unaudited doctsnesult from the timing differences between tbanl
allocation and the audit dates of the financiaesteents of the companies and subsequently theegufiliancial
statements are obtained from the companies whercdhganies are audited. Credit limits are deterchine
according to the audited statement of accounts, quatantee factors are developed in accordance thith
decision of the credit committee considering tharahbteristics of the transactions and the finarstiaictures of
the companies.

Current Year Net Credit Average Net Credit Risk

Risk Types Risk Amount After Amount After
Provisions Provisions
Contingent and Non-Contingent Receivables on Sayese 1,322,399 1,182,368
Contingent and Non-Contingent Receivables on RegiGovernments and Local - -
Authorities
Contingent and Non-Contingent Receivables on Adstriative Units and Non- 300 1,158

commercial Enterprises
Contingent and Non-Contingent Receivables on Muéilal Development Banks - -
Contingent and Non-Contingent Receivables on latisnal Organizations -
Contingent and Non-Contingent Receivables on BankisCapital Market Intermediary 595,932 507,902

Contingent and Non-Contingent Corporate Receivables 12,367,694 10,773,057
Contingent and Non-Contingent Retail Receivables 383,755 300,565
Contingent and Non-Contingent Receivables Secuydddrtgages 1,328,919 1,216,431
Past Due Receivables 50,917 48,117
Receivables defined in high risk category by BRSA 35,540 41,356

Collateralized Mortgage Marketable Securities
Securitisation positions - -
Short-Term Receivables from Banks, brokerage hoaisé<Corporate - -
Invesment similar to collective investment funds -
Other Receivables 2,445,366 2,314,438
Total 18,530,822 16,385,392
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Il. Explanations Related to Credit Risk (continued)

For the forward transactions and other similar fimss of the Bank, operational limits are set by Board of
Directors and the transactions take place withas¢Himits.

The fulfillment of the benefits and acquirementated to forward transactions is normally realiz¢anaturity.
However, in order to minimize the risk, counterifioas of existing risks are entered into in therked.

Indemnified non-cash loans are subject to the s&@keaveight as outstanding loans matured but nbpgé.
Foreign financial institutions and country risks tbe Bank are generally accepted as investmentedrag

international rating agencies. Therefore, the pbtbasks are not material considering the finainsieucture of
the Bank.
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Il. Explanations Related to Credit Risk (continued)

The share of cash loans of the Bank from its tap drid top 200 customers respectively in the tmddnce sheet are TRY 1,758,216 and TRY 2,254 B82dmber 31, 2013: TRY 1,350,055

and TRY 1,752,919), the share of total cash loae$4.56% and 66.12% as of December 31, 2014 (Deeedi, 2013: 49.92% and 64.81%).

The share of non- cash loans of the Bank fronojs100 and top 200 customers respectively intdkad balance sheet are TRY 1,247,733 and TRY 19226(December 31, 2013: TRY
1,162,015 and TRY 1,475,885), the share of totalcash loans are 56.49% ve 73.66% as of Decemh20B4. (December 31, 2013: 59.70% and 75.83%).

The share of cash and non-cash receivables ofah& B8om its top 100 and 200 customers respectivetite total balance sheet and non-cash risk8@204 and % 43.53 as of December
31,2014. (December 31, 2013: 32.25% and 44.01%).

As of December 31, 2014, the general loan lossigimvrelated with the credit risk is TRY 32,370g@@mber 31, 2013: TRY 30,368).

Significant Risks that are significant on the peobf the regions

Due from

Regional Receivables on

Contingent and

Contingent and Non-

Short-Term

Central Governments Administrative Receivables on Receivables on Non-  Contingent and Contingent Receivables Collateralized Receivables from Invesment
Governments or Local Units and Non- Multilateral  Receivables on Banks and Contingent  Non-Contingent Receivables defined in high Mortgage Banks, brokerage similar to
or Central Government commercial  Development International  Capital Market Corporate Retail Secured by Past Due risk category by Marketable houses and collective Other
Banks Receivables Enterprises Banks Organizatios Intermediary Receivables Receivables Mortgages _ Receivables BRSA Securities Corporate _investment funds Receivables Total
Domestic 1,322,399 - 227 - 462,758 2,598,989 283, 1,263,249 50,917 26,945 - 2,445,366 8,454,162
European Union Countries - - 13,796 1 3 - - - 13,800
OECD Countries(*) 1,386 - 1,386
Off-shore Banking Regions - -
USA, Canada 29,087 29,087
Other Countries 195 195
Associates, Subsidiaries and
Jointly Controlled Entities
Unallocated Assets/ Liabilities - - - - - - - - - -
Total 1,322,399 227 507,222 2,598,990 283,315 12268 50,917 26,945 2,445,366 8,498,630
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Explanations Related to Credit Risk (continued)

Risk profile by sectors or counterparties

Short-
Term
Receivable
Regional Receivables on s from
Due from Governments or  Administrative Receivables on Receivables Receivables on Receivables Collateralize Banks,
Central Local Units and Non-  Multilateral on Banks and Receivables defined in high d Mortgage brokerage
Governments or ~ Government commercial Development International Capital Market — Corporate Retail Secured by  Past Due risk category by Marketable Securitisatio houses and Other
Sectors/Counterparties Central Banks  Receivables Enterprises Banks Organizatios Intermediary Receivables Receivables Mortgages Receivables BRSA Securities  n Positions Inv_ Receivables TRY FC Total
1 Agriculture - - - - - - 14,513 3,392 12,741 202 29 - - - - 29,747 1,130 30,877
1.1 Farming and Raising Livestokc - - - 8,115 575 8,367 170 26 - - - - 18,383 870 19,253
1.2 Forestry, Wood and Paper - - - 6,396 331 4,37 32 3 - - - - 10,876 260 11,136
1.3 Fishery - - - - - - 2 486 - - - - - - - 488 - 488
2 Manufacturing - - 54 - - - 1,044,243 127,259 35636 21,676 903 - - - 1,303 1,019,182 532,625 1,551,80
2.1 Mining and Quary - - 54 - - - 255,938 48,821 142,80 7,063 250 - - - - 355,464 101,464 456,928
2.2 Production - - - - - - 769,124 78,124 211,567 14,569 567 - - - 1,303 648,510 426,744 1,075,254
2.3 Electricity, Gas and Water - - - 19,181 314 - 44 86 - - - - 15,208 4,417 19,625
3 Construction - - - - - - 594,180 39,913 387,381 8@ 5,637 - - - 45,821 786,303 293,615 1,079,918
4 Services - - 9 - - 507,222 532,344 46,930 312,907 11,352 58,1 - - - 2,260,499 1,045,064 2,634,358 3,679,422
4.1 Wholesale and Retail Trade - - - 20,084 3,019 22,765 248 8 - - - - 42,942 3,182 46,124
PPk bt otk - - - - - - 82,157 4,661 117,336 7,716 321 - - - - 90240 121,951 212,101
4.3 Transportation and Communication - - - 180,54 9,119 76,717 2 1,410 - - - 2,260,495 183,371 @®w 2,532,283
4.4 Financial Instituions - - - - - 507,222 158,696 3, 74,851 2,382 6,411 - - - 4 671,199 102,728 7B,
4.5 Real Estate and Renting Services. - - - - 59,4 165 11,543 - - - - - - 24,911 56,251 81,162
4.6 Self-Employment Services - - - 251 - 79 326 2 - - - - 658 - 658
4.7 Education Services - - - - 53 105 368 - - - - - - 526 - 526
4.8 Health and Social Services - - - 17,109 6,50 9,248 678 7 - - - - 31,217 1,334 32,551
5 Other 1,322,399 - 164 - - - 413,710 65,821 193,851 10,701 12,217 - - - 137,743 1,335,107 821,499 26IHB
6 Total 1,322,399 - 227 - - 507,222 2,598,990 288, 1,263,249 50,917 26,945 - - - 2,445,366 4,205,4 4,283,227 8,498,630
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Il. Explanations Related to Credit Risk (continued)

Maturity Distribution of Remaining Maturities of ti me exposures:

Risk Types

Time to Maturity

1 Month 1-3 Months

3-6 Months

6—12 Months

Over arve

Due from central governments or central banks
Regional Governments or Local Government
Receivables

Receivables on Administrative Units and Non-
commercial Enterprises

Receivables on Multilateral Development Banks
Receivables on International Organizations
Receivables on Banks and Capital Market
Intermediary

Corporate Receivables

Retail Receivables

Receivables Secured by Mortgages

Past Due Receivables

Receivables defined in high risk category by BRSA
Collateralized Mortgage Marketable Securities
Securitisation positions

Short-Term Receivables from Banks, brokerage
houses and Corporate

Invesment similar to collective investment funds

Other Receivables

396,626

397,321
194,914

10,827
29,041

2,445,366

81,473

3,196
250,190
33,564
42,918

273

203,140

3,124

450,254
44,874
69,896

2

10,145

18

12,565
797,531
127,550
330,381

782

631,015

209

91,016

906,101
66,500
791,013
50,917
25,888

Total

3,474,095

411,614

771,290

1,278,972

2,562,659

Risk by Risk Weight Balances:

Risk Weights 0% 10% 20%

50% 75%

100%

150%

200%

2500)03eductions from

Equity

Amount before the credit

Amount after the credit
risk mitigation 3,823,300

risk mitigation 3,716,411 - 230,476

229,539 1,209,484

290,637 379,899

3,854,190

262,568 2,947,714

10,556

10,094

16,461 -

15,931 -

*Amounts of the financial collateral are shown &6 @eight.

Fitch ratings are used in computation of risk wéig assets for central government and foreign fanke
equivalence of Fitch ratings to credit quality assfollows;

Credit Quality
AAA & AA-
A+ & A-
BBB+ & BBB-
BB+ & BB-
B+ & B-
CCC+

o g A W N P
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II.  Explanations Related to Credit Risk (continued)

Important sectors or type of information accordingto counterparty

Loans
SectorsCounterpartie Impairec(*) Non-Performing Value Adjustment Provision:
1 Agricultural 2,767 4,445 126 3,125
1.1 Farming and Raising Livestock 2,767 4,355 126 ,06B
1.2 Forestry, Wood and Pajy - 90 - 58
1.2 Fishen - - - -
2 Manufacturing 38,258 44,088 1,779 18,240
2.1 Mining and Quarr 387 7,589 19 2,665
2.2 Productiol 37,871 36,455 1,760 15,575
2.3 Electricity, Gas and Wat - 44 - -
3 Construction 22,093 17,614 1,051 10,439
4 Services 77,384 24,608 3,589 11,363
4.1 Wholesale anRetail Trad 23,045 12,412 1,048 7,855
4.2 Hotel, Tourism, Food and Beverage Serv 20,841 10,289 978 2,573
4.2 Transportation and Communicat 1,627 552 81 550
4.4 Financial Institution 8,002 27 380 26
4.5 Real Estate and Renting Servi - - - -
4.€ SeltEmployment Service 15,111 408 667 117
4.7 Education Services - - - -
4.8 Health and Social Services 8,758 920 435 242
5 Other 8,418 4,815 420 1,486
Total 148,920 95,570 6,965 44,653
*Rescheduled loans
Information on Credit Value Adjustments and Changein loan loss provisions
: The amount of provision - Other Closing
Opening Balance in the period Reversal of Provision Provisions* Balance
1 Specific Provisions 36,376 29,650 (21,373) 44,653
2 General Provisions 30,368 9,705 (7,703) 32,370

*Exhange rate differences, business combinatiooguiaitions, transactions, and those set by thpodi of

subsidiaries.

The table below shows the maximum exposure to tris#tifor the components of the financial statetaen

Gross Maximum Exposure

December 31

December 31

2014 2013
Central Bank 439,629 367,156
Due from bank 273,092 286,397
Due from Money mark transaction - 70,015
Financial assets held for trad 27 116
Derivative financial instrumer 926 149
Financial assets availal-for-sale 775,403 505,738
Held to maturity investme 100,420 98,895
Loan:s 3,365,142 2,668,288
Total 4,954,639 3,996,754
Contingent liabilitie 2,043,323 1,681,382
Irrevocable commitmen 175,104 280,634
Total 2,218,427 1,962,016
Total credit risk exposure 7,173,066 5,958,770
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IIl.  Explanations Related to Credit Risk (continued)

Credit quality per class of financial assets aPeicember 31, 2014 is as follows:

Past due or
Neither past due individually
nor impaired impaired Total

Due from banks 273,092 - 273,092
Financial assets designated at fair value throudfitpr loss 953 - 953
Loans to customers

Corporate lending 2,161,616 213,098 2,374,714

Small business lending 885,161 98,928 984,089

Retail loans 4,696 1,643 6,339

Other -
Total 3,325,518 313,669 3,639,187
Financial Investments

Quoted on a stock exchangdmestic public sector debt

securities 875,823 - 875,823

Quoted on a stock exchangather debt securities - - -

Unguoted on a stock exchang®ebt securities - - -
Total 875,823 - 875,823
Total 4,201,341 313,669 4,515,010

Credit quality per class of financial assets aPDefcember 31, 2013 is as follows:
Past due or
Neither past due individually
nor impaired impaired Total

Due from banks 286,397 - 286,397
Financial assets designated at fair value throudfitr loss 265 - 265
Loans to customers

Corporate lending 1,759,561 137,622 1,897,183

Small business lending 701,461 60,267 761,728

Retail loans 6,877 2,500 9,377

Other
Total 2,754,561 200,389 2,954,950
Financial Investments

Quoted on a stock exchangimestic public sector debt

securities 604,633 - 604,633

Quoted on a stock exchangather debt securities - - -

Unquoted on a stock exchang®ebt securities - - -
Total 604,633 - 604,633
Total 3,359,194 200,389 3,559,583
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Il. Explanations Related to Credit Risk (continued)

Internal Rating December 31, December 31,
Grade 2014 (%) 2013 (%)

High

Risk rating class 1 A+ Excellent 13,598 0.41 15,973 0.61

Risk rating class 2 A- Excellent 101,542 3.06 105,295 4.00
Good

Risk rating class 3 B+ Very Good 317,839 9.59 280,074 10.63

Risk rating class 4 B- Very Good 566,740 17.10 565,943 21.48
Standard

Risk rating class 5 C+ Good 720,953 21.75 480,645 18.24

Risk rating class 6 C- Good 787,940 23.78 603,686 2291
Substandard

Risk rating class 7 D+ Ordinary 478,989 14.45 318,619 12.09

Risk rating class 8 D- Ordinary 200,638 6.05 89,740 341

Risk rating class 9 E Bad 93,262 2.82 42,704 1.62

Risk rating class 10 F Very Bad 2,251 0.07 4,467 0.17
Unrated 30,473 0.92 127,644 4.84
Total 3,314,225 100.00 2,634,790 100.00

The Bank uses 3 main factors for internal credihgasystem. These are financial data, non-findraaga and
specialist decisions. Financial data consist ofitly, financial structure, profitability, growthatios and
turnover rate. Non financial data consist of lohant business, relation with finance sector anttaeanalysis.
The Bank measures the credit rating of companyemdking comparisons regarding the financial dai @on
financial-data.

In the existing rating system, the collateral assthto loans are not taken into account in thengatiThe
information about customers with F, E and D- raisyghown below.

“F” rating;

Number of clients with “F” rating is 7 with an otasding risk of TRY 2,251 (December 31, 2013 : TR¥67;
9 client). 2 of these clients are granted agairmtgage with outstanding risk of TRY 1,140 and asV&l% of
total risk (December 31, 2013: 4 clients, 62%), f2hese clients are granted against customer chettk
outstanding risk of TRY 707 and covers 31% of to&k (December 31, 2013: 1 clients, 19%).

“E” rating;

Number of clients with “E” rating is 37 and totaltetanding risk is TRY 93,262 (December 31, 20IRY
42,704; 31 clients). 9 of these clients are gramtgainst mortgage with outsanding risk of TRY 238,&nd
covers 27% of total “E” Rating Risk (December 3012 : TRY 10,199 TL, %24). 19 of these clients are
granted against Customer Check/Note with outstandgk of TRY 16,756 and covers 18% of total “E"tRg
Risk (December 31,2013 : TRY 2,700; 6%). One ofs¢helients are granted against assignment with
outstanding risk of TRY 17,907 and covers 19%. &bwer, parent company of 3 clients, which have ok
TRY 8,860, have ratings of C- and above (ratioli%o).
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Il. Explanations Related to Credit Risk (continued)
“D-” rating;

Number of clients with D- rating is 80 and totaftstanding risk is TRY 200,638 (December 31, 20ITRY
89,740, 61 client). Clients granted against moréghgve outstanding risk of TRY 95,841 and cove8$s 4f
total “D-" Rating Risk (December 31, 2013 : TRY 209; 23%).

35 of these clients are granted against Customeckéhote with outstanding risk of TRY 48,151 andars
24% of total “D-" Rating Risk. (December 31,2013RY 27,316, %30). 3 of these clients are grantesire
cash collateral with outstanding risk of TRY 1,184d covers 1% of “D-" rating risk. Moreover, parent
company of 2 clients, which have risk of TRY 4,1A@ye ratings of C- and above (ratio is 2%).

There is no financial assets at fair value thropigifitted losswhose terms have been renegotiated .

M. Explanations Related to Market Risk

The Bank has established market risk managememaiiges and taken the necessary precautions i éode
hedge market risk within its financial risk managein purposes, in accordance with the Communiqué on
“Measurement and Assessment of Capital Adequad®aoks” which was published in the Official Gazaite
September 6, 2014 numbered 29111 and Septembd¥18, riumbered 28756 “Regulation Regarding Banks’
Shareholders’ Equity”.

The Board of Directors determines the limits foe thasic risk that the Bank is exposed to. Thosédiare
revised periodically in line with the market forcaad strategies of the Bank. Additionally, the Bbaf
Directors has ensured that the risk managemergidivand senior management has taken necessagupoes
to describe, evaluate, control and manage rislexifhy the Bank.

Interest rate and exchange rate risks, arising fl@volatility in the financial markets are measijrand in the
computation of capital adequacy, the amount subjecVAR calculated by using the standard method
(summarized below) is taken into consideration.idBethe standard method, market risk (VAR) is clalad by
using internal model as supported by scenario aimlgnd stress tests. VAR is calculated daily breeh
different methods which are Monte Carlo, histoiiodation and parametric method, and these resnitsalso
reported daily to the management.

The bank measures its value at risk of its porfolsing forecasted volatility and yield curve mosgepported
by stress tests and scenario analysis. The pugdfdgAR is to define the maximum risk the bank ipesged to.

The Bank uses parametric, historical simulation siahte Carlo methods by considering maximum losglvh
the bank suffers for predictions. The bank caladdhe risk on the portfolio held by the Bank toe amount of
loss resulting from excessive fluctuations in therket with stress test and scenario analysis. Tdeswf self-

protection is determined by the Bank taking thetfpbo into the consideration in case the volailis repeated
and various different crisis takes place. For miarigk, analysis is performed by comparing thendtad

method with VAR.

The risks of on-balance sheet and off-balance swtunts positions depending on fluctuations énfitancial

markets are measured by the bank. Information déggmarket risk which has taken into account i th
calculation of the regulatory capital is presertietbw:
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[l Explanations Related to Market Risk(continued)

Information Related to Market Risk

Amount
(I) Capital Requirement to be Employed For GeneralkgaRisk - Standard Method 1
(I1) Capital Requirement to be Employed For Spedfisk - Standard Method -
Standard Method For Specific Risk of Neces€apital Requirement on Securitization Positions
(1) Capital Requirement to be Employed For CurreRésk — Standard Method 205

(IV) Capital Requirement to be Employed For CommogRisk — Standard Method

(V) Capital Requirement to be Employed For SettlenRigk - Standard Method -
(VI) Total Capital Requirement to be Employed For k&arRisk Resulting From Options - Standard Method

(VII) Capital Requirement to be Employed For CountespRisk - Standard Method

(VIIl) Total Capital Requirement to be Employed Foafidet Risk in Banks Using Risk Measurement Model
(IX) Total Capital Requirement to be Employed For kéarRisk (I+11+I1+IV+V+VI) 244

(X) Amount Subject to Market Risk (12.5 x VIII) or (12.5 x 1X) 3,050

December 31, 2014

Average Maximum Minimum

Interest Rate Risk 2 10 1
Common Stock Risk - -

Currency Risk 129 212 82
Commodity Risk - - -
Settlement Risk - - -
Option Risk - - -
Counterparty Risk 36 53 20
Total Value Subject to Risk 2,083 3,438 1,288

December 31, 2013

Average Maximum Minimum

Interest Rate Risk 1 2 1
Common Stock Risk - -

Currency Risk 157 341 65
Commodity Risk - - -
Settlement Risk - - -
Option Risk - - -
Counterparty Risk 18 49 5
Total Value Subject to Risk 2,210 4,900 883
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lll.  Explanations Related to Market Risk (continued)

Quantitative Counterparty Risk Information

Amount

Interest Rate Based Contracts -
Exchange Rate Based Contracts (*) 34,124
Commodity Base Contract -
Common Stock Based Contracts -
Gross Profit Fair Value (**) 1,064
Benefits to Clarify -
Net Amount of Current Risk -
Guarantees Held -
The Net Position of Derivatives (***) 2,241

Other 83,554
(*) Principal

(**) Positive Replacement Cost
(***) Calculated Counterparty Credit Risk

For counterparty credit risks, limits are setByard of Directors. Counterparty credit risk ismaged by the
Financial Institutions Department of the Bank bkitig into account the counterparty’s financial reppgeneral
overview, rating, current and expected transactmnmes with the Bank.

Within the scope Regulation on the Internal SystefrBanks and Regulation on Measurement and Assagsm
of Capital Adequacy of Bank’s and “Regulation om timternal System of Bank’s, published in the Gdfic
Gazette No. 29111 dated September 6, 2014 , “Cparty Credit Risk Management Policy” is formederth
approved by the Board of Directors and publistrethé Bank.

Limits are defined by Board of Directors and colim daily and reported to the Bank.In additiorttiat,related
current limits are taken into capital accounts.

Other price risks:

The Bank does not invest in share certificates epioin a stock exchange hence it is not subjedtdoesprice
risk.

IV. Explanations Related to Operational Risk

Basic indicators approach:

1PY Total/Postive gI
Amount CY Amount number of years

Gross income 92,917 141,705 165,625 133,416 15 20,012

2 PY Amount Rate (%) Total

The amount subject to operational risk

(Total*12.5) 250,154

The Operational risk is calculated on an annuaishasaccordance with the "Regulation on Measureraed
Evaluation of Capital Adequacy of Banks"

Operational risk is the risk of a loss resultingnfrinadequate or failed internal processes, enagldgults or
system errors or external factors. The Bank’s umigmage this risk through clearly defined policig®cedures
and internal controls. Bank’s, operational processe planned by the Central Operations Departioeated at
Head Office. Branch operations managers are redpentor all operations done and work under Central
Operations Department independent of branch masage

Risk Management Group calculates operationalatstording to Basel Il Basic Indicator Method. ThenR's
final objective is, by using advanced measuremesgthods, to detect quantitative and qualitativésrien
process and transaction basis and to make the 8&wdior Management aware of operational riskstraisn
and residual risks by submitting reports.
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IV. Explanations Related to Operational Risk (conthued)

By using this independemtnalysis tool , independent of execution and iratteglr with daily risk management
processes, Risk Management Group maintains riegpogherational risks and losses regularly.

In accordence with Procurement of Support Serviopsgrational risk of support service firms areeased.
With departments related with support service dirmisk analysis studies are conducted by Risk lgament
Group. For support service firms , annual risk aggament program is formed and then presented tBdhed
of Directors.

By Risk Management Group , within IT Risk Managemeframework, risks related to IT proceses are
assessed. Enhancement activities for critical ldceses are coordinated. In order to take actigasnst
findings detected by independent audit firm, enkament activities are coordinated with related depents.
Within enhancement process, actions to be takeasa®ssed at Committee of IT risk and Sub- ComenittéT

risk and then decideds a result oktudies conducted undemhancement activities , procedures are formed or
existing procedures are updated if necessary. égidns steps of processes are revised, if reqaicédns for
enhancemenare suggesteand whether these actions are implemented by detlgpartments are followed up.

Sub-Committee of IT risk chaired by Risk Managen@rdup, calculates impacts and frequencies ofdisrby
doing required updates ever year. By presenting assessment results for IT risks above threshold
Committee of IT riskwhich decides on mitigating, accepting, avoidingransferring risk, Sub- Committee of
IT risk maintains that actions are taken and tledlowiys up actions.

Within IT Risk Management framework, business auuity plan and related IT Continuity Plan were ueda

in 2014 in coordination with related departmentsthif business continuity plan scope, by negotgtihe
Bank's all departments, critical business processes assessed , the Bank’s Contingency Plan, Crisis
Management Plan, Business Recovery Plan and tesenapalated. Also, Business Continuity Procedure is
formed. In 2014, business continuity and relateddmtinuity tests for critical processes are caneld.

V. Explanations Related to Currency Risk

Foreign currency risk indicates the probability lofs that banks are subject to due to the exchasige
movements in the market. While calculating the stwpital requirement, all foreign currency asdetbilities

and forward transactions of the Bank are taken amosideration and value at risk is calculated bya the
standard method.

The Board of Directors sets limits for the posii@and stop losses which are followed up daily asdkly. Any
possible changes in the foreign currency transastio the Bank’s positions are also monitored.

The announced current foreign exchange buying @ftése Bank at December 31, 2014 and the previives
working days in full TRY are as follows (Bank’s E@aluation rates):

24 Dec 2014 25 Dec 2014 26 Dec 2014 29 Dec 2014 30 Dec 2014 31 Dec 2014

usD 2.3180 2.3128 2.3154 2.3193 2.3261 2.3301
CHF 2.3507 2.3550 2.3437 2.3508 2.3553 2.3499
GBP 3.6026 3.5935 3.6009 3.6033 3.6180 3.6297
100 JPY 1.9250 1.9250 1.9220 1.9220 1.9530 1.9500
EUR 2.8259 2.8335 2.8178 2.8273 2.8316 2.8248
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V. Explanations Related to Currency Risk (continued)

The simple arithmetic averages of the major curfergign exchange buying rates of the Bank for ttiigy
days before December 31, 2014 are as follows:

Monthly Average
Foreign Exchange Rate
usb 2.2949
CHF 2.3506
GBP 3.5876
100 JPY 1.9196
EUR 2.8259
December 31, 2014 EUR USD YEN OTHER TOTAL
Assets
Cash (Cash in Vault, Foreign Currency Cash, Monélransit,
Cheques Purchased, Precious Metals) and Balanteshei
Central Bank of Turkey. 64,738 332,029 - 27,809 424,576
Banks 11,434 194,705 91 2,825 209,055
Financial Assets at Fair Value Through Profit amdd. (****) - - - - -
Money Market Placements - - - - -
Available-For-Sale Financial Assets - 3 - - 3
Loans (*) 292,318 666,410 - - 958,728
Subsidiaries, Associates and Jointly Controlletities - - - - -
Held-To-Maturity Investments - - - - -
Derivative Financial Assets for Hedging Purposes - - - - -
Tangible Assets - - - - -
Intangible Assets - - - - -
Other Assets 531 5 - - 536
Total Assets 369,021 1,193,152 91 30,634 1,592,898
Liabilities
Bank Deposits 14,181 450 - 1,460 16,091
Foreign Currency Deposits 325,065 1,089,241 - 263 1,414,569
Money Market Borrowings - - - - -
Funds Provided From Other Financial Institutions ,483 70,956 - - 124,440
Marketable Securities Issued - - - - -
Sundry Creditors 1,063 8,219 - - 9,282
Derivative Financial Liabilities for Hedging Purpss - - - - -
Other Liabilities (****) 456 1,765 - - 2,221
Total Liabilities 394,249 1,170,631 - 1,723 1,566,603
Net Balance Sheet Position (25,228) 22,521 91 28,911 26,295
Net Off-Balance Sheet Position 24,717 (24,539) - (27,565) (27,386)
Financial Derivative Assets (***) 27,652 2,446 - 27,565 57,663
Financial Derivative Liabilities (***) (2,935) (26,985) - (55,130)  (85,050)
Non-Cash Loans (**) 230,105 452,079 - 98 682,282
December 31, 2013
Total Assets(*) (****) 447,777 933,616 176 29,993 1,411,562
Total Liabilities 419,226 964,020 - 2,745 1,385,991
Net Balance Sheet Position 28,551 (30,406) 176 27,248 25,571
Net Off-Balance Sheet Position (30,221) 28,299 - (25,896) (27,818)
Financial Derivative Assets (***) 1,630 33,822 - - 35,452
Financial Derivative Liabilities (***) (31,851) (5,523) - (25,896)  (63,270)
Non-Cash Loans (**) 211,200 439,190 838 9,118 660,346

Foreign currency indexed loans amounting to TRY6,286 (December 31, 2013: TRY 395,575) are dedu in the loan

*
portfolio.
(**) There are no effects on the net off-balanceedtposition.
(***)
TRY 7,319
(****)

(December 31, 2013: TRY 149 asset from derivaiivaricial instruments are not included).
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V. Explanations Related to Currency Risk (continuedl
Foreign currency sensitivity:
The Bank holds EUR and USD currencies positionsipai

The following table details the Bank’s sensitivitya 10% increase or decrease in the TRY againf ai®l
EUR. 10% is the sensitivity rate used when repgrfioreign currency risk internally to key manageinen
personnel and represents management’s assessmetfite opossible change in foreign exchange rates.
Positive/(Negative) number indicates a change dfitpor loss and other equity where USD and EUReéase
10% against TRY.

Change in currencyrate in % Effect on profit or loss Effect on equity
December 31, 201 December 31, 201 December 31, 201 December 31, 201

usb %10 increas 202 (211)

usb %10 decreas (202) 211

EUR %10 increas (51) (167)

EUR %10 decreas 51 167

Other Currenc %10 increase 145 5.332

Other Currenc 910 decrease (145) (5.332)

VI. Explanations Related to Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk shows the probability of losktel to the changes in interest rates dependinth®mBank’s
position, and it is managed by the Asset-Liabiligmmittee. The interest rate sensitivity of asskdbijlities
and off-balance sheet items related to this rigkmaeasured by using the standard method and irctlindne
market risk for capital adequacy.

Risk Department performs duration, maturity andsgesty analysis to protect the effect of interastte
volatility and reported to the Asset-Liability Corittae.

Simulations on interest income are performed imeation with the forecasted economic indicatorslusghe
budget of the Bank. The negative effects of thetilations in the market interest rates on the fir@rposition
and the cash flows are minimized by revising buedé¢argets.

The Bank management follows the market interestrdgily and revises the interest rates of the Bardnever
necessary.

Since the Bank does not permit maturity mismatareisnposes limits on mismatch, a significant ingtnate
risk exposure is not expected.
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VI.  Explanations Related to Interest Rate Risk (ontinued)

Information related to the interest rate sensitivily of assets, liabilities and off-balance sheet itesr(based
on repricing dates):

Uptol 1-3 312 1-5 Over  Non-interest
Month Months Months Years 5 Years bearing Total

December 31201¢«
Asset:
Cash (Cash in Vault, Foreign Currency Cs
Money in Transit, Cheques Purchased, Precious
Metals) and Balances with the Central Bank of

Turkey - - - - - 477,144 477,144
Banks 231,787 - - - - 41,305 273,092
Financial Assets at Fair Value ThrouProfit
and Los - - - - 27 926 953
Money Market Placemer - - - - - R -
Available-For-Sale Financial Asse 200,209 183,273 391,917 - 4 137 775,540
Loans (* 2,013,808 113,440 400,259 781,258 5,460 - 3,314,225
Held-To-Maturity Investment - - 79,857 20,563 - - 100,420
Other Assets (** - - - - - 147,186 147,186

Total Asset: 2,445,804 296,713 872,033 801,821 5,491 666,698 5,088,560
Liabilities
Bank Deposit 11,506 14,140 - - - 2,282 27,928
Other Deposi 2,145,706 1,036,607 190,346 31,433 - 156,505 3,560,597
Money Market Borrowing 430,464 - - - - - 430,464
Sundry Credito! - - - - - 61,746 61,746
Marketable Securities Isst - - - - - - -
Funds Provided From Other Financial Instituti 14,337 4,191 118,559 1,165 - - 138,252
Other Liabilities (***) 579 455 - - - 868,539 869,573
Total Liabilities 2,602,59. 1,055,39 308,905 32,598 - 1,089,072 5,088,560
Balance Sheet Long Positi - - 563,128 769,223 5,491 - 1,337,842
Balance Sheet ShcPositior (156,788) (758,680 - - - (422,374 (1,337,842)
Off-Balance Sheet Long Posit - - - - - 113,131 113,131
Off-Balance Sheet Short Posit - - - - - (112,286 (112,286)
Total Position (156,788) (758,680 563,128 769,223 5,491 (421,529 845
*) Up to 1 month column consist of revolving loaasd corporate FC indexed loans.

** The other assets line in the non-interest rpcolumn consist of tangible assets amountingRY 48,020, intangible assets amounting to TRY
18,231, tax asset amounting to TRY 3,972, netperforming loans amounting to TRY 50,917, prepaigemses amounting to TRY 6,498,settlement
account amounting to TRY 16,860 and other assetaiating to TRY 2,688.
(***) The other liabilities line in the non-interedearing column consist of shareholders’ equityanting to TRY 753,737, TRY 61,746 provisions,
settlement account amount TRY 32,689, and TR8&Dpther liabilities.

Average interest rates applied to monetary financieinstruments:

EUR usb YEN TRY
% % % %
December 31, 2014
Assets
Cash (Cash in Vault, Foreign Currency Cash, Monélransit, Cheques - - - 1.41
Purchased, Reserve Deposits) And Balances WithCEmeral Bank Of
Turkey (*)
Banks 0.08 0.19 - 10.48
Financial Assets At Fair Value Through Profit Anolsis - - - 10.41
Money Market Placements - - - -
Available-For-Sale Financial Assets - 6.76 - 3.30
Loans 6.22 5.85 - 12.91
Held-To-Maturity Investments - - - 7.03
Liabilities
Bank Deposits 1.14 1.52 - 8.60
Other Deposits 2.73 2.85 - 10.66
Money Market Borrowings - - - 9.99
Sundry Creditors - - - -
Marketable Securities Issued - - - -
Funds Provided From Other Financial Institutions 212. 2.38 - 6.58

*) Effective from November 1, 2014, interest has bpaid from TRY reserve deposits by CBRT. Avaregeerest rate base
represents November and December avarege intatest r
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VI.  Explanations Related to Interest Rate Risk (ontinued)

Information related to the interest rate sensitivity of assets, liabilities and off-balance sheet itesn(based
on repricing dates):

Uptol 1-3 312 1-5 Over  Non-interest Total
Month Months Months Years 5 Years bearing
December 31201
Asset:
Cash (Cash in Vault, Foreign Currency Cs
Money in Transit, Cheques Purchased, Precious
Metals) and Balances with the Central Bank of
Turkey - - - - - 390,410 390,410
Banks 278,787 - - - - 7,610 286,397
Financial Assets at Fair Value Through P
and Los - 91 - - 25 149 265
Money Market Placemer 70,015 - - - - - 70,015
Available-For-Sale Financial Asse 122,595 89,389 136,915 156,837 2 75 505,813
Loans (* 1,750,627 108,541 233,172 511,380 31,063 7 2,634,790
Held-To-Maturity Investment - 5,159 16,712 77,024 - - 98,895
Other Assets (** - - - - - 124,678 124,678
Total Asset: 2,222,024 203,180 386,799 745,241 31,090 522,929 4,111,263
Liabilities
Bank Deposit 10,002 32,359 - - - 1,866 44,227
Other Deposit 1,849,606 538,142 240,775 1,971 - 162,416 2,792,910
Money MarketBorrowings 395,085 - - - - - 395,085
Sundry Creditol - - - - - 25,551 25,551
Marketable Securities Isst - - - - - - -
Funds Provided From Other Financial Instituti 38,989 35,617 140,070 2,319 - - 216,995
Other Liabilities (***) 451 466 - - - 635,578 636,495
Total Liabilities 2,294,133 606,584 380,845 4,290 - 825,411 4,111,263
Balance Sheet Long Positi - - 5,954 740,951 31,090 - 777,995
Balance Sheet Short Posit (72,109)  (403,404) - - - (302,482) (777,995)
Off-Balanct Sheet Long Positic - - - - - 56,923 56,923
Off-Balance Sheet Short Posit - - - - - (57,503) (57,503)
Total Position (72,109)  (403,404) 5,954 740,951 31,090 (303,062) (580)
*) Up to 1 month column consist of revolving loans @aorporate FC indexed loans.

** The other assets line in the non-interestrigacolumn consist of tangible assets amounting®RY 36,013, intangible assets amounting to TRY
20,674, tax asset amounting to TRY 9,708, settlemecount amounting to TRY 16,499, prepaid expeasesunting to TRY 6,047, non-performing
loans amounting to 33,498 and other assets amautatiiRY 2,239.

(***)  The other liabilities line in the non-interebearing column consists of shareholders’ equitganting to TRY 539,805, tax liability amounting T®RY
8,637, provisions amounting to TRY 49,299, settlen@ecount amounting to TRY 32,187 and other liaiéd amounting to 5,650.

Average interest rates applied to monetary financieinstruments:

EUR usbD YEN TRY
% % % %
December 31, 2013
Assets
Cash (Cash in Vault, Foreign Currency Cash, Monéelransit, Cheques
Purchased, Reserve Deposits) And Balances WitiCEm¢ral Bank Of
Turkey - - - -
Banks 0.21 0.22 - 7.00
Financial Assets At Fair Value Through Profit Anolsis - - - 8.91
Money Market Placements - - - 7.74
Available-For-Sale Financial Assets - 7.38 - 3.76
Loans 6.38 6.19 - 11.84
Held-To-Maturity Investments - - - 7.58
Liabilities
Bank Deposits - 2.12 - 7.75
Other Deposits 3.31 3.33 - 8.99
Money Market Borrowings - - - 6.78
Sundry Creditors - - - -
Marketable Securities Issued - - - -
Funds Provided From Other Financial Institutions 872. 3.05 - 6.11
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VI.  Explanations Related to Interest Rate Risk (cotinued)

Nature of interest rate risk resulted from banking book, major assumptions includes also assumption on
early repayment of loans and movements in depositether than term deposits and frequency of
measuring interest rate risk.

With the exception of items included under on tngdaccounts, and items which are other than sutateti
debts considered on equity accounts in accordaritte “Regulation on Equity of Banks” which have been
published on the Official Gazette dated Septembhe203.3 numbered 28756, the interest rate risk floora
balance sheet and off-balance sheet items, whiehirderest sensitive, and for banking accounts been
calculated. In calculation of interest rate risgie bank has no any assumptions for early repayofdatins and
demand deposits. Interest rate risk arising frormklyay accounts is calculated and is reported to BR®nthly.

Economic value differences resulted from interestate instabilities calculated according to Regulatio on
Measurement and Evoluation of Interest Rate Risk Reulted from Banking Book as per Standard Schock
Method.

Unit of Currency Applicable Shock (+/- Profit/ Loss Profit / Equity Capital —
base point)* Loss / Equity Capital
500 (60,553) (8%)
TRY (400) 56,117 7%
200 (4,839) (1%)
EUR (200) 5,259 1%
200 (10,270) (1%)
usb (200) 11,193 1%
Total (For Negative Shock) 72,569 10%
Total (For Positive Shock) (75,661) (10%)

* The intensity and direction of a currency diffeteows are entered separately for each shock.

Interest rate sensitivity:

If interest rates had been increased by 0.5% in BRY by 0.5% in FC and all other variables werel hel
constant, the Bank’s:

» Net profit would change by TRY 7,074. The changepinfit mainly is related to loans and deposits
(December 31, 2013 : TRY 4,687).

« Possible changes in the interest rates effectedhiy as a result of the revaluation of the addeor-sale
assets decreases equity by TRY 233 (December 3., IRl 313).
VII. Explanations Related to Equity Position Risk

The bank has no outstanding stock position.

VIIl. Explanations Related to Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk occurs when there is insufficientstaor cash inflows to meet the cash outflows cotepleand
timely.

Liquidity risk may also occur when the market pea@bn is not adequate, when the open positionsatalne
closed quickly at suitable prices and sufficienbamts due to barriers and break-ups at the markets.

The Bank’s policy is to establish an asset strctbat can meet all kinds of liabilities by liqusdurces at all

times. In this context, liquidity problem has neieln faced in any period. In order to maintain tthis,Board of
Directors of the Bank continuously determines séads for the liquidity ratios, and monitors them.
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VIIl. Explanations Related to Liquidity Risk (conti nued)

According to the general policies of the Bank, mh@ching of the maturity and interest rate struetirassets,
and liabilities is always established within theetdiability management strategies. A positivéedénce is tried
to be established between the yields of TRY andidor currency assets and liabilities on the balaheet and
their costs. In this sense, various crisis sceramioich are prepared by risk management group resepted to
management and audit committee.

When the funding and liquidity sources are consderthe Bank covers majority of its liquidity nebg
deposits, and in addition to this source, it malkkes of pre-financing and syndication products toegate
additional sources.

Bank calculated liquidity adequacy ratio in botbrefign currency and total amount as perBasel hid, reported
to BRSA according to Bank’s Regulation on Measunetnaed Evaluation of Liquidity Adequacy Ratio deeld
in 2013. Furthermore, liquidity risk analysis forereported weekly to BRSA by the Bank in 2013.

Presentation of assets and liabilities according ttheir remaining maturities:

Uptol 1-3 3-12 1-5 Over  Undistributed

December 31, 2014 Demand Month Month Months Years 5 Years (*) Total
Assets

Cash (Cash in Vault, Foreign Currency Cash, 100,426 229,714 110,686 32,851 3,467 - - 477,144

Money in Transit, Cheques Purchased, Precious

Metals) and Balances with the Central Bank of

Turkey (****)

Banks 41,305 231,787 - - - - - 273,092

Financial Assetst Fair Value Through Profit ar - - 926 - - 27 - 953

Loss

Money Market Placements - - - - - - - -

Available-For-Sale Financial Assets - 163 81,473 134,969 81,980 476,818 137 775,540

Loans (***) - 2,013,808 113,440 400,259 781,258 5,460 - 3,314,225

Held-To-Maturity Investments - - - 78,316 20,563 1,541 - 100,420

Other Assets - 16,860 - - - - 130,326 147,186
Total Assets 141,731 2,492,332 306,525 646,395 887,268 483,846 130,463 5,088,560
Liabilities

Bank Deposits 2,282 11,506 14,140 - - - - 27,928

Other Deposits 156,505 2,145,706 1,036,607 190,346 31,433 - - 3,560,597

Funds Provided From Other Financial Institutions - 14,337 4,191 118,559 1,165 - - 138,252

Money Market Borrowings - 430,464 - - - - - 430,464

Marketable Securities Issued - - - - - - - -

Sundry Creditors - 61,746 - - - - - 61,746

Other Liabilities (**) - 51,220 455 - - - 817,898 869,573
Total Liabilities 158,787 2,714,979 1,055,393 308,905 32,598 - 817,898 5,088,560
Liquidity Gap (17,056) (222,647) (748,868) 337,490 854,670 483,846 (687,435) -
December 31, 2013
Total Assets 67,579 2,340,320 184,813 334,098 774,093 302,106 108,254 4,111,263
Total Liabilities 164,282 2,366,158 606,584 380,845 4,290 - 589,104 4,111,263
Liquidity Gap (96,703)  (25,838) (421,771) (46,747) 769,803 302,106 (480,850) -
*) The assets which are necessary to provide bankingces and can not be liquidated in the short tesuch as tangible assets,

investments in subsidiaries and associates angbedarming loans are classified under undistributed
**) Shareholders’ equity is shown under other ilidies in undistributed column.
(***)  Rotative loans are classified in up to 1 nib column.
(***)  Reserve requirement distribution is based maturity distribution of liabilities on which threserve is calculated.
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VIIl. Explanations Related to Liquidity Risk (conti nued)

Analysis of financial liabilities by remaining contractual maturities:

Upto1l 1-3 312 1-5 Over 5 Adjustments
Month Months Months Years Years (*) Total
As of December 31, 201
Bank Deposit 11,517 14,137 - - - ®) 25,646
Other deposi 2,151,571 1,047,449 198,101 38,186 - (31,215) 3,404,092
Funds provided from other financ 430,645 - - - (181) 430,464
institutions
Money market borrowing 14,341 4,285 120,288 1,215 - (1,877) 138,252
Total 2,608,074 1,065,871 318,389 39,401 - (33,281) 3,998,454
As of December 31, 201
Bank Deposit 10,00 32,45¢ - - 97) 42,36
Other deposi 1,856,501 545,399 248,631 2,187 - (22,224) 2,630,49
Funds provided from other financ
institutions 395,17¢ - - - - (91) 395,08!
Money market borrowing 39,14: 35,95( 143,35t 2,43( - (3,884 216,99
Total 2,300,82: 613,80¢ 391,98¢ 4,617 - (26,296 3,284,931
*) Interest to be paid until the maturity datetioé balance sheet.

Analysis of contractual expiry by maturity of the Bank’s derivative financial instruments:

Upto1l 3-12 1-5 Over 5

December 31, 2014 Month 1-3 Months Months Years Years Total

Trading Derivatives Instruments

Foreign Exchange Derivativ 844 1 - - - 845
- Addition 110,476 2,655 - - - 113,131
- Disposal -) (109,632) (2,654) - - - (112,286)

Interest Rate Derivativ - - - - - -
- Addition - - - - - -
- Disposal -) - - - - - -

Trading Derivatives Instruments

Foreign Exchange Derivativ - - - - - -
- Addition - - - - - -
- Disposal -) - - - - - -

Interest Rate Derivativ - - - - - -
- Addition - - - - - -
- Disposal -) - - - - - -

Total cash flow 110,74t 2,65¢ 113,131

Total cash inflow (109,632 (2,096 (112,286)

Upto 1l 3-12 1-5 Over 5

December 31, 2013 Month 1-3 Months Months Years Years Total

Trading Derivatives Instruments

Foreign Exchange Derivativ (582 - 2 - - (580
- Addition 53,75¢ 2,09¢ 1,06¢ - - 56,92:
- Disposal -) (54,340 (2,096 (1,0€7) - - (57,503

Interest Rate Derivativ - - - -
- Addition - - - - - -
- Disposal -) - - - - - -

Trading Derivatives Instruments

Foreign Exchange Derivativ - - - - - -
- Addition - - - - - -
- Disposal -) - - - - - -

Interest Rate Derivativ - - - - - -
- Addition - - - - - -
- Disposal -) - -

Total cash flown 53,75¢ 2,09¢ 1,06¢ - - 56,92:

Total cash inflow (54,340 (2,096 (1,0€7) - - (57,503
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IX. Explanations on Securitization Positions

None.

X. Explanations on Credit Risk Mitigation Techniques

All avaiable financial collaterals, which have baesed in comprehensive financial collateral methatk used
by the Bank according to the credit risk mitigattechnique. As the Bank has only cash blockagestrry bills
and government bonds, as collateral only thosestgeolleterals are included in the calculation.

X. Explanations on Credit Risk Mitigation Techniques (continued)

Colleteral on the basis of risk classes

Risk Types Other / Guaranties
Financial Physical and Credit

Amount Colleteral Collateral Derivatives
Contingent and Non-Contingent Receivables on Sayese 1,322,399 - - -

Contingent and Non-Contingent Receivables on RegiGovernments - - - -
and Local Authorities

Contingent and Non-Contingent Receivables on Adstriafive Units 227 75 - -
and Non-commercial Enterprises

Contingent and Non-Contingent Receivables on Muéiial - - - -
Development Banks

Contingent and Non-Contingent Receivables on latigonal - - - -
Organizations

Contingent and Non-Contingent Receivables on BankisCapital 507,222 941 - -
Market Intermediary

Contingent and Non-Contingent Corporate Receivables 2,598,990 91,408 - -
Contingent and Non-Contingent Retail Receivables 283,315 22,872 - -
Contingent and Non-Contingent Receivables Secuyd®rtiperty 1,263,249 - - -

Past Due Receivables 50,917 2 - -

Receivables defined in high risk category by BRSA 26,945 979 - -

Collateralized Mortgage Marketable Securities - - - -
Securitization positions - - - -
Short-Term Receivables from Banks, brokerage homisé<Corporate - - - -
Invesment similar to collective investment funds - - - -
Other Receivables 2,445,366 - - -
Total 8,498,630 116,277 - -

Xl.  Risk Management Objectives and Policies

Risk management strategies and practices are defiadollows: The Bank's Risk Management Group was
establised in 2001 as an independent unit whiclortepto the Member of Audit Committee have been
reponsible for the Audit, Internal Control and Ridinagement.

Risk management is committed to control processesrdler to determine the limits and measurement of
operational risks, including the risks comprasirig aredit, market, interest rate, concentration)nterparty,
ligiudity, banking accounts and IT risks.

Objective of risk policies: In line with “Regulatioon Internal Systems of Banks (published in théc@f
Gazette dated July 11, 2014 numbered 29057)”, isirsggthe Bank’s operations in accordance withBlagks’'s
strategic plans, mission, targets, profitabilitydgsroductivitiy principles by determining Bank'sski strategy
and maximum risk level in line with the volume, Gfieation and complexity of the Bank’s operatiohy
taking into consideration the Bank’s past expemeand performance. Moreover, ensuring to conseree t
interests of depositors and the Bank’s sharehadetérest at a maximum level.
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XI.  Risk Management Objectives and Policies (contued)

Risk management regularly reports to Senior Manag¢rand the Audit Committee all the risks the bank
exposed to and concentrations, and the Bank’s awearnial limits of the legal limits are monitoredilga

weekly, monthly and quarterly. These reports cdnsis VAR analysis, market risk limits, stres testiand

scenario analysis, liquidity and interest rate,neenic capital and capital adequacy analysis. Thegerts (daily
value at risk (VAR) analysis, weekly interest raisk, market risk limits and contains the calcwatiof

economic capital) are also presented to Asset-liiaanagement Committee on a weekly basis. Vitgti

and closing values of a large number of market inskruments are closely monitored and reporte@ aiaily

basis.

Quarterly stress tests and scenario analyzes omoggo capital, capital adequacy, liquidity and peddility
scenarios and credit risk on Bank’s loan portfatioluding benchmark of similar banks are presentethe
Audit Committee. Management follows the Bank’s perfance and the limits by using these detailedrtepo

Risk Management Group calculates Basel Il capidglgaacy calculation systematically, namely Cred#kR
Market Risk and Operational Risk, in accordancétRegulation on Measurement and Assessment oftélapi
Adequacy of Bank’s” published in the Official Gaeetlated September 6, 2014, numbered 29111."

From January 1, 2014 equity and the capital adggtet@ of the Bank is calculated in accordancehwite
“Change in the Regulation on Measurement and Assarsisof Capital Adequacy Ratios of Banks” publisied
the Official Gazette no. 29111, dated Septemb@0&4 and “Regulation on Equities of Banks” publiie the
Official Gazette no0.28756, dated September 5, 2013.

The Bank updated its disclosures in accordance thieh "Change in the Communique on the Financials
Statements to be announced to public by Banks #sas/&xplanations and Footnotes Thereof" publishettie
Official Gazette n0.28983, dated April 26, 2014.

At the Bank, by considering Regulation on the In&rSystems of Banks published in the Official Gizélo.
29057 dated July 11,2014 , banking processes anlitiggo were revised. Consequently, related
procedures/policies are updated/formed and theroapg by the Board of Directors.

In order to manage operational risks that the Bianéxposed to more effectively and form an intezgpatsk
management point of view, Operational Risk Poliog &T Continuity Plan was updated, Data Management
Procedure was formed.

In order to define, measure, limit and report marigk the Bank is exposed to, Market Risk Polisyfarmed.
When the Bank manages its treasury securitiesghiortivithin the limits determined by the Board oif &tors,
Risk Management Group checks whether Treasury Dapat is within these risk limits.

Liquidity Risk is the risk that the Bank cannotfiililits payment obligations fully and on time due its
insufficient cash inflow or due to inadequate aafalié cash resulting from the mismatch between odkiws
and outflows. In order to define, measure, folloeport the liquidity risk the Bank is exposed tadaake
necessary actions for the results, Liquidity Riskidy is formed. When Liquidity Risk Policy is fomed, to
manage the net liquidity position and liquidity sdg@ment on an ongoing and forward-looking basis is
aimed at.

Concentration risk is the risk within credit ridlat is exposed according to individual debtor abitar groups,
to debtor groups that indicate similar charactiessin terms of economic and regional sector gealiton the
basis of the assets subject to the collateral ge=uthat show similar price pattern behavioue tisk that is to
be considered also within the scope of the maik&tand operational risk. In order to define, measiollow
and manage the concentration risk the Bank is egts Concentration Risk Policy is formed. Concatitn
limits are monitored in compliance with the credigposit and related policies.

Counterparty credit risk refers to the default iékhe counterparty of the transaction beforeldiseé payment in
the cash flow of this transaction of which bringsabligation to both sides. In order to define, mea, follow
and manage the counterparty credit risk the Bankx@osed to Counterparty Credit Risk Policy is fedm
Counterparty credit risk management is conductedhiey Financial Institutions Department of the Bdnk
taking into account the counterparty’s financiapads, general overview, rating, current and exxbct
transaction volumes with T-Bank. The limits for oterparties are determined by the Board of Director
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Xl.  Risk Management Objectives and Policies (conued)

"Banking Book" includes all Assets and Liabiliti@scluding credit) except trading securities pditfoln order
to define, measure, follow, report the interesé nésk related to banking book risk the Bank isaseul to and
take necessary actions for the results, interéstrisk policy related to banking book is formeaterest rate risk
is managed by senior management in order to awsigkk from adverse interest rate movements.

Regarding internal assessment process (ISEDES ABJAvhich aims at the Bank has capital requirement
according to its risk profile, Internal Capital Magement Procedure is formed. Within internal cépita
management scope, the Bank has established a st®sbasedmanagement by taking into account the
estimated maximum loss amount that may occur idigreperational, market and other risks as welttes
changes in the market.

In order to ensure that the Bank’s term depositcttire is in line with the Bank’s strategies andldpt targets
and is in a robust and sustainable structure, Depaticy is formed. Policies and systems in orttedefine,
measure and follow the concentration risk of thaelBadeposit is also explained in Deposit Policy.

Risk Management Procedure is also updated in suaydhat it includes all the definitions above.

Risk Reporting and Scope and Nature of Measurei@gstems: Limits and market risk reports are present
daily basis by the Risk Management Group, valuRisk report (APKO), ECAP stress test, scenario yais)|
Durating Gap primary shock, the market data andt lieports are presented a weekly basis to Astédbility
Committee. On a quarterly basis, the rest of tiponts and other works are reported to Audit Coneaithnd
Board of Directors.

Hedging Risk and Process of Risk Mitigation Pobc@nd Process Related to Control Their Effectivenes
Continuously: Bank carries out risk mitigation peeses and risk hedging for credit risk in accordanih
credit risk policies. Risks related to market rile measured and monitored in accordance with cgijgn
procedures and policies. In this respect the limitsallocated by the Board of Directors. Limits aronitored,
reported, in the event of any limit exceed it ipaged to relevant committees adn units throughudemntation

by electronic mail. In addition, information abdumits on use and loan segment concentration iseured to
Audit Committee and the Board of Directos on quéyrte

XIl. Explanations Related to Presentation of Finan@l Assets and Liabilities at Fair Value

Book Value Fair Value
December 31, December 31, December 31, December 31,
2014 2013 2014 2013
Financial Assets 4,514,057 3,629,333 4,532,463 3,658,990
Money Market Placements - 70,015 - 70,015
Banks 273,092 286,397 273,092 286,397
Available-For-Sale Financial Assets (*) 775,403 5B 775,403 505,738
Held-To-Maturity Investments 100,420 98,895 100,581 97,208
Loans 3,365,142 2,668,288 3,383,387 2,699,632
Financial Liabilities 4,218,987 3,474,768 4,220,037 3,475,372
Bank Deposits 27,928 44,227 27,929 44,227
Other Deposits 3,560,597 2,792,910 3,560,820 2,793,189
Funds Borrowed From Other Financial
Institutions 138,252 216,995 139,078 217,320
Money Market Borrowings 430,464 395,085 430,464 085,
Sundry Creditors 61,746 25,551 61,746 25,551

(*) Unquoted stocks amounting to TRY 137 have re#rbconsidered in fair value calculation.

The following methods and assumptions were usedtimate the fair value of the financial instrunsent
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VII. Explanations Related to Presentation of Finan@l Assets and Liabilities at Fair Value (continued

i Financial assets:

Money market placements and banks are carriethattsed cost values on the face of the finandatksnents
and due to their short term nature, their faiuealare considered to be approximate to their ctispecarrying
values. The discount rate used to calculate theviaue of held to maturity investments and loalasid
receivables as of December 31, 2014 is the maakes available for the loan and security types.

ii. Financial liabilities:

The fair value of bank deposits, money market hwoimgs and sundry creditors are considered to ajmpiate
their respective carrying values amortised costiesldue to their short term nature.The discouset wuaed to
calculate the fair value of other deposits and fubdrrowed as of December 31, 2014 is the markes ra
available for the borrowing and deposits types.

The following table shows an analysis of finandmgtruments recorded at fair value, between thdsese fair
value is recorded on quoted market prices, thogeliimg valuation techniques where all model inpate
observable in the market, and those where the trafutechniques involves the use of non observilplets.

Level 2 Level 3
(Valuation (Valuation
techniques — techniques — non
Level 1 market market  Fair value not
December 31, 2014 (Quoted) observable) observable) available
Financial Asset:
Financial Assets at Fair Value through Profit aod: 27 92¢€ - -
Money Market Placemer - - - -
Banks - - - -
Available-For-Sale Financial Asse 775,40: - - 137
Held-To-Maturity Investment - - - -
Loans - - - -
Financial Liabilities
Bank Deposit - - - -
Other Deposit - - - -
Funds Borrowed From Other Financial Institutit - - - -
Marketable Securities IssL - - - -
Derivative financial liabilities held for trading - (68) - -
Level 2 Level 3
(Valuation (Valuation
techniques — techniques — non
Level 1 market market  Fair value not
December 31, 201 (Quoted) observable observable available
Financial Asset:
Financial Assets at Fair Value through Profit ammd: 11€ 14¢ - -
Money Market Placemer - - - -
Banks - - - -
Available-For-Sale Financial Asse 505,73¢ - - 7E
Held-To-Maturity Investment - - - -
Loans - - - -
Financial Liabilities
Bank Deposil - - - -
Other Deposit - - - -
Funds Borrowed From Other Financial Instituti - - - -
Marketable Securities IssL - - - -
Derivative financial liabilities held for trading - (727, - -

XIll. Explanations Related To Transactions Made onBehalf of Others and Fiduciary Transactions
The Bank provides security purchase-sell and Ekefping services in the name of real persons agal le

entities. Details of investment securities heldcirstody are given in the Statement of Off Balanbees
Contingencies and Commitments.
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SECTION FIVE
EXPLANATIONS AND DISCLOSURES ON FINANCIAL STATEMENT S

l. Explanations and Disclosures Related to the Aste

1. a) Information on Cash and Balances with the Ceral Bank of Turkey:
December, 31 2014 December, 31 2013
TRY FC TRY FC
Cash in Vault/Foreign Currency 7,754 29,761 7,673 5,581
Balances with the Central Bank of Turkey 44,814 4,895 35,574 331,582
Other - - - -
Total 52,568 424,576 43,247 347,163

b) Information related to the account of the Cental Bank of Turkey:

December, 31 2014 December, 31 2013
TRY FC TRY FC
Unrestricted demand deposits 44,814 1,454 35,574 1,134
Unrestricted time deposits - - - -
Restricted time deposits - - - -
FC Reserve deposits - 393,361 - 330,448
Total 44,814 394,815 35,574 331,582

C) Explanations related to reserve deposits:

According to the "Communiqué on Amendments to bderman Communiqué on Required Reserves" of Central
Bank of the Republic of Turkey numbered 2011/11 &l 1/13 reserve deposit rates applied to TRY R@d
liabilities has changed. The current required neseates as of the date of approval of the findratetements
are as follows:

FC reserve deposits rates:

FX demand deposits, notice

deposits and FX private current arti ;éggﬁ(;scigsrﬁ s with
accounts, FX deposits/FX P P ’ FX liabilities up to  FX liabilities up to FX liabilities
P 1-year and longer FX Special fund . )
participation accounts up to maturity and cumulative EX 00ls 1-year maturity 3-year maturity ~ longer than 3-year
1-month, up to Y L P (including 1-year) (including 3-year) maturity
deposits/ FX participation
3-month, up to 6-month and up to 1- accounts
year maturities
%13.0 %9.0 Ratios for %13.0 %11.0 %6.0

corresponding
maturities
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l. Explanations and Disclosures Related to the Aste(continued)

TRY reserve deposits rates:

Demand Deposits/par Deposits/parti Deposits/partic Deposits/partici Other liabilities
deposits. notic ticipation cipation ipation Deposits/part  pation accounts Other liabilities with longer 3-

ep de o’sits accounts up  accounts up  accounts up to icipation with 1-year and  Other liabilities up up to 3-year year maturity
and F:'ivate to 1-month to 3-month 6-month accounts up  longer maturity  to 1-year maturity maturity

cufrent maturity maturity maturity to 1-year and cumulative  (including 1-year) (including 3-

accounts (including (including 3- (including 6- maturity deposits/partici year)

1-month) month) month) pation accounts
%11.5 %11.5 %11.5 %8.5 %6.5 %5.0 %11.5 %8.0 %5.0

Effective from November 1, 2014, interest has besid from TRY reserve deposits by CBRT.

2. Information on financial assets at fair value tihough profit and loss (net):
a.1l) Information on financial assets at fair vatumugh profit and loss given as collateral or klxt: None
a.2) Financial assets at fair value through peofid loss subject to repurchase agreements: None

Net book value of unrestricted financial assetfamtvalue through profit and loss is TRY 27 (Detmn31,
2013: TRY 116).

b) Positive differences related to derivative ficiahassets held-for-trading:

December 31, 2014 December 31, 2013
TRY FC TRY FC
Forward Transactions 11 19 - 37
Swap Transactions 896 - - 112
Futures Transactions - - - -
Options - - - -
Other - - - -
Total 907 19 - 149
3. a) Information on banks:
December 31, 2014 December 31, 2013
TRY FC TRY FC
Banks
Domestic 64,037 168,012 80,045 198,972
Foreign - 41,043 - 7,380
Branches and head office abroad - - - -
Total 64,037 209,055 80,045 206,352
b) Information on foreign bank accounts:
Unrestricted Amount Restricted Amount
December 31, December 31, December 31,December 31,
2014 2013 2014 2013
European Union Countries 12,500 3,884 -
USA and Canada 27,058 2,532 -
OECD Countries (*) 1,386 890 -
Other 99 74 -
Total 41,043 7,380 -
*) OECD countries other than European Union cdasfrUSA and Canada
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l. Explanations and Disclosures Related to the Aste(continued)
4, Information on financial assets available-for-ske:

a.1l) Information on financial assets availabledate given as collateral or blocked:

December 31, 2014 December 31, 2013
TRY FC TRY FC
Share certificates - - - -
Bond, Treasury bill and similar securities 25,711 - 78,516 -
Other - - - -
Total 25,711 - 78,516 -

Available-for-sale securities given as collateral dpen market transactions are TRY 25,428 andTZ88 hold

for Takasbank respectively. (December 31, 2013:ilalke-for-sale securities given as collateral lialerbank
money market and open market transactions are TR378, TRY 20,368 and TRY 777 hold for Takasbank
respectively.)

a.2) Information on financial assets availabledale subject to repurchase agreements:

December 31, 2014 December 31, 2013
TRY FC TRY FC
Share certificates - - - -
Bond, Treasury bill and similar securities 383,119 - 321,603 -
Other - - - -
Total 383,119 - 321,603 -

Net book value of unrestricted financial assetsilabke-for-sale is TRY 366,710 (December 31, 20IRY
105,694) and included in this amount there are ateglistocks amounting TRY 137 (December 31, 20X T
75).

b) Information on financial assets available fdegzortfolio:
December 31, December, 31
2014 2013
Debt securities 775,429 525,161
Quoted on a stock exchange 775,429 525,161
Not quoted - -
Share certificates 137 75
Quoted on a stock exchange - -
Not quoted 137 75
Impairment provision (-) (26) (19,423)
Total 775,540 505,813

In line with the accounting policies of the Bank,umquoted available for sale equities are recdrakefair value
except for the Bank’s investment of TRY 137 whishrécorded investment at cost since its fair vahmnot be
reliably estimated (December 31, 2013: TRY 75).
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l. Explanations and Disclosures Related to the Assdfsontinued)

5. Information on loans:

a)

Information on all types of loans or advance®gito shareholders and employees of the Bank:

December 31, 2014

December 31, 2013

Cash Non-cash Cash Non-cash
Direct loans granted to shareholders 99 85 73 89
Corporate shareholders 99 85 73 89
Real person shareholders - - - -
Indirect loans granted to shareholders - 15,841 - 14,228
Loans granted to employees 1,325 1,450 1,296 1,295
Total 1,424 17,376 1,369 15,612
b) Information on the first and second group loarsl other receivables including restructured

rescheduled loans:

Standard Loans anc
Other Receivables

Loans and Other Receivable
Under Close Monitoring

Restructured Restructured

Loans and Other or Loans and Other or
Cash Loans Receivables  Rescheduled Other Receivables Rescheduled Other
Non-specialized loans 3,050,632 841 - 114,673 148,079 -
Discount notes 1,755,344 371 - 91,941 134,271 -
Export loan 542,206 470 - 14,063 5,806 -
Import loans - - - - - -
Loans given to financial sector 115,373 - - - 8,002 -
Foreign loan 3 - - - - -
Consumer loans 24,149 - - 5,742 - -
Credit cards - - - - - -
Precious metals loa - - - - - -
Other 613,557 - - 2,927 - -
Specialized loans - - - - - -
Other receivable - - - - - -
Total 3,050,632 841 - 114,673 148,079 -

C) Loans according to their maturity structure:

Standard Loans anc
Other Receivables

Loans and Other Receivable
Under Close Monitoring

Loans and Othel

Restructured or

Loans and Othel Restructured or

Cash Loan: Receivable Reschedule! Receivable Reschedule
Shor-term Loans and other Receival 1,836,86: 765 19,86( 24,59¢
Non-specialized loar 1,836,86: 765 19,86( 24,59¢
Specialized loar - - - -
Other Receivable - - - -
Medium and lon-term loans and oth:
receivables 1,213,770 78 94,813 123,483
Non-specialized loar 1,213,771 78 94,81 123,48
Specialized loar - - - -
Other Loan - - - -
Total 3,050,63; 841 114,67: 148,07¢
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l. Explanations and Disclosures Related to the Assefsontinued)

Number of Changes for the Paymen

Plan Extensior

Standard Loans and Other Receivable

Watching Loans and Other Receivable

1 or 2 times extende 841 144,77.
3, 4 or 5 times extend - 3,29¢
5 Over the extend: - 8
Total 841 148,07¢

Standard Loans and Other Receivable Watching Loans and Other Receivable
0-6 Montt 284 12,07t
6—12 Montt - 4,12(
1-2Yea - 7,58¢
2-5Yea 557 69,81¢
5 Years and Ov: - 54,48.
Total 841 148,07¢

As of December 31, 2014, in accordance with “Regadadbn Procedures and Principles for Determinatib@ualifications
of Loans and Other Receivables by Banks and Prowdiorbe set aside” (published in the Official Gezein May 28,
2011, numbered 27947) the bank calculated genemm loss provision for standard loan, which thenpanyts are
rescheduled, amounting to TRY dhd for watchlist-loans, which the payments arelreduled, amounting to TRY 6,924.

d) Information on consumer loans, individual ctexdirds, personnel loans and credit cards giveetsonnel:

Medium and
Short Term Long Term Total

Consumer Loan-TRY 3,20¢ 24,29: 27,49
Housing Loan 504 2,551 3,05¢
Car Loan 107 14C 247
General Purpose Loa 2,59t 21,60( 24,19t
Othel - - -

Consumer Loans-Indexed to FC
Housing Loan
Car Loan
General Purpose Loa
Othel

Consumer Loan-FC
Housing Loan
Car Loan
General Purpose Loa
Othel

Individual Credit Cards -TRY
With Installment
Without Installment

Individual Credit Cards -FC
With Installment
Without Installment - - -

Personnel Loan-TRY 22¢ 69t 924
Housing Loan - - -
Car Loan - - -
General Purpose Loa 22¢ 69t 924
Othel - - -

Personnel Loan- Indexed to FC
Housing Loan
Car Loan
General Purpose Loa
Othel

Personnel Loan-FC
Housing Loan
Car Loan
General Purpose Loa
Othel

Personnel Credit Card-TRY
With Installment
Without Installment

Personnel Credit Cards-FC
With Installment
Without Installment - - -

Overdraft Accounts-TRY(Real Persons) (* 1,47C - 1,47C

Overdraft Accounts-FC(Real Persons - - -

Total 4,90¢ 24,98¢ 29,89:

(*) Overdraft Accounts includes TRY 34@&rsonel loans.
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l. Explanations and Disclosures Related to the Aste(continued)

e) Information on commercial loans with installmentslaorporate credit cards:

Medium and
Short Term Long Term Total
Commercial loans with installment facility-TRY 28,398 832,988 861,386
Business Loans 12,856 107,008 119,864
Car Loans 993 7,277 8,270
General Purpose Loans 14,549 718,632 733,181
Other - 71 71
Commercial loans with installment facility - Indexed to FC 4,808 202,531 207,339
Business Loans - - -
Car Loans 4,318 61,812 66,130
General Purpose Loans 490 140,719 141,209
Other - - -
Commercial loans with installment facility —-FC - - -
Business Loans - - -
Car Loans - - -
General Purpose Loans - - -
Other - - -
Corporate Credit Cards-TRY - - -
With Installments - - -
Without Installments - - -
Corporate Credit Cards-FC - - -
With Installments - - -
Without Installments - - -
Overdraft Accounts-TRY(Legal Entities) 29,646 - 29,646
Overdraft Accounts-FC(Legal Entities) - - -
Toplam 62,852 1,035,519 1,098,371

f)  Domestic and foreign loans:

December 31,

December 31,

2014 2013
Domestic loans 3,314,222 2,634,762
Foreign loans 3 28
Total 3,314,225 2,634,790

g) Loans granted to subsidiaries and associates: None.

h)  Specific provisions provided against loans:

December 31,

December 31,

2014 2013
Specific provisions
Loans and receivables with limited collectability - 785
Loans and receivables with doubtful collectability - 7,018
Uncollectible loans and receivables 44,653 28,573
Total 44,653 36,376
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l. Explanations and Disclosures Related to the Aste(continued)

j) Information on non-performing loans (Net):

j-1) Information on loans and other receivablesluded in non-performing loans which are

restructured or rescheduled:

lll. Group IV. Group V. Group
Loans and Loans and
receivables with  receivables with Uncollectible
limited doubtful loans and
collectability collectability receivables
December 31, 2014
(Gross amount before specific provision) (*) - 8,044
Restructured Loans and Other Receivables - - 8,044
Rescheduled Loans and Other Receivables - - -
December 31, 2013
(Gross amount before specific provision) 795 5,307
Restructured Loans and Other Receivables - 795 5,307

Rescheduled Loans and Other Receivables

*) As of December 31, 2014 total specific praoiss set aside for the loans and other receivabltsare restructured or
tied to redemption plan is TR¥,365 (December 31, 2013: TRY 4,214).

j-2)  The movement of non-performing loans:

11l. Group IV. Group V. Group
Loans and other Loans and othel
receivables witt  receivables witt Uncollectible
limited doubtful loans and othe
collectability collectability receivables
December 31, 2013 balance 3,243 17,486 49,145
Additions (+) 46,666 9,028 15,794
Transfers from other categories of non-performoank (+) - 29,621 69,239
Transfers to other categories of non-performingo@) (49,205) (49,655) -
Collections (-) (704) (6,480) (17,535)
Write-offs (-) - - (21,073)
Corporate and commercial loans - - -
Retail loans - - -
Credit cards - - -
Indexation difference (-) - - -
Other - - -
December 31, 2014 balance - - 95,570
Specific provision (-) - - (44,653)
Net Balances on Balance Sheet - - 50,917

(*) A portion of non-performing loans of the Bamlith a principal amount of TRY 21,073 are sold st
management company Final Varlik YonetimSAaccording to Board of Directors’ decision dated

December 8, 2014.

j-3) Information on foreign currency non-performilogins and other receivables: None.
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l. Explanations and Disclosures Related to the Aste(continued)

j-4)  Information regarding gross and net amountsasf-performing loans with respect to user groups:

lIl. Group 1V. Group V. Group
Loans and
Loans and receivables with Uncollectible
receivables with doubtful loans and
limited collectability collectability receivables
December 31, 2014 (Net)
Loans to Real Persons and Legal Entities (Gross) - - 95,570
Specific provision (-) - - (44,653)
Loans to Real Persons and Legal Entities (Net) - - 50,917
Banks (Gross) - - -
Specific provision (-) - - -
Banks (Net) - - -
Other Loans and Receivables (Gross) - - -
Specific provision (-) - - -
Other Loans and Receivables (Net) - - -
December 31, 2013 (Net)
Loans to Real Persons and Legal Entities (Gross) 2433, 17,486 49,145
Specific provision (-) (785) (7,018) (28,573)

Loans to Real Persons and Legal Entities (Net) ,45 10,468 20,572
Banks (Gross) - -

Specific provision (-) - - R
Banks (Net) - - -
Other Loans and Receivables (Gross) - - R

Specific provision (-) - - -
Other Loans and Receivables (Net) - - R

k) Main principles of liquidation policies of nonperfoing loans and receivables:

According to the “Methods and Principles for thet@mination of Loans and Other Receivables to be
Reserved for and Allocation of Reserves” publisbedOfficial Gazette No. 26333 dated November 1,
2006; legal action is carried on considering firgsarantors and existing collaterals and provisiates
made for non-performing loans in accordance withrlevant decree.

[) Explanations on write-off policy:

As of 31 December 2014, there is no amount thariisen off from assets with the decision of thealmb
of directors.(December 31,2013 : None.)

Upon the request of legal counsel and loan depattfioe doubtful loans that has no proof to recoiger
evaluated according to the authority delegatechbyBoard of Directors. The Bank sold a portion @fin
performing loan amounting to TRY 21,073, to an aissnagement firm and removed from records.

m) Other explanations and disclosures:

December 31, 2014 Corporate SME Retail  Other Total
Neither past due nor impaired 2,161,618 885,161 4,694 - 3,051,473
Past due not impaired 180,385 81,319 1,048 - 262,752
Restructured loans (*) - - - - -
Individually impaired 63,490 31,111 969 - 95,570
Total gross 2,405,493 997,591 6,711 - 3,409,795
Less: allowance for individually impaired loans (30,777) (13,502) (374) - (44,653)
Total net 2,374,716 984,089 6,337 - 3,365,142
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l. Explanations and Disclosures Related to the Aste(continued)

December 31, 2013 Corporate SME Retail Other Total
Neither past due nor impaired 1,759,561 701,461 70,8 - 2,467,899
Past due not impaired 116,801 47,739 2,351 - 166,89
Restructured loans (*) - - - - -
Individually impaired 47,001 22,331 542 - 69,874
Total gross 1,923,363 771,531 9,770 - 2,704,664
Less: allowance for individually impaired loans {PR0) (9,803) (393) - (36,376)
Total net 1,897,183 761,728 9,377 - 2,668,288

*) The decsription of restructured loans is defeed by the Article No:11 of the Regulation on Prhoes and
Principles for Determination of Qualifications obéans and Other Receivables by Banks and Provisiobs et
aside.

A reconciliation of the allowance for impairmenssois as follows;

Total
At January 1, 2013 36,376
Additions in the period 34,060
Non-performing loan sal (20,103
The effect of collections in the period (5,680)
Write off -
At December 31, 2014 44,653

The fair value of collaterals that the Bank holditing to loans individually determined to be irnpd as of
December 31, 2014 is TRY 117,610. (December 31320RY 59,340).

Properties amounting to TRY 14,872 are transfetcethe ownership of the Bank in 2014 and in the esam
period TRY 3,227 has been sold. In addition, progerransferred to the ownership of the Bank ef2014
year have been sold amounting to TRY 6,319.

Aging analysis of past due but not impaired loamsqtass of financial instruments is as follows:

Less than 3C 31- 60 61-90 More than 91
December 31, 2014 Days Days Days Days(*) Total
Loans and advances to custor
Corporate Loan: 146,247 27,539 1,238 5,361 180,385
Small Business Loa 74,656 5,411 1,252 - 81,319
Consumer Loar 402 122 524 - 1,048
Othel - - - - -
Total 221,305 33,072 3,014 5,361 262,752
(*) Protocol has been signed with the firm as ofuiay, 2015.
Less than 3C 31- 60 61-90 More than 91
December 31,203 Days Days Days Days Total
Loans and advances to custor
Corporate Loan 89,274 13,709 13,818 - 116,801
Small Business Loa 32,585 6,599 8,555 - 47,739
Consumer Loar 1,316 964 71 - 2,351
Othel - - - - -
Total 123,175 21,272 22,444 - 166,891
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l. Explanations and Disclosures Related to the Aste(continued)

Fair value of past due but not impaired loans atroreceivable as of December 31, 2014 is TRY @883,
(December 31, 2013: TRY 258,283).

Loans and advances amounting to TRY 1,518,812em@ving loans that have maturity up to one montt a
floating interest rates (December 31, 2013: TRY43,836) and the remaining TRY 1,795,413 have fixed
interest rates. (December 31, 2013: TRY 1,290,954).

6. Information on held-to-maturity investments:

a.1l) Information on held-to-maturity investmentegegi as collateral or blocked:

December 31, 201 December 31, 201
TRY FC TRY FC
Share certificates - - - -
Bond, Treasury bill and similar securities 36,888 - 29,341 -
Othel - - - -
Total 36,888 - 29,341 -

As of December 31, 2014, collateral or blocked steents held-to-maturity; Central Bank open market
operations is TRY 506 and Central Bank of therlvdak money market is TRY 5,479 ans stock colidter
balance is TRY 30,903.(December 31,2013 : CentealkBopen market operations is TRY 6,683 and Central
Bank of the interbank money market is TRY 5,148 stock collateral balance is TRY 17,516).

a.2) Held-to-maturity investments subject to repase agreements:

December 31, 201 December 31, 201
TP YP TP YP
Share certificates - - - -
Bond, Treasury bill and similar securities 23,780 - 66,204 -
Other - -
Total 23,780 - 66,204 -

Book value of held to maturity investments classifas unrestricted financial assets is TRY 39,témber
31, 2013: TRY 3,350).

b) Information on public sector debt investments helaraturity:

December 31, 201 December31, 201:
Government bont 100,42( 98,89¢
Treasury bill: - -
Other public sector debt securit - -
Total 100,42( 98,89t

C) Information on held-to-maturity investments:
December 31, 201 December 31, 201

TRY FC TRY FC
Debtsecuritie

Quoted on a stock exchar 100,42( - 98,89t -
Not quoted on a stock exchal - - - -
Provision for impairment-) - - - -
Total 100,42( - 98,89: -
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l. Explanations and Disclosures Related to the Aste(continued)

d) Movement of held-to-maturity investments:

December 31, 2014

December 31, 2013

Beginning balance 98,895 70,959
Foreign currency differences on monetary assets(*) 1,952 (1,613)
Purchases during year 20,01¢ 82,678
Disposal through sales and redemptions (20,443) (53,129)
Impairment provision (-) - -

Closing Balance 100,420 98,895

™* Accruals of Held-to maturity investments areflected in foreign currency differences on monetar

assets line.

7. Information on associates (Net):

The Bank has no associates in the current period.

8. Information on subsidiaries (Net):

The Bank has no subsidiaries in the current period

9. Information on jointly controlled entities:

The Bank has no jointly controlled entities in tharent period.

10. Information on lease receivables (Net):

The Bank has no lease receivables in

the curreitde

11. Information on derivative financial assets for hedgng purposes:

The Bank has no financial assets for hedging p@posthe current period.

12. Information on tangible assets (Net) :

Balance Balance
December 31, Change in  December 31,
2013 Additions Disposals Other estimate 2014
Cost:
Land and buildings -
Leased tangible assets 5,974 (64) - 5,910
Vehicles - - - - -
Other 58,747 25,461 (10,164) 74,044
Total Cost 64,721 25,461 (10,228) - - 79,954
Balance Balance
December 31, Change in  December 31,
2013 Additions Disposals Other estimate 2014
Accumulated Depreciation:
Land and buildings - - - - -
Leased tangible assets (5,795) (42) 64 (5,772)
Vehicles - - - - -
Other (22,913) (3,913) 664 (26,162)
Total Accumulated Depreciation (28,708) (3,954) B2 - - (31,934)
Net Book Value 36,013 21,507 (9,500) 48,020
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l. Explanations and Disclosures Related to the Aste(continued)

a) For an individual asset, In the current period dhgount of impairment losses recorded or revoked is
crucial to the whole of the financial statements:

a.1l) Impairment to be recorded or cancellationveings that led to and no term of events: None.
a.2) Recorded in the financial statements or cadcaount of impairment losses: None.

b) Recorded in the current period or cancelled, amth @e or some financial statements as a whole are
not significant, but sum of impairment losses redear or revoked is significant for the whole of the
financial statements, reasons and circumstancae:No

c) For pledge on tangible assets, mortgages and o¢k#ictions if there exists and tangible asséts, t

amount of the expenditures made during constructiom commitments for the purchase of tangible
fixed assets: None.

13. Information on intangible assets:
Closing
Balance Ending Balance
December 31, Change in December 31,
2013 Additions Disposals Other estimate 2014
Cost:
Software cost 34,113 4,851 - - - 8,984
Other intangible assets - - - - -
Total Cost 34,113 4,851 - - - 38,964
Closing
Balance Ending Balance
December 31, Period Change in December 31,
2013 Charge Disposals Other estimate 2014

Accumulated Depreciation:
Software cost (13,439) (7,294) - - - (20,733)
Other intangible assets - - - - - -

Total Accumulated Depreciation (13,439) (7,294) - - - (20,733)

Net Book Value 20,674 (2,443) - - - 18,231

14.  Investment Property (Net): None.
15. Explanations on deferred tax assets:
a) As of December 31, 2014, there are no deferrech$srt calculated on tax losses and tax deductions o
exemptions. (December 31, 2013: 2,351). Defernecsaet calculated on the other temporary diffeeenc
is TRY 3,972 (December 31, 2013: TRY 5,123 defeteadasset).

b) Temporary differences over which deferred tsseais not computed and recorded in the balarest &h
prior periods: None.

c) Allowance for deferred tax and deferred tax asfgeta reversal of allowance: None.
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I Explanations and Disclousures Related to the Assts (continued)

d) Movement of deferred tax:

December 31, December 31,

2014 2013
At January 1 7,474 2,758

Effect of change in tax rate - -

Deferred tax (charge)/benefit 4,668 (5,726)

Deferred tax (charge)/ benefit (Net) 12,142 (2,968)

Deferred tax accounted for under Shareholders'tigqui (8,170) 10,442

Deferred Tax Asset 3,972 7,474

December 31, 2014 December 31, 2013
Deferred Deferred
Tax Base Tax Tax Base Tax

Reserve for Employee Benefits 10,375 2,075 8,311 21,66

Possible provisions - - 1,046 209

Other provisions 10,336 2,067 6,211 1,242

Net Book Value and Tax Value Differences of Assets:

Tangible Fixed Assets 1,207 241 470 94
Deferred Commission 4,339 868 2,737 547
Financial Assets 301 60 11,743 2,349

Tax Losses - - 11,753 2,350

Deferred Tax Assets 5,311 8,453

Net Book Value and Tax Value Differences of Assets:

Tangible Fixed Assets 4,480 896 3,212 642
Financial Assets - - 1,687 337

Other 2,215 443 - -

Deferred tax liability (-) 1,339 979

Deferred tax Asset (Net) 3,972 7,474

16. Information on assets held for sale and disntinued operations: None.

17. Information on other assets:

a) Breakdown of other assets:

December 31, December 31,

2014 2013
Settlement Accounts 16,860 16,499
Prepaid Expenses 6,498 6,047
Other 2,688 2,239
Toplam 26,046 24,785

b) Other assets which exceed 10% of the balance stiabt(excluding off balance sheet commitments)
and breakdown of these which constitute at lea%i 80grand total: None.
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Il. Explanations and Disclosures Related to the labilities
1. Information on maturity structure of deposits:

a.1l) December 31, 2014

7 DayCall Uptol 1-3 3-6 6 Month-1 1 Year Accumulating
Demand Accounts month Months  Months Year And over Deposits Total
Saving deposits 17,038 - 35,793 850,208 95,898 22,633 646,5 - 1,028,134
Foreign currency deposits 54,322 - 59,319 1,101,175 ,1861 38,905 9,661 - 1,414,568
Residents in Turkey 52,355 - 58,492  1,076,41@5,087 37,787 7,344 - 1,377,535
Residents abroad 1,967 - 827 24,705 6,099 1,118 2,317 - 0337,
Public sector deposits 12,837 - - - - - - - 12,837
Commercial deposits 72,010 - 51,988 586,118 108,428 329,7 81,917 - 930,193
Other institutions deposits 299 - 1,649 55,018 1,513 ,38% - - 174,864
Precious metals deposits - - - - - - - - -
Interbank deposits 2,283 - 11,506 14,140 - - - - 27,929
Central Bank of Turkey - - - - - - - - -
Domestic Banks 40 - - - - - - - 40
Foreign Banks 2,243 - 11,506 14,140 - - - - 27,889
Participation Banks - - - - - - - - -
Other - - - - - - - - -
Total 158,789 - 160,255 2,606,659 357,025 207,655 98,142 3,588,525
a.2) December 31, 2013:
7 Day Call Uptol 1-3 3-6 6 Month-1 1 Year Accumulating
Demand Accounts month Months  Months Year And over Deposits Total
Saving deposits 10,510 - 20,802 760,868 98,136 11,309 2733 - 904,952
Foreign currency deposits 79,130 - 63,887 846,654  42,3437,544 44,454 - 1,154,013
Residents in Turkey 74,822 - 62,886 807,696 98D 34,972 42,949 - 1,104,292
Residents abroad 4,308 - 1,001 38,958 1,377 2,572 1,505 9,724
Public sector deposits 6,105 - - - - - - - 6,105
Commercial deposits 65,886 - 89,204 365,290 59,011 60,94 1,706 - 632,043
Other institutions deposits 785 - 50 27,627 15565 51,76 8 - 95,797
Precious metals deposits - - - - - - - - -
Interbank deposits 1,866 - 10,002 10,793 21,566 - - - 22
Central Bank of Turkey - - - - - - - - -
Domestic Banks 32 - - - - - - - 32
Foreign Banks 1,834 - 10,002 10,793 21,566 - - -4,195
Participation Banks - - - - - - - - -
Other
Total 164,282 - 183,945 2,011,232 276,622 151,561 49,495 2,837,137

b.1) Information on saving deposits under the guaeof saving deposits insurance:

i. Information on saving deposits:

Under the Guarantee of Exceeding the Limit of

Saving Deposits Insurance Insurance
December 31, December 31, December 31, December 31,
2014 2013 2014 2013
Saving deposits 234,903 200,830 785,436 698,101
Foreign currency saving deposits 68,278 44,404 674,691 418,527
Other deposits in the form of saving deposits 469 42 3 7,798 4,866
Foreign branches’ deposits under foreign autlesfitnsurance - - - -
Off-shore banking regions’ deposits under foreigtharities'
insurance - - - -
Total 303,650 245,576 1,467,925 1,121,494

(68)



Translated into English from the original Turkish r eport and financial statements

TURKLAND BANK ANON iM SIRKET i
NOTES TO THE UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (C ONTINUED)

FOR THE PERIOD ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2014
(Amounts expressed in thousands of Turkish LifaYTunless otherwise stated.)

Il. Explanations and Disclosures Related to the Lihilities (continued)
ii. Deposit amounts not under the guarantee of saepg«it:

Deposits of real persons not under the guarantsawifig deposit insurance:

December 31, 2014 December 31, 2013

Deposits and accounts in branches abroad - -
Deposits of ultimate shareholders and their clagdlfes - -
Deposits of chairman, members of the Board of Dinescand assistant

general managers and their close families 1,479 2,341
Deposits obtained through illegal acts definechin282° Article of the 5237

numbered Turkish Criminal Code dated September 28.20 - -

Saving deposits in banks established in Turkeyusietly for off shore
banking activities - -

2. Information on derivative financial liabilities:

a) Negative differences table related to derivafiivancial liabilities held-for-trading:

December 31, 2014 December 31, 2013

TRY FC TRY FC
Forward Transactions 9 5 37 -
Swap Transactions - 54 690 -
Futures Transactions - - - -
Options - - - -
Other - - - -
Total 9 59 727 -

3. a) Information on banks and other financial insitutions:

December 31, 2014 December 31, 2013

TRY FC TRY FC
From Domestic Banks and Institutions 13,510 21,534 19,190 28,112
From Foreign Banks, Institutions and Funds 302 102,906 8,009 161,684
Total 13,812 124,440 27,199 189,796

b) Maturity analysis of borrowings:

December 31, 2014 December 31, 2013

TRY FC TRY FC
Short-term 13,812 85,130 27,199 135,079
Medium and long-term - 39,310 - 54,717
Total 13,812 124,440 27,199 189,796

¢) Additional explanations related to the conceitres of the Bank’s major liabilities:

Bank diversifies its funding resources by custordeposits and foreign borrowings. 58% of bank
deposits and 40% of other deposits are compos&dafin currency deposits.
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Il.  Explanations and Disclosures Related to the Likilities: (continued)

4. Information on funds provided from repurchase ageement transactions :
December 31, 2014 December 31, 2013
TRY FC TRY FC
From domestic transactions 430,464 - 370,580 -
Financial institutions and organizations 430,456 - 370,575 -
Other institutions and organizations - - - -
Real persons 8 - 5 -

From foreign transactions - - - -
Financial institutions and organizations - - - -
Other institutions and organizations - - - -
Real persons - - - -

Total 430,464 - 370,580 -

Funds provided under repurchase agreements carriedy the assets of the Bank's balance sheet are
described in the table below:

December 31, 2014 December 31, 2013
Carrying Carrying
Nominal Value  Nominal Value
Financial Assets Available for Sale 299,967 407,469279,805 307,226
Held to Maturity Investments 23,711 22,995 67,007 63,354
Financial assets held for trading - -
Total 323,678 430,464 346,812 370,580
5. Other liabilities which exceed 10% of the balance heet total (excluding off-balance sheet

commitments) and the breakdown of these which corisiite at least 20% of grand total None.

6. Explanations on lease obligations (Net):

a) The general explanations on criteria used irerdghing installments of financial lease agreements

renewal and purchasing options and restrictiorieéragreements that create significant obligattortke
Bank:

In the financial lease agreements, installmentsbased on useful life, usage periods and provisans
the Tax Procedural Code.

b) Explanations regarding operational leases:

Head-Office and all branch premises of the Bankleased under operational leases. As of December
2014 operational lease expenses amounting to TR¥723have been recorded in the profit and loss
accounts (December 31,2013: TRY 10,248). The Ipaseds vary between 5 and 10 years.

Explanations on the lessor and lessee in sale eask Iback transactions, agreement conditions, and
major agreement terms: None.

Information on derivative financial liabilities for hedging purposes:None.
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Il.  Explanations and Disclosures Related to the Likilities: (continued)
8. Information on provisions:

a) Information on general provisions:

December 31, 2014 December 31, 2013

General Provisions

Provisions for First Group Loans and Receivables ,28% 21,001
- Additional provision for extented loans 41 355
Provisions for Second Group Loans and Receivables ,2082 1,457
- Additional provision for extented loans 6,924 0B3
Provisions for Non-cash Loans 3,909 3,247
Total 32,370 30,368

General provision movement for first, second grofifpans and receivables and non-cash loans isllasvé:

First Group Loans  Second Group Non-Cash
and Receivables Loans and Loans
Receivables
January 1, 2013 21,356 5,765 3,247
Additions 5,177 3,540 988
Disposals (7,204) (173) (326)
December 31, 2014 19,329 9,132 3,909

b) Foreign exchange losses on the foreign currerigxed loans and finance lease receivables: dieggh
exchange losses amounting to TRY 2,220 (Decemhe2®13: TRY 50) on the foreign currency indexed
loans are netted off from loans on the balancetshee

¢) The specific provisions of TRY 8,226 (Decembgr 3013: TRY 3,931) were provided for unindemnified
non cash loans.

d) Information on employee termination benefits andsed vacation accrual:

The Bank has calculated the reserve for employemirtation benefits by using actuarial valuation
methods as set out in the TAS No:19 and refledtidin the financial statements.

d.1) Movement of employee termination benefits:

December 31, December 31,

2014 2013

As of January 1 5,314 4,898
Service cost 1,272 1,173
Interest cost 539 357
Actuarial gain / (loss) 723 (568)
Benefits paid (695) (546)
End of period 7,153 5,314
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Il.  Explanations and Disclosures Related to the Likilities: (continued)
d.2) Information on employee termination benefitd anused vacation accrual:

Bank has calculated the reserve for employee tertinim benefits by using actuarial valuation methasls
set out in the TAS No: 19 and reflected this infihancial statements.

December 31, 2014 December 31, 2013

Employee termination benefit provision 7,153 5,314
Unused vacation provision 3,376 2,429
Total of provision for employee benefits 10,529 748

In accordance with TAS No:19 “Turkish Accountingatard on Employee Benefits”; total benefit is
calculated for each employee who has completed ower year of service, whose employment is
terminated due to retirement or for reasons othen tresignation or misconduct. The cost of proygdin
benefits to the employees for the services rendeyettiem under the defined benefit plan is deteedhin
by independent actuaries annually using the prefeahit credit method. All actuarial gains and ésss
are recognized in the income statement. Accordingptnminugque numbered 28585 published in Turkish
Trade Registry Gazzette, as per TAS19 actuariad kst is recorded under shareholders’ equity
amounting to TRY (155) as of December 31, 2014 cédeber 31,2013: TRY 568 gain)

Actuarial calculations are based on retirementldylity rights that are defined in the Labour Lévo.
1475, and based on employees' details as of vafudtite. Within the framework of the assumptions
used in the actuarial calculation TAS19 is deteadias follows:

Assumptions
Discount rate 8,20%
Inflation rate 6,00%

e) Information on other provisions:
e.l) Provisions for possible losses: None.

e.2) The breakdown of the sub accounts if othevipimns exceed 10% of the grand total of provisions

December 31, 2014 December 31, 2013

Specific provisions provided for unindemnified ncash loans 8,226 3,931
Other provisions (*) 10,336 7,257
Total 18,562 11,188
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Il. Explanations and Disclosures Related to the Liabiiies: ( continued)

Provision movement for unindemnified non cash lcamd other provisions is as follows:

Specific provisions provided

for unindemnified non cash Other

loans provisions(*)
December 31, 2013 3,931 7,257
Additions 5,119 8,384
Disposals (824) (5,305)
December 31, 2014 8,226 10,336

(*)  Other provisions include TRY 7,500 of bonus ameémium provisions, TRY 772 of the remaining
provision from 2013, TRY 302 of provisions for othassets, TRY 1,762 of litigation provision.
(December 31, 2013: TRY 5,250 bonus provision, T#59 2013 bonus provision before the year, TRY
1,046 of legal claim provision, TRY 302 other pigions).

f) Liabilities on pension rights: None.

f.1) Liabilities for pension funds established atardance with “Social Security Institution"; None.

f.2) Liabilities resulting from all kinds of pensicfunds, foundations etc, which provide post retieat
benefits for the employees: None.

9. Explanations on taxes payable:
a) Information on current tax liability:

a.1l) As of December 31, 2014, remaining tax ligbdfter prepaid taxes are netted off;

December 31, 2014 December 31, 2013

Current Period Tax Payable 12,979 -
Prepaid Tax (10,329) -
Total 2,650 -

a.2) Explanations on taxes payable:

December 31, 2014 December 31, 2013

Taxation on Securities 4,277 2,977
BITT 3,828 2,415
Corporate Tax Payable 2,650 -
Payroll Tax 1,218 1,636
Property Tax 324 282
Value Added Tax Payable 251 190
Stamp Tax 38 44
Other 45 105
Total 12,631 7,649
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Il. Explanations and Disclosures Related to the Lihilities (continued)

a.3) Information on premiums:

December 31, 2014 December 31, 2013

Social Security Premiums-Employer 691 555
Social Security Premiums-Employee 446 360
Bank Social Aid Pension Fund Premium-Employer 61 49
Bank Social Aid Pension Fund Premium-Employee 30 24

Pension Fund Membership Fees and Provisions-Employe - -
Pension Fund Membership Fees and Provisions-Employe - -
Unemployment Insurance-Employee -
Unemployment Insurance-Employer -
Other -

Total 1,228 988

b) Explanations on deferred tax liabilities, if aiNone.
10. Information on liabilities regarding assets hlgl for sale and discounted operationsNone.

11. Explanations on the number of subordinated loan the Bank used, maturity, interest rate,
institution that the loan was borrowed from, and caversion option, ,if any:

The bank does not have subordinated loans.
12. Information on Shareholders’ Equity:

a) Presentation of Paid-in capital:
According to the Ordinary General Assembly decrated April 15, 2014, it has been decided to inaeas
Bank’s paid in capital from TRY 500 million to TR&50 million. In April, 2014, TRY 150 million has ba
paid in cash. The capital commitments paid by tie@eholders were transferred into the share capitadunts

with the approval of Banking Regulation and Supsori Agency dated August 28, 2014 and numbered 2063

As of December 31, 2014 the nominal value of thakBacapital is amounting to TRY 650,000 and cotssid
6,500 million shares

000 TL December 31, 2014 December 31, 2013

Common stock(*) 650,000 500,000
Preferred stock -

(*) Nominal Capital
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Explanations and Disclosures Related to the Likilities (continued)

b) The Bank does not apply registered share capisasy
¢) Information on share capital increases and tmirces; other information on increased capitateshin
the current period: Explained in a) section.
d) Information on share capital increases from rev@uogunds in the current period: None.
e) Capital commitments in the last fiscal year andhat end of the following interim period, the gernera
purpose of these commitments and projected resouecgiired to meet these commitments: None.
f) Indicators of the Bank’s income, profitability atiquidity for the previous periods and possiblecets of
these future assumptions on the Bank’s equity ddlee uncertainty of these indicators:
Prior year income, profitability and liquidity ofi¢ Bank is closely monitored by the Financial Répgr
Department and reported to the Board of Directésset and Liability Committee. Risk Management
tries to forecast the effects of interest, curremcgt maturity fluctuations that change these irtdisawith
static and dynamic scenario analysis. Net assekyathich is defined as the difference of fair ealwf
assets and liabilities, is measured. Expectatioms rmade for Bank’s future interest income via
simulations of net interest income and scenaridyaita
g) Information on preferred shares: None.
h) Information on marketable securities valugeéase fund:
December 31  December 31
201« 201z
Valuation Differenc (265) (32,944)
Foreign Exchange Differen - -
Total (265) (32,944)

Information on legal reserves :

December 31 December 31

2014 2013
First Legal reservt 2,322 1,602
Second Legal reserv - -
Other legal reserves appropriated in accordandespiécial legislatic - -
Total 2,322 1,602

Information on extraordinary reserves:

December 31 December 31

2014 2013
Reserves appropriated by the General Assembly - -
Retained earnings 37,377 23,696
Accumulated losses - -
Foreign currency share capital exchange difference - -
Total 37,377 23,696

13. Information on minority shares: None.

(75)



Translated into English from the original Turkish r eport and financial statements

TURKLAND BANK ANON iM SIRKET i
NOTES TO THE UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (C ONTINUED)

FOR THE PERIOD ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2014

(Amounts expressed in thousands of Turkish LifaYTunless otherwise stated.)

lll.  Explanations and Disclosures Related to the (GfBalance Sheet Contingencies and Commitments
1. Information on off-balance sheet liabilities:

1. a) Nature and amount of irrevocable loan commitmers:

December 31, 201Pecember 31, 2013

Loan granting commitments 48,896 157,758
Payment commitments for checks 105,800 85,587
Forward asset purchase and sales commitments 9,634 15,684

Other irrevocable commitments 10,774 21,605
Total 175,104 280,634

b) Possible losses and commitments related to offAbalaheet items including items listed below:

The Bank, within the context of banking activitiesydertakes certain commitments, consisting of loan
commitments, letters of guarantee, acceptancetsraad letters of credit.

b.1) Non-cash loans including guarantees, accepsafinancial guarantees and other letters of tyedi

December 31, 2014 December 31, 2013

Bank acceptance loans 2,532 7,824
Letters of credit 164,711 160,697
Other guarantees and collaterals 118,364 145,956
Total 285,607 314,477

b.2) Guarantees, suretyships, and similar titses:

December 31, 2014 December 31, 2013

Definite letter of guarantess 1,240,063 1,007,719
Temporary letter of guarantees 306,253 194,290
Other letter of guaranteesger 211,400 164,896
Total 1,757,716 1,366,905

c) c.1) Total amount of non-cash loans:

December 31, 2014 December 31, 2013

Non-cash loans given against achieving cash loans 15,212 140,265
With maturity of 1 year or less than 1 year 83,173 90,911
With maturity of more than 1 year 32,039 49,354

Other non-cash loans 1,928,111 1,541,117

Total 2,043,323 1,681,382
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lll.  Explanations and Disclosures Related to the (GfBalance Sheet Contingencies and Commitments
(continued)

c.2) Information on sectoral risk breakdown of non-clsns and irrevocable loan commitments (excluding
forward asset sales and purchase commitments):

December 31, 2014 December 31, 2013
TRY (%) FC (%) TRY (%) FC (%)
Agricultural 33,536 2.21 30,775 4.45 19,016 1.45 17,832 2.83
Farming and raising livestock 30,707 2.02 30,775 4.45 17,869 1.36 17,832 2.83
Forestry 2,763 0.19 - - 1,128 0.09 - -
Fishery 66 0.00 - - 19 0.00 - -
Manufacturing 399,231 26.32 370,950 53.62 253,590 19.27 318,258 50.47
Mining 71,271 4,70 30,115 4.35 40,260 3.06 15,260 2.42
Production 316,078 20.84 332,079 48.00 206,827 15.72 301,227 47.77
Electric, gas and water 11,882 0.78 8,756 1.27 6,503 0.49 1,771 0.28
Construction 478,759 31.56 148,928 21.52 408,802 31.07 128,007 20.30
Services 553,513 36.49 137,174 19.83 566,269 43.04 124,501 19.75
Wholesale and retail trade 160,494 10.57 51,745 7.48 236,749 17.99 43,668 6.93
Hotel, food and beverage services 8,836 0.58 7,105 1.03 9,622 0.73 7,380 1.17
Transportation and telecommunication 38,850 2.56 40,513 5.86 34,197 2.60 29,620 4.70
Financial institutions 163,788 10.80 13,906 2.01 143,249 10.89 16,502 2.62
Real estate and renting services 3,427 0.23 13 0.00 4,873 0.37 451 0.07
Self-employment services 144,582 9.53 23,892 3.45 108,505 8.25 26,880 4.26
Education services 231 0.02 - - 205 0.02 - -
Health and social services 33,305 2.20 - - 28,869 2.19 - -
Other 51,918 3.42 4,009 0.58 68,093 5.17 41,964 6.65
Total 1,516,957 100.00 691,836 100.00 1,315,770100.00 630,562 100.00

c.3) Information on | st and Il nd Group non-casaris:

| st Group (*) Il nd Group
Non-cash loans TRY FC TRY FC
Letters of guarantee 1,346,740 397,603 13,373 -
Bank acceptances - 2,532 - -
Letters of credit 78 164,633 - -
Endorsements - - - -
Securities issue purchase and guarantees - - - -
Other commitments and contingencies 850 117,514 - -
Total 1,347,668 682,282 13,373 -

(*) Includes Il rd, IV th and V th Groups as wellhe Bank provided a reserve of TRY 25,768 for naskc
loans not yet indemnified amounting to TRY 8,226.
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Ill.  Explanations and Disclosures Related to the (fBalance Sheet Contingencies and Commitments
(continued)

2. Information related to derivative financial instruments:

Derivative transactions according to purposes

Trading Hedging
December 31, December 31, December 31, December 31,
2014 2013 2014 2013
Types of trading transactions
Foreign currency related derivative transactiojis (I
Forward transactions 10,046 2,706 - -
Swap transactions 48,075 56,996 - -
Futures transactions - - - -
Option transactions 1,084 3,622 - -
Interest related derivative transactions (ll) : - -
Forward rate transactions - - - -
Interest rate swap transactions - - - -
Interest option transactions - - - -
Futures interest transactions - - - -
Other derivative transactions for trade (l11) 166,212 51,102 - -
A. Total trading derivative transactions (I+114lll 225,417 114,426 - -
Types of hedging transactions - - - -
Fair value hedges - - - -
Cash flow hedges - - - -
Net investment hedges - - - -
B.Total hedging related derivatives - - - -
Total Derivative Transactions (A+B) 225,417 114,426 - -

Forward foreign exchange and swap transactiondoarprotection from currency fluctuations. Accorgito
TAS, they do not qualify as hedging instrumentstbading and are remeasured at fair value.

As of December 31, 2014 breakdown of the Bank'sifpr currency forward and swap transactions based o
currencies are disclosed below in their TRY equirtd:

Forward  Forward Option Option Future Future
Buy Sell Swap Buy Swap Sell Buy Sell Buy Sell

December 31, 2014
TRY 2,513 2,511 - - 269 269 - -
uUsbD - - - 24,064 273 273 - -
EUR 2,511 2,511 24,011 - - - - -
Other - - 83,516 82,696 - - - -
Total 5,024 5,022 107,527 106,760 542 542 - -
December 31, 2013
TRY 658 666 25,206 - 886 886 - -
uUsD 548 538 28,552 - 925 925 - -
EUR 148 148 - 28,444 - - - -
Other - - - 25,896 - - - -
Total 1,354 1,352 53,758 54,340 1,811 1,811 - -
3. Informations about credit derivatives and descrptions of the risks:

None.
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Ill.  Explanations and Disclosures Related to the (fBalance Sheet Contingencies and Commitments

(continued)

4. Explanations on contingent liabilities and assets:

a.l) The Bank's share in contingent liabilitiessiag from entities under common control (joint

ventures) together with other venturer: None.

a.2) Share of jointly controlled entity (joint ene) in its own contingent liabilities: None.

a.3) The Bank’s contingent liabilities resultingin liabilities of other venturers in jointly contiexd

entities (joint ventures): None.

b) Accounting and presentation of contingent assedsliabilities in the financial statements:

b.1) Contingent assets are accounted for, if pritibabf realization is almost certain. If probaibyl of
realization is high, then it is explained in thetiootes. As of December 31, 2014 and 2013 there

are no contingent assets that need to be explained.

b.2) A provision is made for contingent liabilitiesrealization is probable and the amount carabdy
be determined. If realization is remote or the amdazannot be determined reliably, then it is
explained in the footnotes: Contingent liabilitees of December 31, 2014 and 2013 are explained
in section 3 part XIV “Explanations on ProvisiomglaContingent Liabilities”.

5. Custodian and intermediary services:

The Bank provides security purchase-sell and lsadping services in the name of real persons aya le
entities. Details of investment securities hela¢ustody are given in the Statement of Off Balanktee®

Contingencies and Commitments.

IV. Explanations and Disclosures Related to the Stament of Income

1. a) Information on interest on loans:

December 31, 2014 December 31, 2013
Interest on loans (*) TRY FC TRY FC
Short term loans 217,910 15,459 146,135 19,392
Medium and long term loans 118,745 14,814 64,382 3,081
Interest on non-performing loans 1,171 - 3,406 -
Total 337,826 30,273 213,923 22,473

(*) Includes fees and commissions obtained fronh éaans.

b) Information on interest received from banks:

December 31, 2014

December 31, 2013

TRY FC TRY FC
The Central Bank of Turkey - - - -
Domestic banks 145 344 205 318
Foreign banks - 5 5 4
Branches and head office abroad - - - -
Total 145 349 210 322
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IV. Explanations and Disclosures Related to the Stament of Income (continued)

c) Interest received from marketable securities pafolio:
December 31, 2014 December 31, 2013
TRY FC TRY FC
Trading securities 5 - 4 -
Financial assets at fair value through profit are$| - - - -
Available-for-sale securities 62,831 - 36,614 -
Held-to-maturity securities 8,260 - 5,119 -
Total 71,096 - 41,737 -
d) Information on interest income received from assciates and subsidiaries:
None.
2. a) Information on interest on funds borrowed:
December 31, 2014 December 31, 2013
Interest on funds borrowed (*) TRY FC TRY FC
Banks 1,273 3,358 1,650 5,140
The Central Bank of Turkey - - - -
Domestic banks 1,095 666 954 927
Foreign banks 178 2,692 696 4,213

Branches and head office abroad - - - -
Other financial institutions - - - -

Total 1,273 3,358 1,650 5,140

(*) Includes fees and commission expenses for borr@wing
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IV. Explanations and Disclosures Related to the Stament of Income (continued)

b. Information on interest expense to associatesid subsidiaries None.
C. Information on interest expense to marketable sirities issued:None.
d. Distribution of interest expense on deposits bad on maturity of deposits:

December 31 , 2014

Time Deposits

More Accumula
Account Name Demand Uptol Upto3 Upto6 Uptol thanl ting
Deposits  Month Months  Months Year Year Deposits Total
TRY
Bank deposits 37 - - - - - 37
Saving deposits 3,228 80,521 9,137 13,945 528 - 107,359
Public sector deposits - 669 - - - - 669
Commercial deposits 8,796 37,596 7,574 4,097 2,656 - 60,719
Other deposits 48 6,674 6,350 - - - 13,072
7 days call accounts - - - - - - -
Precious metal deposits - - - - - - - -
Total - 12,109 125,460 23,061 18,042 3,184 - 181,856
Foreign Currency
Foreign currency deposits 751 30,834 1,934 1,061 1,667 - 36,247
Bank deposits - 515 - - - - - 515
7 days call accounts - - - - - - - -
Precious metal deposits - - - - - - - -
Total - 1,266 30,834 1,934 1,061 1,667 - 36,762
Grand Total - 13,375 156,294 24,995 19,103 4,851 - 218,618
December 31, 2013
Time Deposits
More Accumula
Account Name Demand Uptol Upto3 Upto6 Uptol thanl ting
Deposits  Month Months  Months Year Year Deposits Total
TRY
Bank deposits 4 - - - - - 4
Saving deposits 1,151 50,033 7,276 5,144 169 - 63,773
Public sector deposits - - - - - - -
Commercial deposits 4,649 23,519 4,785 5,830 644 - 39,427
Other deposits 290 2,630 1,168 45 - - 4,137
7 days call accounts - - - - - - -
Precious metal deposits - - - - - - - -
Total 4 6,094 76,182 13,229 11,019 813 - 107,341
Foreign Currency
Foreign currency deposits 988 23,639 3,306 652 112 - 28,697
Bank deposits - 555 - - - - - 555
7 days call accounts - - - - - - - -
Precious metal deposits - - - - - - - -
Total - 1,543 23,639 3,306 652 112 - 29,252
Grand Total 4 7,637 99,821 16,535 11,671 925 - 136,593
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IV. Explanations and Disclosures Related to the Stament of Income (continued)

3. Information on Dividend Income:

December 31, 2014 December 31, 2013

Trading Securities - -
Financial Assets at fair value through profit aosis| - -

Available for sale securities 17 -
Other - -
Total 17 -
4, Information on net trading income:

December 31, 2014 December 31, 2013

Income 512,074 595,232
Gains on capital market operations 12 8,105
Gains on derivative financial instruments 22,443 ,819
Foreign exchange gains 489,619 574,308
Losses (-) (510,948) (588,370)
Losses on capital market operations - (694)
Losses on derivative financial instruments (42,260) (11,965)
Foreign exchange losses (468,688) (575,711)
Total 1,126 6,862
5. Information on other operating income:

December 31, 2014 December 31, 2013

Reversal of free provisions 5,305 4,466
Reversal of specific provisions (cash)(*) 21,373 14,905
Reversal of unindeminified non-cash loan provision 824 555
Income from sales of assets 2,074 550
Income of previous year 82 1,851
Provisions for communication expense collected foustomers 12 108
Provisions for expenditure collected from customers 42 67
Reversal of general loan loss provisions(**) 7,703 327
Income from financial leasing - -
Other 467 1,174
Total 37,882 24,003

(*)  According to the Board of Directors Decisiand dated December 8, 2014, non-performing loatis avi
principal amount of TRY 21,073 are sold to an asgnagement company as of December 31, 2014.

(**) In accordance with the change in the “Regulatiod Brocedures and Principles for Determination of
Qualifications of Loans and Other Receivables byk3aand Provisions to be set aside”(published én th
Official Gazette numbered 28789 dated October 083% banks may apply 0% for standard qualified
cash and non-cash export credits, 0.5% for SME lasts and 0.1% for noncash loans. Hence, the Bank
applied the amendment beginning from January 28%4f December 31, 2014, TRY 7,703 comprises
of reversal of general loan loss provisions duthéotransition to new regulation.
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IV. Explanations and Disclosures Related to the Stament of Income (continued)

6. Provision for impairment of loans and other recivables:

December 31, 2014

December 31, 2013

Specific provisions for loans and other receivables 29,650 15,814
Ill. Group Loans and Receivables 5,091 3,202
IV. Group Loans and Receivables 5,540 4,854
V. Group Loans and Receivables 19,019 7,758
General loan loss provision expenses 9,705 8,701
Marketable securities impairment losses - 62
Financial assets at fair value through profit aoss| - -
Investment securities available for sale - 62
Impairment provision expense on investments 351 26
Associates - -
Subsidiaries - -
Jointly controlled entities - -
Investments held to maturity 351 26
Other 5,120 2,674
Total 44,826 27,277
7. Information on other operating expenses:

December 31, 2014

December 31, 2013

Personnel expenses 71,802 61,364
Reserve for employee termination benefits 1,116 984
Taxes and duties 3,528 3,076
Bank social aid fund deficit provision - -
Impairment expenses of fixed assets - -
Depreciation expenses of fixed assets 3,217 2,803
Impairment expenses of intangible assets - -
Impairment expense of goodwill - -
Amortization expenses of intangible assets 7,294 4,936
Impairment for investments accounted for under tyquethod - -
Impairment expenses of assets to be disposed - -
Depreciation expenses of assets to be disposed 737 470
Impairment expenses of assets held for sale agdmtisued operations - -
Other operating expenses 48,543 36,330
Rent expenses 13,376 10,125
Maintenance expenses 5,656 3,177
Advertisement expenses 599 643
Other expenses(*) 28,912 22,385
Loss on sales of assets (***) 21,163 11,733
Other(**) 5,944 4,500
Total 163,344 126,196
*) Included in other operating expenses; vehidpenses are TRY 4,453, communication expenseER¥e?,882, cleaning expenses

are TRY 1,007, non-deductible expenses TRY 463jrngedightening expenses are TRY 1,224, statiormxgenses are TRY 794,
computer usage expenses TRY 1,585, insurance eepdidY 525, TRY 8,327 other provisions, TRY 1,74¢eatise expense,
TRY 1,678, representation expenses, subconductopaoy expense TRY 2,447, and other expenses are TR83. (December
31 2013; vehicle expenses are TRY 3,962, commuaitaxpenses are TRY 2,480, cleaning expenses Rle 4,438, non-
deductible expenses TRY 437, heating- lighteningeeses are TRY 1,151, stationery expenses are T38Y dmputer usage
expenses TRY 1,412, insurance expenses TRY 441, 5829 other provisions, TRY 1,319 expertise expeARY 1,360
representation expenses and other expenses ard ,PRS).

** Included in other; the premiums paid to SayiDeposit Insurance Fund is TRY 1,846, assurandefinancial services expenses
are TRY 2,259, unused vacation expenses are TRYa®d8other expenses are TRY 891. (December 313:2ZIRY 1,762
premiums paid to Saving Deposit Insurance Fundy TRZ00 assurance and financial consultancy exyggnsused vacation
expenses are TRY 275 and TRY 763 other expenses).

(***)  According to the Board of Directors decisiaated December 8, 2014, non-performing loans wifiriacipal amount of TRY
21,073 are sold to an asset management compariybasember 31, 2014.

(83)



Translated into English from the original Turkish r eport and financial statements

TURKLAND BANK ANON iM SIRKET i
NOTES TO THE UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (C ONTINUED)

FOR THE PERIOD ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2014
(Amounts expressed in thousands of Turkish LifaYTunless otherwise stated.)

IV. Explanations and Disclosures Related to the Stament of Income (continued)
8. Information on profit/(loss) from continued and discontinued operations before taxes:
The Bank has TRY 20,127 profit before tax as of éelser 31, 2013 and TRY 40,242 profit before taxofas

December 31, 2014. Compared to the prior year,intetest income increased by 50.5% and net fees and
commission income increased by 26%.

9. Information on tax provision for continued and dscontinued operations:

a) As of December 31, 2014; current tax expense is TIRY79. (December 31, 2013: None) and TRY
4,668 deferred tax income (December 31, 2013: TRY&deferred tax expense).

b) Deferred tax income on temporary differences excaptied forward tax loss is TRY 11,707. (December
31, 2013: TRY 8,023 deferred tax expense)

C) Deferred tax expense for temporary differences oarried forward tax losses or tax
exemptions/deductions which is included in the enirryear income statement is TRY 7,039. (December
31, 2013: TRY 2,297 deferred tax income).

d)  Tax reconciliation;

December 31, December 31,

2014 2013
Profit before tax 40,242 20,127
Tax at the domestic income tax rate of 20% (2Q026) (8,048) (4,025)
Disallowables and other, net (263) (1,701)
Tax Calculated (8,311) (5,726)

10. Information on net profit/(loss) from continuedand discontinued operations:

The Bank has TRY 14,401 net profit as of Decen®#igP013 and TRY 31,931 net profit as of DecemHter 3
2014 respectively.

11. The explanations on net income / loss for theepod:

a) The nature amount of certain income and expensasititom ordinary operations is disclosed if the
disclosure for nature, amount and repetition rdtsugh items is required for the understandinghef t
Bank’s performance for the period : None.

A portion of non-performing loans of the Bank amtwgp to TRY 21,073 are sold to Final Varlik
Yonetimi AS according to Board of Directors’ decision datedatember 8, 2014 and recorded (870)
TL net loss of sales as of December 31, 2014.

b) Financial Effect of changes in accounting estimatesncome statement for the current and, if aoy, f
subsequent periods: None.

C) Profit or loss attributable to minority shares: lon
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IV.  Explanations and Disclosures Related to the Stament of Income (continued)

12. If the other items in the income statement exed 10% of the income statement total, accounts
amounting to at least 20% of these items are shovwbelow:

December 31, 201 December 31, 201

Other fees and commissions rece

Expertist fees collected from custom 1,94( 1,33t
Insurance comissi¢ 70¢& 19¢
Transfer commissiol 502 45¢
Cheque expens 304 21C
Information expens: 20¢ 2€
Safe-deposit comissiot 68 52
Bill of credit comission 43 18
Letter of credit comissiol 39 1€
Collection item comissiol 5 2
Credit cards commissions and 1 9 4
Other banking operations inco (*) 9,762 9,35
Total 13,587 11,67¢

(*) Other banking operations income includes act®wuch as bank operations income, collection esg®n
credit expenses.

December 31, 201 December 31, 201

Other fees and commissions gi

Transfer commissiol 147 13¢
Credit card commissio 57 4¢
Bond exchange transaction 83 37
Money transfer commissit 43z 35¢
Commissions given to bar 50z 51t
ATM commissiol 10 11
EFT commissior 24¢€ 182
Othel 69 27
Total 1,547 1,31¢

V. Explanations and Disclosures Related to Statemeof Changes in ShareholdersEquity

a) Increase resulting from revaluation of financiabets available for sale is amounting to TRY 32,679
(December 31, 2013: TRY 41,768 decrease).

b) Increase in cash flow risk hedging items: None.

b.1) Reconciliation of beginning and ending balandéone.

b.2) Amount recorded in the current period if angai loss from a cash flow hedging derivative on-ho
derivative financial asset is accounted for unthareholders’ equity: None.

c) The reconciliation related with foreign currerticgnslation differences at the beginning and ehthe
period: None.

d) Dividends declared subsequent to the balancet stade, but before the announcement of the fiahnci
statements: None.

e) Dividends per share proposed subsequent toaflamde sheet date: Profit appropriation will beohesd
in the General Assembly meeting which has not wstnbconducted as of the date the accompanying
financial statements are authorized for issue.

f) Proposals to General Assembly for the paymetesiaf dividends and if it will not be appropriattgd
reasons for this: The Board of Directors has natiddal for profit appropriation as of the date the
financial statements are authorized for issue.
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IV.  Explanations and Disclosures Related to the Stament of Income (continued)
g) Amounts transferred to legal reserves is amounttnigRY 720 (December 31,2013: TRY 635)
h) Information on shares issued:

The Bank does not have any issued debt securiissof the date of approval of these financial
statements, there is no subsequent dividend anemertt of the Bank after the balance sheet date.

VI. Explanations and Disclosures Related To Statenm¢ Of Cash Flows

1. The effects of the other items stated in the gwment of cash flows and the changes in foreign
currency exchange rates on cash and cash equivalent

“Other items” amounting to TRY 68,034 in “Operatipgofit before changes in operating assets andlitiab”
in essence consist of fees and commissions paddh/Igsses from derivative financial instrumentsl arther
operating expenses (except for personnel expemsssive for employee termination benefits, deptiecia
expenses and taxes paid).

“Net increase/decrease in other liabilities” amdngtto TRY 39,463 in “Changes in operating assetd a
liabilities” in essence consists of changes irdsyrreditors, other liabilities and tax liability.

“Net increase/decrease in other assets” amouridgRly 7,111 in “Changes in operating assets arlliti@s”
in essence consists of changes in sundry debtdrether assets.

The effect of the change in the foreign exchange mn the cash and cash equivalents is calculaged a
approxiamtely 18,499 TL and it represents the ¢ffiéthe change in the foreign exchange rates thesforeign
currency cash and cash equivalents

2. Cash and cash equivalents at beginning and enfleriods:

The reconciliation of the components of cash arsth @xjuivalents, accounting policies used to detexrtiiese
components, the effect of any change made in aticmuprinciple in the current period, the recordedounts
of the cash and cash equivalent assets at thedeatdreet and the recorded amounts in the statesheatsh
flow:

Beginning of the period December 31, 2013December 31, 2012
Cash

Cash in TRY/Foreign Currency 23,254 23,556

The Central Bank of Turkey 36,708 85,857

Other - -
Cash equivalents

Banks and receivables from finaniiatutions 286,381 97,525

Money market placements 70,000 152,000
Total cash and cash equivalents 416,343 358,938
End of the period December 31, 2014December 31, 2013
Cash

Cash in TRY/Foreign Currency 37,515 23,254

The Central Bank of Turkey 46,154 36,708

Other - -
Cash equivalents

Banks and receivables from finangiatutions 273,072 286,381

Money market placements - 70,000
Total cash and cash equivalents 3361 416,343
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VII. Explanations on the Risk Group of the Bank

1. Volume of related party transactions, income anéxpense amounts involved and outstanding loan
and deposit balances:

a) December 31, 2014:

Subsidiaries, associates and Direct and indirect Other entities included
Risk Group of The Bank jointly controlled entities shareholders of the Bank in the risk group
Cash  Non-cash Cash Non-cash Cash Non-cash
Loans and other receivables
Balance at beginning of period - - 73 3,211 23 151,
Balance at end of period - - 99 85 - 15,913
Interest and commission income - - - 24 83 113

Included in the balances above, balance at theoématriod at direct and indirect shareholders caslamn
contain foreign bank accounts amounting to TRY 99.

b) December 31, 2013:

Subsidiaries, associates and Direct and indirect Other entities included
Risk Group of The Bank jointly controlled entities shareholders of the Bank in the risk group
Cash Non-cash Cash Non-cash Cash Non-cash
Loans and other receivables
Balance at beginning of period - - 59 3,194 6,954 4,376
Balance at end of period - 73 3,211 23 11,151
Interest and commission income - - - 21 472 49

Included in the balances above, balance at theoématriod at direct and indirect shareholders casllamn
contains foreign bank accounts amounting to TRY 73

c.1) Information on related party deposits balances

Subsidiaries, associates and Direct and indirect Other entities included
Risk Group of The Bank jointly controlled entities shareholders of the Bank in the risk group
December 31, December 31, December 31, December 31, December 31, December 31,
Deposits 2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013
Balance at beginning of period - - 969 1,223 33,545 289
Balance at end of period - - 730 969 89,693 33,545
Interest on deposits - - - - 6,007 1,502

In addition, the Bank has “Funds Borrowed” at anoam of TRY 302 used from risk group of the Bank
(December 31, 2013: TRY 70,114) and TRY 1,631 (bdmr 31, 2013: TRY 2,548) interest expense was
incurred from funds borrowed in 2014.

c.2) Information on forward and option agreememis ather similar agreements made with related gmrti
None.

d) As of December 31, 2014, the total amount of rematien and benefits provided to the senior
management of the Bank is TRY 9,424 (December G132TRY 9,381)
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VIl. Explanations on the Risk Group of the Bank (catinued)

2. Disclosures for related parties:

a) The relations of the Bank with the entities colfed by the Bank and its related parties, regessllof
whether there are any transactions or not:

In the normal course of its banking activities, Benk conducted various commercial transactionf wit
related parties.

b) Besides the structure of relationship, nature¢heftransaction, amount and ratio to the totaun of
transactions, amount of major items and ratio tdexhs, pricing policies and other factors:

% Compared to the
Amounts in the

Amount Financial Statements
Cash loans - -
Banks and other receivables 99 0.04
Non-cash loans 15,998 0.72
Deposits 90,423 2.52
Borrowings 302 0.22

These transactions are priced in accordance wétlyémeral pricing policies of the Bank.

c) In cases whereby separate disclosure is notssang the total of similar items in order to presthe
total impact on the financial statements: Explaiimed).

d) Transactions accounted under the equity metRode.

e) Disclosures related to purchase and sale ofertate and other assets, services given/receagehcy
contracts, leasing contracts, transferring infofomaias a result of research and development, lecens

contracts, financing (including supports in thenfoof loans, capital in cash and capital in kind),
guarantees, and management contracts:

Within the limits of the Banking Law, the Bank dars cash and non-cash loans to its related panigs

the ratio of these to the Bank’s total cash and-cesh loan portfolio is 0.27%. Details of thesenare
explained in 1a above.
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VIIl. Explanations on the Bank’s domestic branchesagencies and branches abroad and off- shore

branches
1. Explanations on the Bank’s domestic branches, ageies and branches abroad and off- shore

branches

Number Employees
Domestic branches 33 641
Country
Rep-offices abroad - - -
Total Assets Capital

Branches abroad - - - - -
Off-shore branches - - - - -
2. Explanations on Branch and Agency Openings or ©ings of the Bank::

None.
IX.  Explanations and disclosures related to subse@unt events

In accordance to the dated January 3,2015 and mecht2915- 01 announcement of the Central Bank ®f th
Republic of Turkey, “ Announcement of Reserve Désds the reserve requirements of foreign exchéhrxg
deliminated liabilities of banks, reserve optioantthes and coefficients are revised. The revisisifisbe
effective as of the calculation period dated FelyuE3, 2015 and the maintenance period will begin o
February 27, 2015.
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SECTION SIX

OTHER EXPLANATIONS
l. Other Explanations on the Operations of the Bank

The Bank is not required to prepare consolidatednitial statements as per the decree of “Preparatio
financial statements of the Bank” published in dffficial gazette dated November 8, 2006 and mubg263#0.
SECTION SEVEN
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

l. Explanations on the Independent Auditor's Report

The unconsolidated financial statements of the Benkf December 31, 2014 were audited by GlungyrBaz
Denetim ve Serbest Muhasebeci Mali gduirlik A.S. (A member firm of Ernst&Young Global Limited).

The independent auditor’s report dated Februar@25 is presented preceding the financial statésnen

II.  Other Footnotes and Explanations Prepared by Inlependent Auditors:

None.
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